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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
Lori A. Shibinette 603-271-9200 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9200
Commissioner Fax: 603-271-4912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Lori A. Weaver
Deputy Commissioner

April 1, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to
amend existing agreements with the Contractors listed below to build capacity within communities
to address mental health needs including but not limited to overcoming stigmas associated with
mental health care, and creating opportunities for social engagement to reduce isolation, by
increasing the total price limitation by $260,850 from $234,375 to $495,225 with no change to the
contract completion dates of September 30, 2023, effective upon Governor and Council approval.
100% Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on May 6, 2020, item #15,
and most recently amended on December 18, 2020, item #7.

Contractor Vendor Area Served Current Increase Revised
Name Code Amount (Decrease) Amount
Ascentria

Community 222201 Concord, NH $117,187.50 | $130,425.00 $247,612.50
Services, Inc.

International
Institute of
New England,
Inc.

177551 | Manchester, NH | $117,187.50 | $130,425.00 | $247,612.50

Total: | $234,375.00 | $260,850.00 | $495,225.00

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.
EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for each Contractor to hire and implement a mental health
case manager position, who will be responsible for providing mental health case management, a
mental health orientation, mental health education and the added service of facilitating wellness

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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groups and providing home visits as part of implementing the Family Strengthening Intervention
for Refugees.

Currently, each Contractor has one (1) health case manager who is responsible for both
physical and mental health case management services, orientation and education. With the
additional mental health case manager, the existing and new services will further build capacity
within communities to address mental health needs, including but not limited to helping overcome
stigmas associated with mental health care, and creating opportunities for social engagement to
reduce isolation.

Approximately 500 Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR) eligible individuals will be
served through September 30, 2023.

The Contractors serve designated ORR-eligible populations resettled in the State for up
to five (5) years from the date of arrival. The Contractors provide orientations on the U.S.
healthcare system as well as education on identified health conditions. In addition, the Contractors
will organize wellness groups for ORR-eligible clients to prevent isolation, conduct home visits as
well as provide health and mental health case management services to ensure ORR-eligible
clients obtain the necessary follow-up health and mental health services beyond the initial medical
examination in a manner that is timely, and culturally and linguistically appropriate.

The current and new services will continue to reduce barriers to achieving welliness within
ORR-eligible populations, as well as impart the knowledge and skills necessary to navigate the
U.S. health care system independently and to manage health and health conditions.

The Department will continue monitoring existing and new services to ensure:

e 100% of new ORR-eligible arrivals receive health-related orientations including
mental health orientations, and/or workshops/trainings throughout the contract
period, with priority given to those who have been in the U.S. for two (2) years or
less;

e 100% of ORR-eligible clients who require care beyond the initial medical
examination receive case management services, including mental health case
management services;

e Results of the satisfaction surveys distributed at each orientation, workshop and
training demonstrate 80% of ORR-eligible clients have increased knowledge and
understanding of:

o Accessing and navigating the U.S. Health System in order to obtain health
insurance;

o Scheduling and keeping health appointments; and

o Utilizing public, Medicaid and/or other appropriate transportation to get to
and from medical and mental health appointments.

¢ A minimum of three (3) Wellness Groups are facilitated each contract year;

e A minimum of five (5) families are enrolled in and receive the Family Strengthening
Intervention for Refugees each contract year;

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, ORR-eligible
populations with complex health conditions may not receive the needed mental health care in a
timely, and culturally and linguistically appropriate, manner. In addition, ORR-eligible populations
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may not gain the knowledge and skills necessary to navigate the U.S. health care system
independently and to manage their health and health conditions.

Sources of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number (formerly CFDA#) 93.566, FAINs
Refugee 22G99RSF2 and Afghan 22G992210.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

DocuSigned by:

A &.

24BAB37EDBEB488...

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner



DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F4F985-67FB-4AD3-9048-67D65DF7BF28

Refugee Health Promotion Program

$S-2021-OHE-01-REFUG (Amendment #2)
Fiscal Detail Sheet

Ascentria Community Services, Inc., VC# 222201-B001

05-95-095-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS; HHS: COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER;
REFUGEE SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

State Increased .
Fiscal A?:I:::;t Class Title N:;tl;er gzge:: (Decreased) g‘msz{:
Year g Amount 9
Contracts for
2021 | 102-500731 Program 95070005 | $37,499.50 $0 | $37,499.50
Services
Contracts for
2022 | 102-500731 Program 95070005 $37,500 $0 $37,500
Services
Contracts for
2023 | 102-500731 Program 95070005 $37,500 $0 $37,500
Services
Contracts for
2024 | 102-500731 Program 95070005 $4,688 $0 $4,688
Services
Subtotals | $117,187.50 $0| $117,187.50

05-95-095-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS; HHS: COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER,;
REFUGEE SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

State Increased .
. Class / . Job Current Revised
Fiscal Class Title (Decreased)
Year Account Number Budget Ansount Budget
Contracts for
2022 | 102-500731 Program 95070021 $0 $14,063 $14,063
Services
Contracts for
2023 | 102-500731 Program 95070021 $0 $18,750 $18,750
Services
Contracts for
2024 | 102-500731 Program 95070021 $0 $4,687 $4,687
Services
Subtotals 30 $37,500 $37,500

Page 1 of 3
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Refugee Health Promotion Program

§S-2021-OHE-01-REFUG (Amendment #2)
Fiscal Detail Sheet

05-95-095-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS; HHS: COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER;
REFUGEE SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

State Increased .
A Class / . Job Current Revised
Fiscal Class Title (Decreased)
Yaar Account Number Budget Amount Budget
Contracts for
2022 | 102-500731 Program 95070023 $0 $34,847 $34,847
Services
Contracts for
2023 | 102-500731 Program 95070023 $0 $46,463 $46,463
Services
Contracts for
2024 | 102-500731 Program 95070023 $0 $11,615 $11,615
Services
Subtotals $0 $92,925 $92,925
TOTALS | $117,187.50 $130,425 | $247,612.50

International Institute of New England, Inc., VC# 177551-B001

05-95-095-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS; HHS: COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER;
REFUGEE SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

State Increased -
. Class / - Job Current Revised
Fiscal Class Title (Decreased)
Yohr Account Number Budget ek Budget
Contracts for
2021 | 102-500731 Program 95070005 | $37,296.50 $0 | $37,296.50
Services
Contracts for
2022 | 102-500731 Program 95070005 $37,500 $0 $37,500
Services
Contracts for
2023 | 102-500731 Program 95070005 $37,500 $0 $37,500
Services
Contracts for
2024 | 102-500731 Program 95070005 $4,891 $0 $4,891
Services
Subtotals | $117,187.50 $0| $117,187.50

Page 2 of 3
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Refugee Health Promotion Program

$S-2021-OHE-01-REFUG (Amendment #2)
Fiscal Detail Sheet

05-95-095-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS; HHS: COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER;
REFUGEE SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

State Increased .
y Class / : Job Current Revised
Fiscal Class Title (Decreased)
Year Account Number Budget fri—— Budget

Contracts for $0 $6,250 $6,250
2022 | 102-500731 Program 95070021

Services

Contracts for $0 $25,000 25,000
2023 | 102-500731 Program 95070021

Services

Contracts for $0 $6,250 $6,250
2024 | 102-500731 Program 95070021

Services

Subtotals 30 $37,500 $37,500

05-95-095-950010-72090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS; HHS: COMMISSIONERS OFFICE; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER;
REFUGEE SERVICES (100% Federal Funds)

State Increased .
. Class / " Job Current Revised
Fiscal Class Title (Decreased)
Yaar Account Number Budget r—— Budget
102 Contracts for $0 $15,523 $15,523
2022 500731 Pfogram 95070023
Services
102 Contracts for $0 $61,922 $61,922
2023 500731 Program 95070023
Services
102 Contracts for $0 $15,480 $15,480
2024 500731 Program 95070023
Services
Subtotals $0 $92 925 $92 925
TOTALS | $117,187.50 $130,425 | $247,612.50
GRAND TOTALS | $234,375.00 | $260,850.00 | $495,225.00

Page 3 of 3
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2

This Amendment to the New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program contract is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 6, 2020, (ltem #15), as amended on December 18, 2020, (Item #7), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$247,612.50

2. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B — Amendment #2,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded with 100% federal funds from Administration for Children & Families,
as awarded on October 25, 2021 and December 29, 2021, by the Administration for Children
& Families; CFDA# 93.566.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 2, to read:

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-10, Budget — Amendment #2.

5. Add Exhibit C-5, Budget — Amendment #2, Exhibit C-6, Budget — Amendment #2, Exhibit C-7,
Budget — Amendment #2, Exhibit C-8, Budget — Amendment #2, Exhibit C-9, Budget — Amendment
#2 and Exhibit C-10, Budget — Amendment #2, which are attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

‘ﬂM

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. A-5-1.2 Contractor Initials
4/12/2022

§S8-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A02 Page 1 of 3 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DocuSigned by:

4/19/2022 v, . {/mlm
24BAB37EDBEB488...
Date Name: ann H. Landry
Title:

Associate Commissioner

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

DocuSigned by:
4/12/2022 @imu, Mateleell

ABBBCC3A777C49C...

Date Name: Aimee Mitchell
Title:

Chief Community Services oOfficer

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. A-S-1.2
$8-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A02 Page 2 of 3



DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F4F985-67FB-4AD3-9048-67D65DF7BF28

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and

execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
DocuSigned by:
4/20/2022 ET"‘E';"""“' RakhowaTove
FDF521C5825C34AC.
Date Name: Takhmina Rakhmatova

Title:
e Attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. A-5-1.2

S$8-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A02 Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1

1.2.

The Contractor shall provide services and activities that promote the health and

wellness of designated Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR)-eligible
populations by:

1.1.1.  Providing opportunities to increase health literacy;
1.1.2. Coordinating physical health and mental health care;

1.1.3. Building capacity within communities to address mental health needs
including but not limited to help overcoming stigmas associated with
mental health care; and

1.1.4. Creating opportunities for social engagement to reduce isolation,
including but not limited to organizing wellness groups.

The Contractor shall provide services, statewide, to ORR-eligible populations to
increase access to health care and reduce gaps in services, with an emphasis

on the geographic areas of Concord, Manchester and Nashua. Services must
include, but are not limited to:

1.2.1. Physical and mental health case management.
1.2.2. Health orientations.

1.2.3. Health education.

1.2.4. Home visiting.

1.2.5. Targeted wellness groups.

1.2.6. Health provider education.

1.3. The Contractor shall ensure all required services in 1.2 are:

1.3.1. Client-centered;

1.3.2. Trauma-informed;

1.3.3. Strengths-based; and

1.3.4. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate (CLAS).

1.4. The Contractor shall provide physical health and mental health case
management services to ORR-eligible clients who require care beyond the initial
health examination, which includes, but is not limited to:

1.4.1. Scheduling and coordinating health, including mental health,
appointments.
1.4.2. Accompanying clients to health appointments.
DS
' ‘ s
§S8-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A02 Contractor Initials

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. Page 1 of 14 Date 4/12/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

- EXHIBIT B — Amendment #2

1.4.3.

1.4.4.

1.4.5.

Providing and/or facilitating the provision of transportation to and from
health appointments.

Ensuring appropriate interpreter services are available to clients during
health appointments with providers, as needed.

Assisting ORR-eligible populations to obtain appropriate health
insurance.

1.5. The Contractor shall provide uniform, continuous and timely transition of case
management services from the initial refugee health examination and/or on day
ninety-one (91) of resettlement, whichever is sooner, including all needed follow-
up care, to ensure no gaps in services and continuity of care.

1.6. The Contractor shall schedule an initial dental examination for all ORR-eligible
children 0-18 years of age within six (6) months of arrival.

1.7. The Contractor shall conduct health orientations that shall include, but are not
limited to, the following topics:

1.7.1. Navigating the U.S. health care system.
1.7.2. Health insurance, including Refugee Medical Assistance.
1.7.3. Privacy and consent laws.
1.7.4. The right to language assistance in health care settings and the role of
interpreters.
1.7.5. Transportation options for medical appointments including, but not
limited to:
1.7.5.1. Public transportation training.
1.7.5.2. Arranging Medicaid transportation.
1.7.6. Understanding the different types of health care providers including, but
not limited to:
1.7.6.1. Primary care providers.
1.7.6.2. Specialists.
1.7.6.3. Pharmacists.
1.7.7. Understanding the different types of health care and when, where and
how to access each type including, but not limited to:
1.7.7.1. Preventive.
1.7.7.2. Urgent.
1.7.7.3. Emergency.
bs
(i
§S-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A02 Contractor Initials

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. Page 2 of 14 Date 4/12/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.8.

1.9.

1.10.

1.12.

1.7.8. Understanding the availability of mental/behavioral health services,
including but not limited to treatment for substance use disorders, and
when, where and how to access services.

1.7.9. Scheduling, keeping and cancelling appointments.
1.7.10. What to bring to appointments.
1.7.11. Medication, including but not limited to:

1.7.11.1. The difference between prescribed medication and over-the-
counter (OTT) medication.

1.7.11.2. Refills.
1.7.11.3. Dosage instructions.
1.7.11.4. Side effects.

The Contractor shall provide appropriate interpreter services and translated
materials at all health orientations.

The Contractor shall adapt the health orientation curriculum to accommodate
the needs of new ORR-eligible populations, and modify the curriculum as
needed, with approval from the Department.

The Contractor shall maintain documentation of individual ORR-eligible clients
who have received health orientation services, including but not limited to:

1.10.1. The individual clients who participated in a health orientation;
1.10.2. The topic(s) of orientation completed by each participant;

. The Contractor shall conduct both group, defined as a minimum of two (2)

participants, and individual health orientations, including a minimum of one (1)
home visit to reinforce and clarify the information presented in the group setting,
and to address unique issues and concerns.

The Contractor shall provide solely, or in collaboration with other organizations,
health education to ORR-eligible populations. The Contractor shall:

1.12.1. Identify topics of concern in each of the various ORR-eligible
populations and prioritize topics that are most urgent or relevant on an
ongoing basis.

1.12.2. Invite and arrange for outside organizations to provide individual and/or
group health education sessions on topics within their area(s) of
expertise, which may include the topics identified in Subsection 1.12.6.
below;

1.12.3. Schedule presenters;
1.12.4. Ensure the provision of interpreter services;

Ds
1.12.5. Notify clients of class schedules; .
Contractor Initials

§5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A02

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. Page 3 of 14 Date 4/12/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.13.

1.14.

1.15.

L8

1.12.6. Ensure health education sessions include topics relevant to ORR-
eligible populations that may include, but are not limited to:

1.12.6.1. Health insurance terms, coverage requirements and options,
and the enrollment process.

1.12.6.2. Disabilities including, but not limited to, autism.

1.12.6.3. Women'’s health including, but not limited to, domestic
violence and reproductive health.

1.12.6.4. Men'’s health.
1.12.6.5. Emotional Wellness.

1.12.6.6. Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, and Questioning
(LGBTQ) health.

1.12.6.7. Oral health and hygiene.

1.12.6.8. Vision health.

1.12.6.9. Nutrition and benefits of exercise.
1.12.6.10.Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV).
1.12.6.11.Tuberculosis risk reduction.
1.12.6.12.Fire safety.

The Contractor shall distribute satisfaction surveys at health education sessions
in order to survey clients on:

1.13.1. The usefulness of the information provided;
1.13.2. Presentation style; and
1.13.3. Other relevant information.

The Contractor shall inform and coordinate community resources for the provision
of health care services not covered by Refugee Medical Assistance (RMA) or
other funding sources.

The Contractor shall facilitate the provision of non-clinical interventions including
but not limited to wellness groups to:

1.15.1. Promote refugee wellness;
1.15.2. Reduce isolation; and
1.15.3. Prevent suicide.

The Contractor shall facilitate a minimum of three (3) wellness groups each
Contract year, utilizing an evidence-based curriculum that may include, but is
not limited to, Pathways to Wellness Community Adjustment Support Group

Training Manual and Curriculum. Ds
‘ (i
$5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A02 Contractor Initials

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. Page 4 of 14 Date 4/12/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

5 T

1.19.

1.20.

1:21.

The Contractor shall implement the Family Strengthening Intervention for
Refugees, a home visiting family-based preventive intervention, to a minimum
of five (5) families each Contract year.

. The Contractor shall support and/or assist with ORR-eligible population periodic

emotional distress screenings using evidence-based tools that may include, but
are not limited to, the Refugee Health Screener 15 (RHS-15), and communicate
results and make referrals to health care providers as needed.

The Contractor shall maintain relationships with health care providers, including
mental health providers, within the refugee resettlement network; and develop
and foster relationships with a minimum of four (4) health care/mental health
care providers who are not in the refugee resettlement network through:

1.19.1. Outreach;
1.19.2. Education; and
1.19.3. Meetings.

The Contractor shall ensure relationships with health care providers/mental
health providers within, and not within, the refugee resettlement network focus
on, but are not limited to:

1.20.1. Health needs and culture of ORR-eligible populations.
1.20.2. Barriers to care that may include, but are not limited to:
1.20.2.1. Language.
1.20.2.2. Cultural factors.
1.20.2.3. Transportation issues.

1.20.3. Adherence to the CDC Refugee Health Guidelines for the initial
domestic medical examination.

1.20.4. National Standards for CLAS in health and healthcare.

The Contractor shall provide education and training to ORR-eligible populations
on the availability of health insurance through employers, the Marketplace,
expanded Medicaid and/or other financial assistance options at various stages
of resettlement, which will include, but is not limited to:

1.21.1. Assistance accessing and navigating the various health insurance
options available;

1.21.2. Assisting with health insurance enroliment applications; and/or

1.21.3. Making referrals to organizations for assistance with health insurance
applications.

1.22. The Contractor shall provide planning and evaluation assistance to the

Department including, but not limited to: os
i
Contractor Initials

S§8-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A02
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.23.

1.24.
1.25.

1.26.

1.22.1

1.22.2.

1223

1.22.4.

Developing and collecting satisfaction surveys distributed at
orientations, health sessions and trainings.

Tracking data, including:
1.22.2.1. Number of referrals made;
1.22.2.2. Number of training sessions and participants;

1.22.2.3. Number of consultations or point of contact with providers;
and

1.22.2.4. Number of meetings and training sessions.

Collecting feedback from health service providers to evaluate the
success of case management coordination, and implementing
adjustments as necessary.

Collecting internal feedback from staff, particularly case managers and
other case management specialists to evaluate the relevance of the
orientations to implement necessary changes leading to anticipated
improvements.

The Contractor shall communicate the results from ORR-eligible clients’ health
examinations conducted by a third party to medical providers as needed.

The Contractor shall facilitate referrals to behavioral health providers as needed.

The Contractor shall participate in virtual or in-person meetings with the
Department upon request.

The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

1.27. Staffing and Training
1.27.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following staff positions to carry out the
services as specified in this Scope of Services:
1.27.1.1. Two (2) Case Managers:
1.27.11.1. One (1) Case Manager who shall provide
physical health case management services; and
1.27.1.1.2. One (1) Case Manager who shall provide
mental health case management services to
ORR-eligible populations with complex health
conditions.
1.27.1.2. One (1) Administrator. Responsibilities include, but are not
limited to:
DS
| i
$5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A02 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.27.1.2.1. Oversight and supervision of the two (2) Case
Managers including performing all supervisory
duties; and

1.27.1.2.2. Oversight of the reporting process and ensuring
all required reporting is complete and submitted
to the Department timely in accordance with
Section 2. Reporting Requirements.

1.28. The Contractor shall ensure staff participate in trainings on the following subject
matters:

1.28.1. Understanding health insurance coverage and enroliment requirements
on the state and federal levels in order to assist ORR-eligible
populations obtain appropriate health insurance;

1.28.2. Implementing the Family Strengthening Intervention for Refugees as
specified in Subsection 1.17; and

1.28.3. Professional development training that may include, but is not limited
to, the National Alliance on Mental lliness Mental Health First Aide
training, to inform practices.

2. Reporting Requirements

2.1. The Contractor shall submit semi-annual reports to the Department for reporting
periods October 1 — September 30 and March 31 — April 1 no later than fifteen
(15) days after the end of each reporting period, and upon request by the
Department. Semi-annual reports must include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1.  Number of new arrivals by:
2.1.1.1. Gender;
2.1.1.2. Age;
2.1.1.3. Country of origin; and
2.1.1.4. Immigration status.

2.1.2.  Number of clients receiving tuberculosis screening within the following
time frames:

2.1.2.1. Thirty (30) days of arrival;
2.1.2.2. Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and
2.1.2.3. Ninety (90) days or more.
2.1.3. Number receiving initial health exam within the following time frames:
2.1.3.1.  Thirty (30) days of arrival,
2.1.3.2. Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and
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EXHIBIT B — Amendment #2

2.1.3.3. Ninety (90) days of arrival or more.

2.1.4.  Number of children six (6) months to sixteen (16) years of age who have
been screened for lead.
2.1.5.  Number of children two (2) to eighteen (18) years of age scheduled for
first dental examination within six (6) months of arrival.
2.1.6. Number of clients referred to the following:
2.1.6.1. Primary care provider;
2.1.6.2. Dental care provider;
2.1.6.3. Emergency room;
2.1.6.4. Mental health provider;
2.1.6.5. Infectious disease specialist;
2.1.6.6. Vision care provider;
2.1.6.7. Hearing care provider;
2.1.6.8. HIV services;
2.1.6.9. Tuberculosis follow-up services;
2.1.6.10. Pre-natal care provider;
2.1.6.11. Other specialists as well as the other conditions identified by
the State Refugee Health Coordinator.
2.1.7. Demographic data for ORR-eligible clients served, including:
2.1.7.1. Gender;
21.7.2. Age;
2.1.7.3. Primary language; and
2.1.7.4. Country of origin.
2.1.8. Number of clients receiving health case management services.
2.1.9. Number of clients receiving mental health case management services.
2.1.10. Number of clients participating in a wellness groups.
2.1.11. Number of clients receiving initial health orientation and topic(s)
covered.
2.1.12. Number of clients receiving health education and topic(s) covered.
2.1.13. Number of families participating in Family Strengthening Intervention
for Refugees, including:
2.1.13.1. Number of home visits completed; bs
(i
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2.2

2.3.

2.4.

2.1.13.2. The topics covered during each home visit; and

2.1.13.3. Number or percentage of new ORR-eligible clients receiving
a health home visit.

2.1.14. Number of health providers receiving training.
2.1.15. Number of health case manager trainings and topic(s).

2.1.16. Number of ORR-eligible clients educated and/or referred for assistance
in obtaining appropriate health insurance when transitioning off
Refugee Medical Assistance.

The Contractor shall identify and submit the primary health related issues of
concern in each of the ORR-eligible client communities to the Department.
Primary health related issues may include, but are not limited to:

2.2.1. Diabetes.

2.2.2. Hypertension.

2.2.3. Mental health.

2.2.4. Oral health concerns.

The Contractor shall submit a final program report to the Department no later
than fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the contract completion date.

The Contractor may be requested to provide additional key data and metrics to
the Department on an as needed basis.

3. Performance Measures

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following performance indicators are achieved
annually and monitored on a monthly basis to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement:

3.1.1. 100% of new ORR-eligible arrivals receive health-related orientations
and/or workshops/trainings throughout the contract period, with priority
given to those who have been in the United States for two (2) years or
less;

3.1.2. 100% of ORR-eligible clients who require care beyond the initial
medical examination receive case management services, including
mental health case management services, in accordance with
Subsection 1.4;

3.1.3. 100% of adult ORR-eligible clients receive assistance accessing
affordable health insurance upon arrival;

3.1.4. 100% of adult ORR-eligible clients are educated on the need to obtain
appropriate health insurance when transitioning off of Refugee Medical
Assistance; Ds
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3.2.

3.1.5.
3.1.6.

3.1.7.

3.1

3.1.9.

3.1.10.

3.1.11.

3.1.12.

All written materials and resources produced are translated,;

Interpreter services are coordinated consistently and regularly
throughout the contract period;

Results of the satisfaction surveys distributed at each orientation,
workshop and training demonstrate 80% of ORR-eligible clients have
increased knowledge and understanding of:

3.1.7.1. Accessing and navigating the US Health System in order to
obtain health insurance;

3.1.7.2. Scheduling and keeping health appointments; and

3.1.7.3. Utilizing public, Medicaid and/or other appropriate
transportation to get to and from medical and mental health
appointments.

Results of the satisfaction surveys distributed at each orientation,
workshop and training demonstrate 80% of ORR-eligible adult clients
gained knowledge on a minimum of one (1) health topic.

A minimum of three (3) Wellness Groups are facilitated each contract
year;

A minimum of five (5) families are enrolled in and receive the Family
Strengthening Intervention for Refugees each contract year;

A minimum of four (4) new relationships are established with providers
outside of the refugee resettlement network each contract year.

A minimum of four (4) meetings with providers within the refugee
resettlement network are conducted each contract year.

The Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan for any
performance measure(s) not on target to be achieved annually, in accordance
with Subsection 3.1, to the Department on a quarterly basis until such time all
measures are achievable annually, that must include:

3.2.1.
3.2.2.

The barrier(s) to achieving the measure(s) annually; and

A detailed plan to achieve the measure(s) annually that must include,
but is not limited to, a timeline.

DS
‘ s
S§S5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A02 Contractor Initials

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. Page 10 of 14

Date 4/12/2022



DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F4F985-67FB-4AD3-9048-67D65DF7BF28

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

13

Additional Terms

3.3.

Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.3.1.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.4. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

3.5.

3.4.1.

The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of
the language assistance services they will provide to persons with
limited English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10)
days of the contract effective date.

Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.5.1.

3.5.2.

3.5.3.

3.54.

All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, “The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services.”

All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution
or use.

The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.5.3.1. Brochures.

3.5.3.2. Resource directories.
3.5.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.
3.5.3.4. Posters.

3.5.3.5. Reports.

The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.
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3.6. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.6:1.

In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said
license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

3.7. Eligibility Determinations

3.71.

Sl oo

3.7.3.

3.74.

If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals
such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with
applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines,
policies and procedures.

Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such
times as are prescribed by the Department.

In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to support
an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with
all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the
Department may request or require.

The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder,
as well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an
application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be
informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department
regulations.
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4. Records

4.1.

4.2.

The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department,
and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and
original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders,
vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind
contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested
or required by the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price
limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder
(except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be performed
after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the
Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the Final
Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the
Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its
discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to
recover such sums from the Contractor.

5. Termination Report/Transition Plan

5.1.

In the event of early termination of the Agreement, the Contractor shall, within
15 days of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not limited to,
identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the
Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.
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5.2

5.3.

54.

The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to,
any information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the
Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and
revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to
clients receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to having
services delivered by another entity including contracted providers or the State,
the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in
the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected
individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed
communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as described
above.

6. Exhibits Incorporated

6.1.

0.2

6.3.

All Exhibits D through H and J are attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance
with the attached Exhibit |, Business Associate Agreement, which has been
executed by the parties and is incorporated by reference herein.

The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder Name: Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

Budget Request for: Refugee Haalth Promotion Program (Afghan)
Budget Period: 1/1/2022 - 6/30/22
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Exhibit C-6, Budget — Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder Name: Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

Budget Request for: Refugee Health Promotion Program (Health Promotion Services)

Budget Perlod: 7/30/21 - 8/30/22

Postage -
Subscriptions. .
‘Audit and Legal 50
Insurance 125
Board Expenses
IO‘ Saftware/Computer Expanse
10_Marketing/Communications
11._Staff Education and Training
12_Subcontracts/Agreements
13_Other (interpratationdransiation). 779

14_Indirect: 28.86% of salarles/wages - 5679 5679

Faderall ed) 5 e
TOTAL 20,167 5679 4847 s
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 19.51%
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Exhibit C-7, Budget - Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder Name: Ascentria Community Services, Inc.
Budget Request for: Refugee Health Promotion Program (Afghan) 174047619
Budget Perlod: 7/1/2022 - 6/30/23
1_Total Salary/\Wages 10,486 10,496 - - 10,498 10,496
2. _Employee Benefits 293 29% - - 2,93 29%
3_Consultants - - - - - s
4_Equipment. 100 - 100 - - 100 - 100
Rental - - - - - = = B
Repair and Maintenance - - . - - - 3
Purchase/ Depreciation 100 100 - - 100 100
S, &5 - - - - . -
Lab - - - - - 5 - - -
Pharmacy 3 . v = 3 = = 5
Medical - - - - s = 5
6. Travel 713 - 713 - - 18 713 - 713
7. 1100 - 1,100 - - o 3 1,100 - 1,100
8. Current Expenses - - - - - . - =
Telephone 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Postage 43 5 43 - 43 - 43
Audit and Legal 30 - L) - - - 30 - o)
Insurance 100 - 100 - - - 100 B 100
Board Expenses - - - - = - A
0. _Software/Computer Expanse - - - - - =
10_Marketing/Communications - - - - 03 3 > .
11._Staff Education and Training - & : = o 3 5 = =
12 _Subcontracts// nts - - - - S - - -
13._Other (8 hours interpratationransiation) - - - - - - - s
Chierd Housing Assistance - . 5 - - = B N
14_Indirect: 28.86% of salarles/iwages - 3,029 3,029 - - - s - 3025 3028
[(Federal negotinted) _ - - - : : —Ls = ; -
| TOTAL 15,720 3,020 18,750 s 5 PR I ] 15,720 302 18,750 ]
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 19.52%
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Bidder Name: Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

Budget Request for: Refuges Haalth Promotion Program (Health Promotion Services)

Budget Period: 7/30/22 - 6/3023

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

26239 - 26,239 - - - 26,239 = 26236
7.347 - 7,347 - - - 7,347 - 7347
160 - 100 - 5 3 100 S 100
S0 - 50 - - 50 - 50
1050 : 7050 : 5 05 - 0%
200 : 2086 : A 5 208, - 2008
7] B 572 - i = (373 P (57
10 - 10 = B 10 10
Aucit and Legal 3 A 75 = > 7 5 75
Insurance 150 150 - - 150 - 150
Board Expenses - - - = 3 - F
9 Software/Computer Expense - - . - ~ " = =
10._Marketing/Communications. - - - - - - A
11._Staff Education and ‘ﬂlﬂm - - - - -
12 Submmmlgmm - - - - - - - . -
13 Other ‘m‘ﬂgrﬂah’oﬂ-‘liﬂi!ﬂwl‘) 1,088 = 1,008 - - - 1008 - 1,098
T2 _indirect: 28.96% of salares/v: < 7573 7573 - 755 FAE)
o — - - - o : ;
TOTAL 38890 7573 (X5 5 - - 3 T 5463
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 19.52%
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Exhibit C-9, Budget — Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder Name: Ascentria Community Services, Inc.
Budget Request for: Regufee Health Promotion Program (Afghan)
Budget Period: 7/1/2023 - 913023
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Exhibit C-10, Budget - Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder Name: Ascentria Community Services, Inc.
Budget Request for: Refugee Health Promation Program (Health Promotion Servicas)
Budget Period: 7/30/23 - 9/30/23

8,560

1,837

2

F-3

6 Travel 400
|7 Occupaney 45
8. Current Expenses -
Tolephone 168
10

40

100

MEEREE TN
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13. Other (interpratatontransiation) 107 - 107 - - -
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NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT
NON-PROFIT INSTITUTIONS

INSTITUTION: March 4, 2021
Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

261 Sheep Davis Road, Suite A-1

Concord, NH 03301

File Ref: This document replaces the negotiated agreement dated June 16, 2020.
SUBJECT: The indirect cost rate(s) contained herein is for use in grants and contracts with the

U.S. Department of Justice and other Federal agencies to which 2 CFR 200 Subpart E applies,
subject to the limitations contained in Section II of this agreement.

SECTION I: RATES

Effective Period Applicable
Tvpe From To Rate Locations To
Final 07/01/2016 06/30/2017 33.23% All All Programs
Final 07/01/2017 06/30/2018 34.53% All All Programs
Final 07/01/2018 06/30/2019 27.43% All All Programs
Final 07/01/2019 06/30/2020 28.86% All All Programs
Provisional  07/01/2020 06/30/2022 28.86% All All Programs

*Base: Total Direct Salaries and Wages not including applicable fringe benefits, services and supplies.

*Treatment of Fringe Benefits: Fringe benefits applicable to indirect salaries and wages are treated as
indirect cost.

’llM

4/12/2022



DocusSign Envelope ID: 76F4F985-67F B-4AD3-9048-67D65DF 7BF28

SECTION II: GENERAL

A. LIMITATIONS: Use of the rate(s) contained in this agreement is subject to any statutory or
administrative limitations and is applicable to a given grant or contract only to the extent
that funds are available. Acceptance of the rate(s) agreed to herein is predicated on the
conditions:

(1) that no costs other than those incurred by the grantee/contractor via an approved
Central Service Allocation Plan were included in its indirect cost pool as finally accepted
and that such incurred costs are legal obligations of the grantee/contractor and allowable
under the governing cost principles (2) that the same costs that have been treated as
indirect costs are not claimed as direct costs; (3) that similar types of costs have been
accorded consistent accounting treatment; and (4) that the information provided by the
grantee/contractor which was used as a basis for acceptance of the rate(s) agreed to
herein is not subsequently found to be materially inaccurate.

B. AUDIT: Adjustments to amounts resulting from audit of the cost allocation plan upon
which the negotiation of this agreement was based will be compensated for in a
subsequent negotiation,

C. ACCOUNTING CHANGES: The rate(s) contained in this agreement are based on the
accounting system in effect at the time the proposal was prepared and the agreement was
negotiated. Changes to the method of accounting for costs which affect the amount of
reimbursement resulting from the use of this rate(s) require the prior approval of the
office responsible for negotiating the rate(s) on behalf of the Government. Such changes
include but are not limited to changes in the charging of a particular type of costs from
indirect to direct. Failure to obtain such approval may result in subsequent cost dis-
allowances.

D. FIXED RATE(S): The fixed rate(s) contained in this agreement is based upon an estimate of
the costs which will be incurred during the period for which the rate applies. When the
actual costs for such period have been determined, an adjustment will be made in a
subsequent negotiation to compensate for the difference between that cost used to
establish the fixed rate and that which would have been used were the actual costs

known at the time. os
[ i
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E. NOTIFICATION TO FEDERAL AGENCIES: Copies of this document may be provided to
other Federal offices as a means of notifying them of the agreement contained herein.

F. SPECIAL REMARKS: Federal programs currently reimbursing indirect costs to this
Department/Agency by means other than the rate(s) cited in this agreement should be
credited for such costs and the applicable rate cited herein applies to the appropriate
base to identify the proper amount of indirect costs allocated to the program.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC

Office of Justice Programs

Digitally signed by
P E LITA PELITA BALAKIT _/ /
Date: 2021.03.10 ; , 0
BALAKIT /Dtezaio = e cfo sliole=)
Signature / Title / Date Signature / Title / Date

i
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY
SERVICES, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on June 13, 2011.
further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 652197
Certificate Number: 0005748813

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 4th day of April A.D. 2022.

Do fodor

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

|, __Tara E. Browne . hereby certify that:
{(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of __Ascentria Community Services. Inc.
(Corporation/LL.C Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on _September 14 , 20_21 | at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.
(Date)

VOTED: That _Aimee Mitchell, Executive VP and Chief Community Svcs Officer (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of _Ascentria Community Services, Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: _March 25, 2022 _ -
Sigtatre of Elected Officer
Name: Tara E. Browne
Title: ~ Corporate Clerk / Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD
V

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
2/22/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER Sﬁ?w Courtney Mitchell
: FAX
Hays Companies Inc. f;‘,g”&,, Ext): (AIC, No):
133 Federal Street, 4th Floor EobREss: Courtney.Mitchell@bbrown.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Boston MA 02110 INSURERA: Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058
INSURED INSURER B : The First Liberty Insurance Corp. 33588
Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc. INSURER C :
11 Shattuck St. INSURER D :
INSURERE :
Worcester MA 01605 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:21-22 GL Auto UMB WC REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
INSR [ADDL [SUBR POLICY EFF_ | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
A CLAIMS-MADE E OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $ 100,000
PHPK2332417 10/1/2021 10/1/2022 | MED EXP (Any one person) $ 25,000
— PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000
X | poLicy o Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG | § 3,000,000
OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY {Ea aecidentt $ 1,000,000
A X | ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ALL OVNED SHEQULED PHPK2332413 10/1/2021 | 10/1/2022 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) [ $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 5
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
X | UMBRELLA LIAB X | occur EACH OCCURRENCE $ 10,000,000
A EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 10,000,000
DED | X RETENTION § 10,000 PHUB787516 10/1/2021 10/1/2022 (3
WORKERS COMPENSATION X | PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Vi [STATUTE T ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? D NIA
B |(Mandatory in NH) WC6-611-262252-011 10/1/2021 | 10/1/2022 | E |, DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE | § 1,000,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 1,000,000
A | Professional Liability PHPK2332417 10/1/2021 10/1/2022 | Each Occurence $1,000,000
Claims Made Retroactive Date: 1/1/2004 Aggregate $3,000,000

conditions

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
NH Department of Health and Human Services is included as additional insured as respects to General Liability where required by written contract, subject to policy terms and

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

"y

James Hays/MCROSB VUM

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS025 (201401)

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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' 261 Sheep Davis Road, Suite A-1, Concord, NH 03301

Ascentrla ascentria.org | 603.224.8111 | infc@ascentria.org

|
CARE ALLIANCE 1 Formerly Lutheran Social Services of New England
;

Mission statement:

We are called to strengthen communities by empowering people to respond to life’s challenges.

Vision statement:

We envision thriving communities where everyone has the opportunity to achieve their full
potential regardless of background or disadvantage. We become recognized leaders for
innovative community services. Together with our partners, we inspire people to help one

another reach beyond their current circumstances and realize new possibilities.

Empowering People. Strengthening Communities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester, Massachusetts

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ascentria Community
Services, Inc. and Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statement of activities, cash flows, and functional
expenses, for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

A member of CiA Ve an by arlarl i } N } o1 laadling. olak net P nande
N H CLA is an independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independen
@ exia accounting ¢ consulting firms. See nexia.com/member-firm N

International
(1)
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Board of Directors
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary as of
June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The supporting information shown on page 20 is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Maine Uniform Accounting and Auditing Practices for Community Agencies
(MAAP) and is not a required part the financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal
awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is also presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
supporting information required by MAAP and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 14, 2021, on our consideration of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary’s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Ww/d/mm% L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 14, 2021
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,380,964 $ 1,088,674
Accounts Receivable, Net of Estimated Uncollectible Accounts 5,193,640 4,618,979
Prepaid Expenses 100,926 84,975
Vehicle Inventory 133,728 128,893
Total Current Assets 9,809,258 5,921,521
ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE
Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party 997,007 841,000
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land 45,314 45,314
Building 85,798 85,798
Building Improvements 975,856 968,006
Leasehold Improvements 353,467 353,467
Furniture and Equipment 246,311 246,311
Vehicles 459,810 454,071
Equipment Held Under Capital Lease 499,374 499,374
Computer Equipment and Software 147,017 147,017
Total 2,812,947 2,799,358
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 2,031,576 1,901,549
Total Property and Equipment 781,371 897,809
DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES - 5,781
OTHER ASSETS
Deposits 112,192 101,892
Total Other Assets 112,192 101,892
Total Assets $ 11,699,828 $ 7,768,003

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

3)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Deferred Revenue
Due to State of Maine
Total Current Liabilities

DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

LONG-TERM DEBT, Net of Current Maturities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Without Donor Restrictions
With Donor Restrictions

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(4)

2021 2020
$ 33,943 $ 32,752
400,872 821,453
1,951,115 1,630,694
434,376 311,847
550,526 468,768
3,370,832 3,265,514
1,820,131 3,610,245
3,908,861 409,782
9,099,824 7,285,541
1,612,713 (443,382)
1,087,291 925,844
2,600,004 482,462
$ 11,699,828 $ 7,768,003
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020
NET ASSET REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTION
Grant and Contract Revenue $ 31,570,797 $ 30,973,224
Program Service Revenue 3,973,733 4,779,313
Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue 856,417 645,720
Donated Vehicles 2,467,954 1,818,418
In-Kind Donations 26,216 20,923
Net Assets Released from Restriction Used for Operations 43,096 201,348
Other Income 168,412 356,152
Total Revenues 39,106,625 38,795,098
EXPENSES
Salaries and Wages 18,397,039 19,179,196
Employee Benefits 4,106,391 4,297,125
Occupancy Costs 1,918,293 1,985,030
Operating Supplies and Expenses 368,797 463,657
Professional Fees 2,232,650 2,244,674
Garage Expenses 758,677 776,542
Donated Vehicle Expenses 1,063,000 924,000
Client Support Expenses 499,820 462,904
Translation Expenses 943,100 612,048
Repairs and Maintenance 444,249 332,791
Travel Expenses 654,494 794,550
Educational Events and Meetings 20,619 47,931
Management Fees 4,558,412 5,395,119
Taxes 521,856 567,842
Recruitment Advertising 936 10,004
Advertising 210,284 157,095
Licenses and Fees 4,380 5,094
Custodial Fees 5,438 12,994
Insurance 226,499 197,295
Interest 40,476 32,965
Bad Debt Expenses 39,312 52,051
Depreciation and Amortization 130,027 131,307
Total Expenses 37,144,749 38,682,214
OPERATING GAIN 1,961,876 112,884
NONOPERATING ACTIVITY
Gain on Sale of Property and Equipment - 10,349
Equity Transfers, Net (5,781) -
Total Nonoperating Activity (5,781) 10,349
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR
RESTRICTIONS $ 1,956,095 $ 123,233

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
®)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2019
Increase in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets
of Related Party

Net Assets Released from Restrictions - Operations
Change in Net Assets

BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2020
Increase in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets
of Related Party

Net Assets Released from Restrictions - Operations
Change in Net Assets (Deficit)

BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2021

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(6)

Without Donor With Donor
Restriction Restriction Total

$ (566,615) $ 1,062,379 § 495764
123,233 - 123,233
- 64,813 64,813
- (201,348) (201,348)
123,233 (136,535) (13,302)
(443,382) 925,844 482,462
1,956,095 - 1,956,095
- 204,543 204,543
- (43,096) (43,096)
1,956,095 161,447 2,117,542
$ 1512713 _$ 1,087,291 $ 2,600,004
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Program Services Supporting Services
Disability Child Total
Transportation and and Family In-Home Services For Total Management Support Total
Services Mental Health Programs Services New Americans Program and General Fundraising Services Expenses
Salaries and Wages $ 836,439 $ 5322401 $ 3,003,900 $ 5017,853 § 4,082,749 $ 18,263,342 $ 133,697 S - $ 133,697 $ 18,397,039
Employee Benefits 183,349 1,388,650 619,394 1,074,308 817,262 4,082,984 23,427 - 23,427 4,106,391
Occupancy Costs 97,286 610,342 450,123 42,738 495,027 1,695,516 222,777 - 222,777 1,918,293
Operating Supplies and Expenses 26,575 155,924 64,072 34,258 69,262 350,091 18,706 - 18,706 368,797
Professional Fees 7,745 397,058 1,240,048 = 532,551 2,177,402 55,248 . 55,248 2,232,650
Garage and Vehicle Expenses 758,677 - - - - 758 677 - - - 758,677
Donated Vehicle Expenses 1,063,000 - - - - 1,063,000 - - - 1,063,000
Client Support Expenses 422 35,341 240,023 3,900 219,695 499,381 439 - 439 499,820
Translation Expenses - 12,179 303 - 930,618 943,100 - - - 943,100
Repairs and Maintenance 38,066 68,404 109,793 61,444 141,295 419,002 25,247 - 25,247 444,249
Travel Expenses 199,944 171,189 80,495 18,608 183,803 654,039 455 - 455 654,494
Educational Events and Meetings kal 4,169 7,778 1,244 3,823 17.085 3.534 = 3,534 20619
Management Fees - - - - - - 4,558,412 - 4,558,412 4,558,412
Taxes - 513471 137 8,181 67 521,856 - - - 521,856
Recruitment Advertising 808 - - 115 - 923 13 - 13 936
Advertising - - - - - = 210,284 - 210,284 210,284
Licenses and Fees 3 160 1,660 250 272 2,345 2,035 - 2,035 4,380
Custodial Fees - - - - - - - 5438 5438 5,438
Insurance 6,283 72,201 42,471 44,228 55,995 221,178 5321 - 5,321 226,499
Interest - - - - - - 40,476 - 40,476 40,476
Bad Debt Expenses - 5,342 - 26,862 7,018 39,222 90 - 90 39,312
Total Before Depreciation
and Amortization 3,218,668 8,756,831 5,860,197 6,333,990 7,539,437 31,709,123 5,300,161 5438 5,305,599 37,014,722
Depreciation and Amortization 54,557 2,852 71,618 - 1,000 130,027 - - - 130,027
Total Functional Expenses $ 3273225 $ 8759683 $ 5931815 $§ 6,333.990 $ _7.540.437 $ 31,839,150 § 5,300,161 $ 5438 § 5305599 $ 37,144,749
==} —_— B e — =

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Program Services Supporting Services
Disability Child Total
Transportation and and Family In-Home Services For Total Management Support Total
Services Mental Health Programs Services New Americans Program and General Fundraising Services p
Salaries and Wages $ 936,410 $ 5,540,060 $ 3,001,095 $ 4,967,565 $ 4472719 $ 18,917,849 $ 261,347 S - 8§ 261,347 $ 19,179,196
Employee Benefits 204,976 1,482,702 559,926 1,098,877 894,519 4,241,000 56,125 - 56,125 4,297,125
Occupancy Costs 105,843 633,124 441,702 46,262 506,536 1,733,467 251,563 - 251,563 1,985,030
Operating Supplies and Expenses 32,973 165,585 88,680 45,825 114,506 447,569 16,088 - 16,088 463 657
Professional Fees 61,456 383,971 1,354,705 5,434 391,293 2,196,859 47 815 - 47,815 2,244674
Garage and Vehicle Expenses 775,461 916 165 - - 776,542 - * - 776,542
Donated Vehicle Expenses 924,000 - - - - 924,000 - - - 924,000
Client Support Expenses 19,826 31,647 200,925 64 210,412 462,874 30 - 30 462,904
Translation Expenses - 21,739 282 - 587,030 609,051 2,997 - 2,997 612,048
Repairs and Maintenance 26,444 38,069 116,558 53,938 71,180 306,189 26,602 - 26,602 332,791
Travel Expenses 191,640 201,678 136,374 43,072 214719 787,483 7,067 - 7,067 794,550
Educational Events and Meetings 2,067 9,036 8311 10,139 9,118 38,671 9,260 - 9,260 47,931
Management Fees - - - - - - 5,395,119 - 5,395,119 5,395,119
Taxes - 561,640 - 5,931 n 567,842 - - - 567,842
Recruitment Advertising 3,855 884 1,404 3,691 373 9,907 97 - 97 10,004
Advertising - - - - - - . 157,095 - 157,095 157,095
Licenses and Fees 1,691 70 2,696 250 - 4,707 387 - 387 5,094
Custodial Fees - - - & - - - 12,994 12,994 12,994
Insurance 8,014 57,285 34,105 41,583 51,611 192,598 4,697 - 4,697 197,295
Interest - = - - - - 32,965 - 32,965 32,965
Bad Debt Expenses - 3,863 - 37,684 10,503 52,050 1 - 1 52,051
Total Before Depreciation

and Amortization 3,294,356 9,132,269 5,946,928 6,360,315 7,534,790 32,268,658 6,269,255 12,994 6,282,249 38,550,907

Depreciation and Amortization 55,338 2,852 69,917 - 3,200 131,307 - - - 131,307
Total Functional Expenses $ 03349694 5 9133121 S 6016845 § 6360315 S 7537900 . 32300065 § 6260265 S 12004 S 6262249 § 36682214

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets $ 2,117,542 $ (13,302)
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization 130,027 131,307
Bad Debts 39,312 52,051
Gain on Sale of Property and Equipment - (10,349)
Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party (204,543) (64,813)
(Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Accounts Receivable (613,973) (802,450)
Prepaid Expenses (15,951) 2,496
Deposits . (10,300) 2,850
Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party 48,536 201,350
Vehicle Inventory (4,835) (58,601)
Due to Third Party - 543
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable (420,581) (100,937)
Accrued Expenses 320,421 575,524
Deferred Revenue 122,529 135,376
Due to State of Maine 81,758 406,296
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,589,942 457,341
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Property and Equipment (13,589) (148,710)
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets - 15,295
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (13,589) (133,415)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt 3,533,020 -
Payments on Long-Term Debt (32,750) (43,100)
Advanced from Related Parties, Net (1,784,333) 807,848
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 1,715,937 764,748
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 3,292,290 1,088,674
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 1,088,674 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 4,380,964 $ 1088674

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash Paid for Interest 3 40,476 3 32,965

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(9)
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NOTE 1

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (ACS) and Ascentria Community Care, Inc. (ACC)
(collectively, the Organizations) are corporations exempt from tax under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code as a public charity. Effective July 1, 2018, assets were
transferred to the Organization from Good News Garage — LSS, Inc. (GNG), related parties,
as a result of the combination of operations (see Note 14 for details). The Organizations
provide community service programs to children, families, refugees, and developmentally
disabled adults throughout New England. ACS is the sole corporate member of ACC.
Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc. (Ascentria) is a sole corporate member of ACS and also serves
as the management agent.

The Organizations provide the following programs:

Transportation Services — provides low-income individuals with transportation, such as
ownership of donated vehicles or access to shared rides, providing these individuals with
access to jobs and other economic opportunities, thus helping them to achieve economic
independence.

Disability and Mental Health -- Disability and Mental Health comprise of a wide variety of
programs that enable persons who are economically disadvantaged, have disabilities,
chronic illness, mental iliness, deafness and other challenges to become and remain
successful contributors to the communities in which they live and work. Support services
include: Access to medical resources, personal case management customized for
individual needs, 24/7 supervision and support in a residential setting for individuals
diagnosed with chronic and persistent mental iliness, and services offered to individuals
diagnosed with mental illness in the comfort and familiarity of their homes.

Child and Family Programs — through a variety of programs, the Organizations provide
services related to therapeutic foster care, unaccompanied refugee minors support,
housing for teen mothers and their children, housing for homeless, small group homes
serving teenagers, various support services and living accommodations for
developmentally, physically and mentally disabled adults and other various social
support programs.

In-Home Services — In-Home Care is a licensed Home Health Care agency that offers
comprehensive, non-medical personal care services to homebound individuals or those
with a disability. In-Home Care caregivers assist in light housekeeping, transportation to
appointments, recreational activities, bathing and personal care, meals, and exercise.
Additional non-medical services supervised by a registered nurse.

Services for New Americans — through this program, the Organizations seek to provide
resettlement, employment, case management, medical case management, English as a
second language classes, and other support services to refugees, asylees, and
immigrants.

Adoption — through this program, the Organizations provide services related to domestic
and international adoptions.
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NOTE 1

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements present the consolidated financial
position, results of operations, changes in net assets, cash flows, and functional expenses
of the Organizations. Material intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Method of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organizations have been prepared on the
accrual method of accounting. Accordingly, assets are recorded when the Organizations
obtain the rights of ownership or is entitled to claims for receipt and liabilities are recorded
when the obligation is incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organizations consider all short-term debt securities purchased with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded net of an allowance of expected losses. The allowance is
estimated from historical performance and projections of trends. Credit is extended to
customers and collateral is not required. When the accounts become past due, historically,
the Organizations have not charged interest to these accounts.

Inventory

Vehicles identified for the purpose of being delivered to program participants are valued
based on the average contract reimbursement rate for the reporting period which
approximates the lower of cost or net realized value.

Program vehicles expected to be sold at retail are recorded based on trade-in value.

Vehicles expected to be sold at wholesale are valued using the average sales proceeds for
all vehicles sold during the reporting period.

Vehicles are recorded as donated vehicles or donated vehicles — wholesale when the
vehicle is received.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Assets with an estimated useful life of more
than one year and a historical cost in excess of $2,500 are capitalized. The Organizations
capitalize acquisitions and improvements, while expenditures for maintenance and repairs
that do not extend the useful lives of the assets are charged to operations. Donated property
and equipment are recorded at its fair market value at date of donation. Gifts of long-lived
assets are reported as net assets without donor restriction support unless donor stipulations
specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to
acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support.

(11)
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NOTE 1

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment (Continued)

Absent explicit donor stipulation about how long those assets must be maintained,
expiration of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets
are placed into service. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of the assets.

Related Party Loans Receivable

The Organizations’ loan portfolio is comprised on unsecured related party loans receivable
that are noninterest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms, as detailed in Note 3, and
is considered a single portfolio class. Related party loans receivable are recorded net of an
allowance for expected loan losses (allowance). The Organizations establish an allowance
as an estimate of inherent risk in the Organizations’ loan portfolio. Although management
believes the allowance to be adequate, ultimate losses may vary from its estimates.

The allowance is established through a provision for loan losses that is charged to expense.
Loan losses are charged off against the allowance when the Organizations determine the
loan balance to be uncollectible. Proceeds received on previously charged off amounts are
recorded as recovery in the year of receipt. The Organizations determined that all related
party loans receivable are fully collectible as of June 30, 2021 and 2020.

The Organizations review the adequacy of the allowance, including consideration of the
relevant risks in the loan portfolio, current economic conditions, and other factors
periodically. The Organizations internally monitor related party borrowers to assess the risk
of nonperformance. The Organizations determine that changes are warranted based on
those reviews, the allowance is adjusted.

Net Assets
Net assets of the Organizations are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions — Net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed stipulations.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met
either by actions of the Organizations and/or the passage of time. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature when the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction
expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for
which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Net assets with donor
restrictions consist of $997,007 and $841,000 for beneficial interest in net assets of
related party and $90,283 and $84,844 other program restrictions for the years ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. There were no net assets invested in perpetuity
as of June 30, 2021 and 2020.

(12)
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NOTE 1

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Contract and Grant Revenue

The Organizations derive revenues through cost-reimbursable and unit rate federal and
state contracts and grants, which are conditional grants based on certain performance
requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Accordingly, the
Organizations are subject to the regulations and reporting requirements of the applicable
governmental and grantor agencies. Amounts received are recognized as earned and are
reported as revenue when the Organizations have incurred expenditures in compliance with
specific contract or grant provisions. As of June 30, 2021, there was $2,942,937 of
conditional contributions that have yet to be recognized in the consolidated financial
statements.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized in the consolidated financial statements if the services
enhance or create nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills, are provided by
individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided
by donation.

Donated Vehicle Revenue

Donated vehicle revenue includes vehicles that will be repaired and delivered to program
participants. They are valued based on the average contract reimbursement rate for the
reporting period. Additionally, donated vehicle revenue includes donated vehicles that do not
meet the needs of program participants. These vehicles are sold at auction and valued
based on average proceeds for the reporting period. Vehicle auction revenue is recognized
at a point in time when the item is sold. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, there was
$1,400,120 and $835,817, respectively, included in donated vehicles on the consolidated
statement of activities.

Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue

During 2021 and 2020, the Organizations received federal and state grants to provide
funding to respond to the COVID-19 pandemic. The Organizations received payments from
the CARES Act Provider Relief Fund (PRF), which is administered by the U.S. Department
of Health and Human Services (HHS). The Organizations received PRF payments and
recognized revenue in the amount of $587,171 and $184,667 during fiscal year 2021 and
2020, respectively. The revenues recognized are included in Federal and State Relief Grant
Revenue on the consolidated statements of activities. The PRF payments have terms and
conditions that the Organizations are required to follow, and these funds are subject to
reporting requirements and audit. The PRF payments are subject to potential recoupment by
HHS if it is determined that the funds were not spent in accordance with the terms and
conditions. Management believes the amounts have been recognized appropriately as of
June 30, 2021.

(13)
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NOTE 1

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue

The Organizations received payments from the state of New Hampshire, which is
administered by the Governor's Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery (GOFERR). The
Organizations received payments and recognized revenue in the amount of $172,112 and
$461,053 during the fiscal years 2021 and 2020, respectively. The revenues recognized are
included in Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue on the consolidated statements of
activities. The payments have terms and conditions that the Organizations are required to
follow, and these funds are subject to reporting requirements and audit. The payments are
subject to potential recoupment by GOFERR if it is determined that the funds were not spent
in accordance with the terms and conditions. Management believes the amounts have been
recognized appropriately as of June 30, 2021.

Additionally, the Organizations recognized payments from the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts Executive Office of Health and Human Services (EOHHS) of $97,134 as
revenues as of June 30, 2021. The revenues recognized are included in Federal and State
Relief Grant Revenue on the consolidated statement of activities.

Program Service Revenue

Program service revenue is from private pay services, translation services, and
interpretation services. Program service revenue is recognized as services are provided
over time. Payments received in advance of services are reported as deferred revenue.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs paid for by the Organizations
amounted to $184,067 and $136,170 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. Contributions of advertising are recorded at the estimated fair value on the
date of the contribution. The Organizations received contributions of advertising estimated to
have a value of $26,216 and $20,923 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

(14)



DocusSign Envelope ID: 76F4F985-67FB-4AD3-9048-67D65DF7BF28

NOTE 1

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The cost of providing the various programs and services are summarized on a functional
basis. Costs are generally identified as to program site, and are then allocated between
programs and supporting services that benefited based on total direct expenses. Salaries
and benefits are allocated on the basis of time and effort. The expenses that are allocated
are the portions of depreciation and interest expense that are not directly attributable to
specific programs or services. These expenses are allocated on a square footage basis.

Income Taxes

The Organizations are nonprofit corporations as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC
and are exempt from federal and state income taxes on related income pursuant to
Section 501(a) of the IRC.

Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with professional standards, assets and liabilities measured and recorded at
fair value are required to be categorized into a three-level hierarchy based on the priority of
the inputs to the valuation technique used to determine fair value. The fair value hierarchy
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).

If the inputs used in the determination of the fair value measurement fall within different
levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement. Assets and liabilities measured and recorded at fair value by
the Organizations are categorized as follows:

Level 1 — Inputs that utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that an entity has the ability to access.

Level 2 — Inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument. Fair values for these
instruments are estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar
characteristics, or discounted cash flows.

Level 3 — Inputs that are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically
based on an entity’'s own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity.
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NOTE 1

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement in its entirety. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There have been no
changes in valuation methodology used at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Change in Accounting Principles

Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU)
2018-13 Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework — Changes (o the
Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement. The ASU removes and modifies
disclosure requirements retrospectively for nonpublic entities. The ASU is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2019. The Organizations’ consolidated financial
statements reflect the application of ASU 2018-13 using a retrospective approach to each
period presented.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases, which is a comprehensive
lease accounting standard that requires entities that lease assets (lessees) to recognize the
assets and related liabilities for the rights and obligations created by the leases on the
balance sheet for leases with terms exceeding 12 months. The lessee in a lease will be
required to initially measure the right-of-use asset and the lease liability at the present value
of the remaining lease payments, as well as capitalize initial direct costs as part of the right-
of-use asset. The FASB issued ASU 2020-05, which deferred the effective date for the
Organizations until annual periods beginning after December 15, 2021; however, early
application is permitted. The Organizations are currently evaluating the impact this guidance
will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In September 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-07 on Topic 958, Presentation and
Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets. The FASB ASU
requires nonprofits to present contributed nonfinancial assets and gifts-in-kind as a separate
line item on your consolidated statement of activities. Additionally, gift-in-kind are to be
disaggregated into categories based on the type of gift received and additional qualitative
disclosures. The FASB ASU requires the new standard to be applied retrospectively for
annual periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The Organizations are currently evaluating
the impact this guidance will have on its consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the
accompanying financial statements to maintain consistency between periods presented. The
reclassifications had no impact on previously reported net assets.

Subsequent Events

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Organizations have evaluated
events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through December 14, 2021,
the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party

The Organizations record beneficial interest in assets that are held by Ascentria in the
amount of $997,007 and $841,000 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. For the years
ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Organizations had a loan payable, included in accrued
expenses, to the fund totaling $340,524 for both years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020.
Contributed assets are transferred to Ascentria by either the donor or the Organizations with
the approval of Ascentria. The donors did not grant variance power to Ascentria.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organizations have entered into the following transactions with related parties:

e The Organizations are charged annually by Ascentria for accounting, management
services, and overhead in monthly installments. Charges to operations for these
services totaled approximately $4,558,412 and $5,395,119 for the years ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. These expenses have been included on the
consolidated statements of activities under the caption Management Fees. In
addition, Ascentria is the central contracting entity for insurance coverage, and
insurance costs are then billed monthly to the Organizations.

e In connection with solicitihg and managing donations received, Ascentria charged
the Organizations a custodial fee. The custodial fee charged to operations was
$5,438 and $12,994 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

e The Organizations have various office space rentals to and from related parties and
vehicle rentals from related parties. Rental revenue from related parties amounted to
$122,592 and $137,545 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
Office space and vehicle related party rents amounted to $371,039 and $391,487 for
the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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NOTE 3

NOTE 4

NOTE 5

NOTE 6

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

¢ Related party loans that bear no interest and have no fixed repayment terms, are

as follows:
2021 2020
Due from Related Parties:
Lutheran Housing Corporation Brockton, Inc. $ - $ 5,632
Emanuel Development Corporation - 149
Total $ - $ 5,781
2021 2020
Due to Related Parties:
Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc. $ 1,820,131 $ 3,610,245
Total $ 1,820,131 $ 3,610,245

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

The Organizations participate in a defined contribution plan (the Plan) qualifying under IRC
Section 403(b) maintained by Ascentria. The Plan permits discretionary employer
contributions based on a specified percentage of annual compensation and employee
contributions. The Organizations had no pension costs charged to operations or
contributions to the plan during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The accounts receivable balance consisted of the following at June 30:

2021 2020
Accounts Receivable - Program Services $ 5,248,189 $ 4,663,528
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (54,549) (44,549)
Accounts Receivable, Net $ 5,193,640 $ 4618979

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organizations to concentrations of credit
risk consist principally of the following:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organizations maintain cash and cash equivalent balances in several federally insured
financial institutions in the same geographic area as well as a money market fund. During
the year, there may be times when uninsured cash is significantly higher and exceeds
federally insured limits.
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NOTE 6

NOTE 7

NOTE 8

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

Major Customer

The Organizations receive significant funding from various federal and state agencies. The
states, through which funding was received, include Massachusetts, New Hampshire, and
Maine. Approximately 84% of the Organizations’ revenue was received from state and
federal agencies directly or via pass through for both years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party

The Organizations’ unsecured gifts, held by a related party, amounted to $997,007 and
$841,000 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Accounts Receivable

The Organizations extend unsecured credit to its customers. Accounts receivable amounted
to $5,193,640 and $4,618,979 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The useful lives of property and equipment for purposes of computing depreciation are:

Building, Building Improvements, and Leasehold Improvements 510 40 Years
Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures, and Vehicles 31to 10 Years
Equipment Under Capital Lease 3to 5 Years
Computer Equipment and Software 3 Years

Depreciation and amortization (including amortization of equipment under capital lease)
expense charged to operations was $130,027 and $131,307 for the years ended June 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively.

MAINE MEDICAID LIABILITY

ACS provides services for Medicaid eligible individuals under terms of costs-based contracts
with the state of Maine. Accordingly, ACS provides for the estimated amount of settlements
with Medicaid as a liability. Final reimbursement is not determined until the state of Maine
accepts the cost report. The amount of the estimated liability was approximately $550,000
and $468,000 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Adjustments to
these estimates are reflected on the consolidated statement of activities under the caption
Grant and Contract Revenue to the extent not previously recorded in the year the final
settlement information becomes available to management.
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NOTE 9

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

LONG-TERM DEBT

On March 19, 2021, ACS and ACC each received a loan in the amount of $2,518,900 and
$1,014,120, respectively, to fund payroll, rent, utilities, and interest on mortgages and
existing debt through the Paycheck Protection Program (the PPP Loan). The PPP Loans
bear interest at a fixed rate of 1.0% per annum, with the first six months of interest deferred,
has a term of five years, and is unsecured and guaranteed by the U.S. Small Business
Administration. Payment of principal and interest is deferred until the date on which the
amount of forgiveness is remitted to the lender or, if the Organizations fail to apply for
forgiveness within 10 months after the covered period, then payment of principal and
interest shall begin on that date. These amounts may be forgiven subject to compliance and
approval based on the timing and use of these funds in accordance with the program. The
covered periods from March 2021 to September 2021, is the time that a business has to
spend their PPP Loan funds. Subsequent to year-end, the Organizations obtained full formal
forgiveness from the SBA for their PPP Loans and their associated accrued interest.

The Organizations are liable on long-term debt at June 30, 2021 and 2020 as follows:
Description 2021 2020

Note Payable
Term note payable to Bank of America face amount

$350,000, due August 7, 2033, secured by business

assets, payable in monthly installments of interest

only through August 2008 then monthly payments of

principal plus interest through maturity. Interest rate

is fixed at 7.105% annually. $ 165,537 $ 183,082

Mortgage payable to Bank of America face amount

$370,308, secured by real property owned by ACS at

two locations, and guaranteed by Ascentria, with an

interest rate of 7.01%, due August 2032. Monthly

principal and interest payments of $2,670. 244,247 258,306

Paycheck Protection Program note payable to People's

United Bank, totaling $3,533,020 for both ACS and ACC,

bearing interest at 1.00%, due May 2026, subject to

forgiveness by the U.S Small Business Administration if

certain performance barriers are met. 3,533,020 -

Capital Lease Obligations

ACS is obligated under various capital lease agreements
for-equipment and motor vehicles, expiring in 2020, with
a combined monthly payment of approximately $2,200

with interest rates ranging from approximately 4% to 8%. - 1,146
Total Long-Term Debt 3,942,804 442,534

Less: Current Maturities (33,943) (32,752)
Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Maturities $ 3,908,861 $ 409,782

(20)



DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F4F985-67FB-4AD3-9048-67D65DF7BF28

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE9 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Following are current maturities for the next five years:

Year Ending June 30, Amount
2022 $ 33,943
2023 1,008,451
2024 1,011,084
2025 1,014,400
2026 288,307
Thereafter 586,619
Total $ 3942804

Interest charged to operations for the above long-term debt amounted to $40,476 and
$32,965 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE 10 OPERATING LEASES
The Organizations lease land, buildings, equipment, and motor vehicles under various
operating lease agreements with terms of 1 to 3 years. Total rent and related expenses
amounted to $1,069,523 and $1,099,443 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,

respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under these agreements are as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Amount
2022 $ 529,347
2023 357,362
2024 83,035
Total $ 969,744

NOTE 11 CONTINGENCIES

A significant portion of the Organizations’ net revenues and accounts receivable are derived
from services reimbursable under Medicaid programs. There are numerous healthcare
reform proposals being considered on federal and state levels. The Organizations cannot
predict at this time whether any of these proposals will be adopted or, if adopted and
implemented, what effect such proposals would have on the Organizations.

A significant portion of the Organizations’ revenues are derived from services reimbursable
under Medicaid programs. The base year costs utilized in calculating the Medicaid rates are
subject to audit which could result in a retroactive rate adjustment for all years in which that
cost base was used in calculating the rates. It is not possible at this time to determine
whether the Organizations will be audited or if a retroactive rate adjustment would result.

(21)
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NOTE 11

NOTE 12

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

The receivables of the Organizations are listed as collateral under the line of credit
agreement of Ascentria. The outstanding balance is $2,290,000 and $2,500,000 as of
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Organizations use fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain
assets and liabilities to determine fair value disclosures. For additional information on how
the Organizations measure fair value refer to Note 1 — Organization and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies.

The following tables present the Organizations’ fair value hierarchy for those assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2021 and 2020:

2021
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Beneficial Interest in Net
Assets of Related Party: $ 997,007 $ - $ - $ 997,007
Total _$ 997,007 S - $ - $ 997,007
2020
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Beneficial Interest in Net
Assets of Related Party: $ 841,000 $ - $ - $ 841,000
Total $ 841,000 _$ - 3 - _$ 841,000

The following table provides a summary of changes in fair value of the Organizations’
Level 3 financial assets for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020
Contributions $ 204,543 $ 64,813
Payments (43,096) (201,348)

Since these funds are held by a third party that pools the Organizations’ interest with other
related organization’s assets, management has determined that the inputs are unobservable
and therefore, valued using a Level 3 methodology. The principal valuation technique is the
fair value of the underlying investments and the unobservable input is the term of
distributions.
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NOTE 13

NOTE 14

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

AVAILABLE RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
commitments. For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures
over a 12-month period, the Service considers all expenditures related to its ongoing
program activities as well as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities
to be general expenditures.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12
months, the Organization operates a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient
revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources. The
Organization considers the following to be available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures:

2021 2020
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,380,964 $ 1,088,674
Accounts Receivable, Net 5,193,640 4,618,979
Total Financial Assets 9,574,604 5,707,653
Donor-Imposed Restrictions (90,284) (84,844)

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs
for General Expenditures Within One Year $ 9,484,320 $ 5,622,809

COVID-19 IMPACT

In 2020, the World Health Organization declared the spread of Coronavirus (COVID-19) a
worldwide pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic is having significant effects on global
markets, supply chains, businesses, and communities. In response to the pandemic and in
an effort to supplement lost revenues and support increased costs incurred to secure
personal protective equipment, the federal and state governments issued stimulus payments
to the Organizations. See Note 1 for information on funding received by the Organizations in
2021.

COVID-19 may also impact various parts of the Organizations’ 2022 operations and
financial results including but not limited to additional costs for emergency preparedness,
disease control and containment, potential shortages of personnel, or loss of revenue due to
reductions in certain revenue streams. Management believes that the Organizations are
taking appropriate actions to mitigate the negative impact. However, the full impact of
COVID-19 is unknown and cannot be reasonably estimated as of June 30, 2021.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF DEPARTMENT AGREEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Total

Agreement Agreement Agreement Federal State Department
Department Office Number Amount Agreement Period Agreement Service Status E E Exp
DHHS:
DPS ADS-21-2672 $ 57,828 7/1/12020 - 06/30/2021 Rental Subsidy Final $ - $ 48,158 § 48,158
DPS MH2-21-518 32,430 7/1/2020 - 06/30/2021 Community Integration Final 31,431 31,431

Total $ - 8 79,589 § 79,589

Disclosures:
Is your agency required to have a Single Audit? Yes: X No:
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Federal Pass-Through Amounts
Assistance Pass-Through Entity ID Federal Provided
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor Program Title Listing Number Agency/Grantor Number Expenditures to Subrecipient
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Social
Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement & 93.566 ces Various $ 1957875 § 23249
Designee Administered Programs
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Office of Refugee and
Immigrants Various 520,233 :
Subtotal CFDA #93.566 2,478,108
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Social
Unaccompanied Alien Children Program 93.676 Services HHSP233201500046C 108,124 -
Lutheran Immigration and Refugee Service Various 1,829,710 o
Subtotal CFDA #93.676 1,937,834
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Social
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 Services 91,130 -
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Office of Refugee and
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Wilson/Fish Program 93.583 Immigrants Various 22,075 -
‘Commonwealth of Massachusetts Office of Refugee and
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Discretionary Grants 93.576 Immigrants Various 72,828 -
ARRA - Emergency Contingency Fund for Temporary 93.714 State of Vermont Department of Children and Families 03440-1445-21 45,663 -
Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) State Program
Total Department of Health and Human Services 4,647,638
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental 10.561 Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Agriculture CT WEL 44003064 LSS 0001A 374,567 -
Nutrition Assistance Program
Grant#03440-10061-21
State of Vermont Department of Children and Families FAIN 204VT40652519 130,000 o
Subtotal CFDA #10.561 504,567
Farm to School Grant Program 10.575 Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Agriculture CN-F25-FY20-PLN-MA-01 8,619 -
Total Department of Agriculture 513,186
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 N/A Various 161,596 o
Services for Trafficking Victims 16.320 N/A 2019-VT-BX-0107 288,064 =
Total Department of Justice 449,660
DEPARTMENT OF STATE
U.S. Refugee Admissions Program 19.510 Lutheran Immigration and Refugee Service Various 235,855
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Adult Education - Basic Grants to States 84,002 New | Depai 1t of ion project #87101 60,730 -
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Social
Rehabilitation Services Vocational Rehabilitation 84.126 Services SCMRC2007ASCENFY1700 560,551 ”
Grants to State
Total Department of Education 621,281
Total Federal Awards $ 6,467,620 $ 23,249

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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NOTE 1

NOTE 2

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal award activity of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary under programs
of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2021. The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net
assets, or cash flows of Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits
made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary has elected not to use the 10-percent de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

(26)



DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F4F985-67FB-4AD3-9048-67D65DF7BF28

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
\ A CLAconnect.com

l 4

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester, Massachusetts

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated statements of
financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 14, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community Services, Inc.
and Subsidiary’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s consolidated financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

A member of CrA R g F Neaxia [t — § b f e
ON ) CLA is an independent member of Nexiz International, a ieading, global network of independen
Q exla accounting and consulting firms. See nexia.com/member-firm-disclaimer for details
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Board of Directors
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and
Subsidiary's consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

WMW N

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 14, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester, Massachusetts

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the years ended
June 30, 2021. Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Ascentria Community Services,
Inc.’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those
standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Ascentria Community
Services, Inc.’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Ascentria Community Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.

A member of

ON [ CLA is an independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independen
O exia accounting and consulting firms. See nexia.com/member-firm-disclaimer for details
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Board of Directors
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2021-001. Our opinion on each major federal
program is not modified with respect to these matters.

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Ascentria Community
Services, Inc.’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Ascentria Community Services,
Inc.’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community
Services, Inc.’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a material weakness. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Board of Directors
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

d%xzmm% s

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 14, 2021
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Section | - Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued:

Internal Control over Financial Reporting:
e Material weakness(es) identified?

¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified
that are not considered to be
material weakness(es)?

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
e Material weakness(es) identified?
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified

that are not considered to be
material weakness(es)?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are

to be reported in accordance with
2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of Major Federal Programs

93.566

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Unmodified
yes X __no
yes X___none reported
yes X no
yes X no
yes X___none reported
Unmodified
X ___yes no

Refugee and Entrant Assistance
State/Replacement Designee Administered

Programs

$ 750,000

X

yes no
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Section Ill - Findings and Questioned Costs — Major Federal Programs

2021 -001

Federal agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Federal program title: Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement Designee Administered
Programs

Assistance Listing Number: 93.566

Pass-Through Agency: Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Social Services and
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Office of Refugee and Immigrants

Pass-Through Number(s): INTF0000009922120680; RFP-2018-OHE-01-REFUG-01;
Award Period: 10/1/2019-9/30/2020 and 10/1/2020-9/30/2021

Type of Finding: Other Matters; Internal Control over Compliance

Criteria or specific requirement: The Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR) requires semi-annual
and annual reporting, including a narrative and statistical information on program performance. Reports
are required to be sent to the ORR by the 15th day after period end.

Condition: Support was obtained for submission of semi-annual reports for each of the applicable
contracts, noting that out of the 20 submissions tested, there were 6 instances where there was either
no support provided for the submission or where the report was submissed late.

Context: For each applicable contract, there are semi-annual reporting requirements. Both
submissions during fiscal year 2021 were tested for each applicable contract.

Cause: The Organization did not have proper controls in place to ensure timely preparation and filing of
the report.

Effect: Required annual reports are not being prepared or filed timely, indicating the organization is not
in compliance with contract rquirements.

Repeat Finding: No

Recommendation: We recommend that the Organization implement internal controls to monitor filing
requirements to ensure timely preparation and filing of reports.

Views of responsible officials: There is no disagreement with the audit finding.
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Salhiya Ghani

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY
Fluent in Arabic and English.

Cultural Mentor/Broker Manager
Ascentria Care Alliance 01/31/2022

Essential Responsibilities:

Training, Hiring and Support

e Recruits, trains, and coaches cultural mentor/brokers/brokers from within the community to support
Neighborhood Support Teams, and other community settings, and ensures that the mentor is an appropriate match
for the population being served, and has an understanding of the varying languages, ethnicities, religions,
traditions, and other aspects of the culture.

e Alongside the cultural mentor/broker, develops culturally specific and appropriate training for Ascentria staff and
volunteers. Works with cultural mentor/brokers on the development of cultural orientation to the United States
specific to the cultural needs of the population being served.

Liaison, Cultural Guide and Mediator

¢  Supports cultural mentors/brokers to be knowledgeable in multiple realms: (1) the health/mental health values,
beliefs, and practices within their cultural group or community and (2) the health care/mental health system that
they have learned to navigate effectively for themselves and their families (3) educational settings (4) community
organizations etc.

e  Creates and maintains relationships with community leaders to foster cultural mentor/brokers, as well as ongoing
expertise in evolving needs of the community.

¢ Works with cultural mentor/brokers to ensure specific cultural needs are met during the resettlement process (i.e.
ensuring appropriate cultural items are present in housing, culturally appropriate foods are provided, etc.).

e Support cultural mentor/brokers on how to ease the historical and inherent distrust that many racially, ethnically,
and culturally diverse communities have toward health care organizations. Two elements are essential to the
delivery of effective services: (1) the ability to establish and maintain trust and (2) the capacity to devote
sufficient time to build a meaningful relationship between the provider and the patient/consumer

Cultural mentors/brokers as catalysts of change

¢ Identifies key community resources specific to the culture of the population being served, such as faith-based
groups or centers, culturally appropriate grocery stores, which need to be supported and accessed.

¢ Identifies opportunities for events or creative approaches meant to support positive relationships between a
community and refugee populations. Works with SNA Leadership and team to design and implement such efforts.

¢ Initiates and manages and/or directly executes small group meetings and/or workshops with community groups
interested in working with Ascentria.

e Assists cultural mentor/broker in navigating community politics and diversity and acts as a mediator if conflict
arises.

e Ensure that refugee clients are treated with respect, dignity and respect for privacy at all times.

Cultural Awareness and Humility

e  Ensure that all mentor/coaches and volunteers assess and understand their own cultural identities and value
systems;

e Ensures mentor/coaches recognize the values that guide and mold attitudes and behaviors; understand a
community traditional health beliefs, values, and practices and changes that occur through acculturation;

e Understand and practice the tenets of effective cross-cultural communication, including the cultural nuances of
both verbal and non-verbal communication;

Communities for People- Pawtucket, Rohde Island
Family Services care Coordinator. 03/2019- 2021

e Creating a child abuse and neglect prevention network in the cities of Central Falls, East Providence, and
Pawtucket



e Engage families referred to the FCCP program using the WRAP model principles and philosophy
e Attend all required WRAP and agency training and maintains WRAP certification

e Completes all required assessments and documentation in designated timeframes

e  Maintains program documentation and family records following agency and state guidelines

e Completes data collection as required by CFP and DCYF

e Provide comprehensive case management as identified in the family plans and meetings

e Accommodate the cultural, behavioral, medical, and any other diverse needs of the families at family team/home

meetings

e Identifies and maintains a working knowledge of available community resources to meet the individual needs of

each family and ensures the connection of families to culturally relevant community resources and supports
e Works with the FCCP team to identify funding or other support for all service needs of the families
e  Attend all required meetings

e  Provide on-call support.

Bethany Christian of Southern New England- Franklin MA

Social Worker 1/2018- 2/2019

e Conduct home visits, referrals, and other case management services for UC children and families.

e  Make and coordinate referrals when necessary to community services.

e Responsible for managing case files such as reports, client notes, and other pertinent material relevant to the case.

Complete paperwork within appropriate time frames.

e Conduct interviews, screenings, assessments, home visits, post-placement support/reports, and home studies as
needed.

e  Perform other duties as assigned

Arab American Family Support Center — Long Island City, NY.

Senior Case Planner 08/2015-12/2017

Comply with ACS requirements for face-to-face monthly contacts to assess the safety and well-being of the children at

home.

Assist within boarding and training with new staffs.

Provide the Casework counseling to families receiving preventive services.

Completing all documents required by ACS in timely manners such as FASP’S, Progress notes, and court reports.
Comply with all data entry requirements in the Promise and Connection.

Advocate for family linking them to needed services in the community.

Evaluate and assess the current family functioning including the child safety and home safety then formulating the
goal of the service.

Attend training provided by ACS /others organization as required.

Complete all ACS and internal forms required for case opening and closing.



Jewish Child Care Association - Brooklyn, NY 02/2014 -08/2015

Case Manager

e Provided Skill Building for child for functioning successfully in the home and community environments.

e Provided Planned Respite Services to offer the caregiver some personal break time where the child goes into the
community with a skilled and able worker familiar with the child's special needs.

e Provided Family/Caregiver Supports and Services to assist children and caregivers in acquiring, developing, and using
functional skills and/or techniques that enable the child to function in the home and community.

e  Provided Crisis Avoidance Management and Training and psychoeducation to address issues that disrupt the child and
family
Provided Immediate Crisis Response Services to respond immediately to a crisis.
Prevocational services assist with facilitating appropriate work habits, acceptable job behavior, and learning job
production requirements and educate and train the families on resources available.

International Justice Project, Newark, NJ 7/2012 - 4/2014
Community Outreach Leader (Pro Bono)

* Act as a liaison between IJP and the Darfurian community in Brooklyn and Philadelphia

* Assess needs of Darfurian families (particularly women and children) relating to ESL, physical and  mental health,
domestic violence, education, and legal services (like asylum and immigration)

+ Assist in formulating programs to best meet needs of Darfurian community in a culturally sensitive manner

* Act as translator and interpreter for Arabic-English

* Perform outreach and advocacy regarding the International Criminal Court in The Hague and victim rights

* Attend meetings on behalf of IJP at United Nations and elsewhere

Almazhar Community Center, Omdurman, Khartoum, Sudan 12/2011 -06/2012
Program Manager

* Designed and implemented projects focusing on development, microfinance, and income generation as well as health and
self-defense for women.

* Implemented and facilitated training on peacebuilding, conflict resolution, and human rights.

* Coordinated training activities for up to 50 project members in one year of 3-month training with 100% retention and
worked closely with Ministry of Social Development to create and support programs.

Ministry of Social Development, Khartoum, Sudan 11/2010 —11/2011
Social Worker

* Administered orientation to 300+ displaced and low-income clients before meeting with the minister to request finance or
insurance.

e  Establish and maintain case records including completing progress notes. Ensure all relevant case related information
is inputted into case files and corresponding databases.
e Served as liaison for ministries representing selected interns including preparing for internships.

* Monitored shelter maintenance, protection-based community activities, and psychosocial centers at 5+ sites including
reporting to minister on issues and needs of each center.

* Planned, organized, or coordinated the activities of community-based social service programs including games,
traditional cultural activities, health check-ups, family planning, and youth educational programming.

¢ Provide case management services, assessment and intake of participants to determine eligibility for services,
including responding to telephone and walk-in inquires, conduct pre-screenings; provide brief and full services and all
related aftercare services.

EDUCATION, TRAINING & CERTIFICATION

e Master Degree in Social Work, 05/2020 to present
Rhode Island College, RI
¢ New York State Office of Children and Family Services Certifications, 2014
(Crisis Services, Respite Services, Family/Caregiver Support Services, and Skill Building)
e Certificate in Community Health Work, 04/2014 — 09/2014
Make the Road New York
e  Master's Degree in Sociology, 02/2009 — 03/2012
Alneenain University, Faculty of Post Graduate Studies, Khartoum, Sudan.
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Refugee and Afghan Mental Health

1/1/2022 6/30/22

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Salhiya Ghani Cultural Wellness Coordinator $52,478.40 50.00% $19,679

7/1/2022 6/30/23

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Salhiya Ghani Cultural Wellness Coordinator $52,478.40 50.00% $26,239

7/1/2023 - 9/30/23

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Salhiya Ghani Cultural Wellness Coordinator $52,478.40 50.00% $6,560
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 0330!-5&51

Lori A. Shibinette 603-271-9200  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9200
Commissioner Fax: 603-271-4912 TDD'Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.oh.gov
Lori A. Weaver '
Deputy Commissioner

November 3, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to
amend existing Sole Source contracts with the vendors listed below for services and activities to
- promote the health and well-being of refugees resettied in New.Hampshire,.by.increasing_the total
price limitation by $9,375 from $225,000 to $234,375 and by extending the completion dates from
August 14, 2023 to September 30, 2023 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on May 6, 2020, item #15.

Vendor Name | Vendor | Area Served Current Increase Revised
: Code Amount | (Decrease) Amount
Ascentria '
y | Community 222201 | Concord, NH $112,500 $4,687.50 |- $117,187.50
Services, Inc.
International : _
Institute of New | 177551 m”"“es“‘" $112,500 $4.687.50 |  $117,187.50
England, Inc.
Total: $225,000 $9,375 $234,376

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022, 2023, and 2024, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified. -

05-95-95-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY,

REFUGEE SERVICES

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
- in providing opporiunilies for ¢itizens lo achieve health and independence.
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His Excancncy Govemnor Christopher T. Sununu

and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

o | et | cwsete | Wby | Gl | Gaeme | Gt

2021 | 102-500731 C“’,’:g;gf’cf” 42200012 | $65,421 $9.375 $74.796

2022 | 102:500731 | SRR TO" | 42200012 | $75,000 $0 $75.000

2023 | 102500731 C‘,’,’:g;"stié“ 42200012 | $75,000 so | $75.000

2024 | 102500731 Cf,':g;";ﬁ:”’ 42200012 |  $9,579 $0 $9,579
Total | $225000 | $9375 | $234,375

EXPLANATION

. This request is SOIe Source because the contracts were originally approved as sole

Contractors listed above are the only Contractors that possess the comprehensive clnent
information and cultural expertise required to manage client cases and address the complex,
interrelated health and social needs of each individual.

The purpose of this request is to add additional funding for State Fiscal Year 2021 and
change the contract period date from August 14, 2023 to September 30, 2023 to align with the
federal grant period. The Federal Grant Office of Refugee Resettlement requested the contracts
align with the awarded funding and funding period.

Refugees who have resettled to New Hampshire will be served through these contracts.
Approximately 500 individuals will be served over the duration of the entire contract terms.

The Contractors will ensure services include scheduling and coordinating medical and
mental health appointments; accompanying clients to medical appointments; providing and
facilitating transportation to appointments; and ensuring interpreter services are acquired for all
appointments, as necessary.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures:

e 100% of all heaith-related orientations and workshops/trainings shall be provided
throughout the project period, as necessary.

¢ 100% of newly arrived refugees and those who have been in the United States two
(2) years of less shall be prioritized.

e 100% of all written materials and resources produced shall be identified and
prioritized for translation as applicable.

e 100% of all interpreter services shall be coordinated consistently and reéulariy
throughout the project period.

o B80% of refugees shall express an increased knowledge about health insurance
’ requirements including how and where to enroll in health insurance. .
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundil
Page Jof 3

« 80% of adults shall express increased knowledge about accessing and navigating
the U.S. health care system.

e B0% of adults will know how to make and keep medical appointments.

e 80% of adults will know how to use public, Medicaid, and/or appropriate
transportation to get to medical appointments.

¢ 80% of adults shall demonstrate increased knowledge about at least one health
topic.

o 100% of clients with health needs beyond initial exam shall be scheduled for follow-
up care.

o 100% of clients with mental heaith needs beyond initial exam shall be scheduled
for follow-up care within 60 days of arrival.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend
the agreements for up to three (3) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Govemnor and Council approval. The
Department is exercising its option to renew services for one (1) month and fifteen (15) days of
the three (3) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department
will be out of compliance with the Office of Refugee Resettlements request to align the funding
and contract period with the grant. Refugees with complex health conditions may not receive the
follow-up medical care they need in a timely and culturally and linguistically appropriate manner,
and refugees may not gain the knowledge and skills they need to navigate the U.S. health care
system independently and to manage their health and health conditions.

Area served: Statewide .

Source of Funds: Administration for Children and Families 100% CFDA# 93.576
FAIN#90RX0280.

in the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette .
“Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HiJMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS
SFY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

05-95-95-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, REFUGEE SERVICES
100% Federal Funds

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. Vendor #222201
Stat\t{aelzfcal Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) |Revised Amount
2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 32,812.00 | § 4,687.50 37,499.50
2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00 | § - 37,500.00
2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00 | § - 37,500.00
2024 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 4,688.00 | $ - 4,688.00
Sub Total $ 112,500.00 | § 4,687.50 117,187.50

International Institute of New England, Inc. Vendor #177551
StatYeeFairscal Class / Account Class Title ~ Job Number |Current Amount  |Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount
_ 2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 32,609.00 | $ 4,687.50 37,296.50
2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00 | $ - 37,500.00
2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 5 37,500.00 | $ - 37,500.00
2024 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 4,891.00 [ $ - 4,891.00
Sub Total 42200012 $ 112,500.00 | $ 4,687.50 117,187.50

Attachment - Bureau of Behavioral Health

Financial Detail
Page 1 of 1

Overall Total] $

225,000.00] $

9,375.00] $§ 234,375.00|
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

_ State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

This 1% Amendment to the New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program contract (hereinafter
referred to as “Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health
and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State” or "Department”) and Ascentria Community
Services, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor™), a nonprofit with a place of business at 14
East Worcester Street Suite 300 Worcester, MA, 01604.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 6, 2020, (Item 15), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
.conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A Section 1.2, the
Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
September 30, 2023.

2. Form P-37, General Provisians, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$117,187.50.

3. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budget Sheet by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-1, Budget Sheet
Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

@,

-Ascentria Community Services, Inc. Amendment #1 " Contractor Initials
11/6/2020

§5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A01 Page 10of 3 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DocuSigned by:
11/12/2020 ‘ Ann H. N. Landry

Date Name: Ann H. N. Landry

Title: ; .
Associate Commissioner

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

‘ DocuSigned by:
11/6/2020 @M L’JV\MU»’
= 24A7AAR 1 TASAES .
Date Name: Jeffrey Kinney
Title: chief of staff & External Relations

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. Amendment #1
§S5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A01 Page2of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Doculigned by:
11/12/2020 , ‘ 4{%&.

Date : Name: Catherine Pinos

Title: Attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. Amendment #1

§8-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A01 Page 3 of 3
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 15 @dj

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

Laori A. Shibinette ) ' ' 603-271-9200  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9200
Commissioner Fax: 603-271-4912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

- March 20, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTIO

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Serwces Oﬂ' ice of the Commissioner, to enter
into sole source agreements with the vendors listed below to provide the services and activities to
promote the health and well-being of refugees resettled in New Hampshire, in an amount not to exceed
$225,000, effective August 15, 2020 or upon date of Governor and Executive Council approval,
whichever is later, through August 14, 2023. 100% Federal Funds. :

Vendor Name - Vendor Location Contract Amount
Number .
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. 222201 Concord, NH’ $112,500
International Institute of New - ‘
England Inc. 177551 Manchester, NH $112,500
g he N T o 45 T Total: . ]
e Nk gt ota $225,000

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2021 and anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years
2022 and 2023 and 2024, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgels, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95-95-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, REFUGEE SERVICES

Fslt:ctzi Class/Account Class Title Job Number | Total Amount

Year )

2021 102-500731 - | Contracts for Prog Svc ~ | 42200012 $65.421

2022 102-500731 - Contracts for Prog Sve 42200012 $75,000

2023 ~102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 42200012 $75,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 42200012 $9.579
m Y e Total T $225,000



DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F4F985-67F B-4AD3-9048-67D65DF7BF28

DocuSign Envelope 10: 4708A483-6820-44D0-BC2B-3C1DE 1554104

His Excellency, Govemnor Chrislopher'T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council
Page2 of 3 '

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the vendors listed above are the only entities who possess
the comprehensive client infermation and cultural expertise required to manage client cases and address '
the complex, interrelated heaith and social needs of each individual. Moreover, because Health
‘Promotion services build upon and flow from the services provided under the Reception and Placement
and Case Coordination grants, contracting with these entities ensures that no clients fall through the
cracks, and that there is continuity of care with no gaps in services. .

The purpose of this request is to provide services and activities that promote the heaith and
wellbelng of refugees resettled in New Hampshire. Services include, but are not limited to health’
orientations; health education; medical and mental health case management; and health provider
education. The services are provided in an effort to reduce gaps in services and lo ensure refugees
obtain all necessary medical and mental health services beyond theé initial health screening.

Approximately 500 individuals will be served over the duration of the entire contract term.

The Contractors will ensure services include scheduling and coordinating medical and mental .
health appointments; accompanying clients to medical appointments; providing and facilitating
transportation to appointments; and ensuring interpreter services are acquired for all appoiniments, as
necessary. . .. . . . _

The Contractors will be providing these. services to refugees; resettled asylées; and secondary
migrants who have been in the United States for five years or less, with a focus on individuals who have
been in the United States two (2) years or less as well as any victims of trafficking, (SIV)'s or other (ORR)
designated eligible recipients arriving in the service areas: Co =2 !

Refugee Health Promotion services provided by the Contractors will

(1) :Pro'mote the health literacy of refugees to enable them to access and navigate the U.S.
Health Care System independently, : : .

(2) Ensure refugees obtain all needed medical and mental health servicas in a timely and
culturally appropriate manner; . :

(3) lnérease refugee access to affordable heaith care over the long term; and
(4)  Assist refugees become self-sufficient and decrease the need for public assistance. .

The Department will monitor the effectiveness of the Contractor and the delivery of services
required under this agreement using the following performance measures: - ’

o 100% of all heallh-relai,ed origntations and workshops/irainings shall be- provided
throughout the project period, as necessary. _ ‘

o 100% of all newly arrived refugees and those who have been in the United States two (2)
years orf less shall be prioritized. T

o 100% of all written materials and resources produced shall be identified and-prioritized for
_ translation as applicable. :

o 100% of all interpreter services shall be coordinated i:onsistently and rengarly throughout
the project period. e ,

o 80% of refugees shall express an increased knowledge about health insurance
" requirements including how and where to enroll in health insurance.

o 80% Number of adults with increased knowledge about accessing and n.avigating us.
Health system : ' ;
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‘His Excallency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councll :
Page 301 3

80% Number of adults who know howto make and keep health appointments

80% Number of adults who can use public, Medicaid and/or appropriate transportation
to get to medical appointments : '

. o 80% Number of adulls who demonstrate increased knowledge about at least one health
topic ‘ ' .
o 100% Number of clients with health needs beyond initial exam scheduled for follow-up
care . . - C

o 100% Number of arrivals with mental health needs scheduled for appointment within 60
days of arrival '

As referanced in Exhibit.C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, of these agreements,
the parties have the option’to extend contract services for up to three (3) additional years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the

- Governor and Executive Council. - ' S .

Should the Govemor and Executive Council not authorize this request, refugees with complex
_health conditions may not receive the follow-up medical care they need in a timely, culturally and
linguistically appropriate manner. The inability of refuges to access necessary health care could result
in a lack of understanding and managing their health and health conditions. ' S

. Area served_: Statewide.
Source of Funds: Administration for Children and Families 100% CFDA# 93.576 FAIN#

"In the event that the Fe_déral (or Other) Funds become no.longer available, ‘General Funds will
not be requested to support this program. ' : . . '

e

¢

Respectfully submitted,

e

. Lori A. Shibinette
. Commissioner

Thc.Drporlnl!ul of Health'and Mumaon Services' Mission is lo join contmunities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to ochieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SFY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

06-95-95-422010-78220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, REFUGEE SERVICES
100% Fede_ral Funds

Ascentria CommunySar\)ices, Inc. Vendor #222201
State Fiscal Total Contract
Vst Class / Account ;Iass Title Job Number Akt
2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 32,812.00
2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37.500.00
2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00
2024 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 4,688.00
Sub Tota! $ . 112,500.00
International Institute of New England, Inc. Vendor #177551
State Fisca! Current Modified
Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Budget
2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 32,609.00
2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00
2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00
2024 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 4.891.00
Sub Total . 42200012 $ 112,500.00
225,000.00]

Attachment - Bureau of Behavioral Health

Financial Detail
Page 1of 1

Overall Total| $
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (verston 12/11/2019)

Subjecl New Hampshlrc Refugee Halth Promotion Program (S5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01)

ngﬁ ‘nus agreement and 8l of its annchmenu shall become public upon ‘submission to Governor end
Executive Council for nppmvd Any informalion that-is private, confidential or proprictary must
be clearly ndcnul' ed Io the agency and n;reed toin vrumg pnot 1o sngmng the contract.

’ AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Coniractor hereby mutvally sgree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

)i lDﬁ_ENTIP!C’QIION. .
1.1 Siwste Agency Name . T T T T 112 Sulte Agency Address.
New Hampshire Dep;tnmenr of Health end Human Services | 129 Pleasant Street

. -1 Concord, NH 03301-3857
1.3 Contractor Name - — 1.4 Conlractor Adélnm e = .-

Ascentria Community Services, Inc

14 East Worcester Street Suite 300
Worcester, MA, 01604 USA

1.5 C;ﬁlmclto'r.Plluonc ‘. ) 1.6 ACCOUMNL.IITIM - 1.7 Compleuon Date l 3 Price lelmnon
" Number . ]
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the sgency identified in block 1.1

("State™), engages coniractor identified in block 1.3
(“Contractor™) to pecform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more panicularly
described in the anached EXHIBIT B whlch is incorporated
herein by reference (“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement 10 the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Siate of New Hampshire, if applicable,

this Agreement, and all obligations of the partics hercunder, shall -

become effective on the date the Qovernor and Exccutive
Council spprove. this Agreement a3 indicated in block 1.17,
" "unless no such spproval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the'date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency s shown in block 1.13 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior 10 the

Effective Date, a!] Services performed by the Coniractor prior to”

the Effective Date shall be pecformed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
efTective, the Siate shall ‘have no liebility to the Contractor,
including  without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7,

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT,

Notwithsianding eny provision of this Agreement 10 the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued approprlnnon of
funds sffected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces; eliminates or otherwise “modifies the
appropriztion or availability of funding for this Agreement and

“the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in .

pant. In no event shall the State be lisble for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated (unds. In the
event of 8 reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
Stete shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, end shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contracior notice of such reduction or termination.
_ The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
. eccount or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
FAYMENT. .
5.) The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment

are identified and mare particularly described in EXHIBIT C

which'is incorporated herein by reference.

. 5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whaiever nature incurred by the Contracior in the

performance hereof, and shall'be the only and the complete

. . Page2of4

compensation (o the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractar other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or perminted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7 or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement 10 the
contriry, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation se1 forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS -
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT.
OPPORTUNITY.

* 6.1 In connection wilh the performance.of the Semces the

Contractor shall comply with all epplicable statutes, faws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authoritics which impose any obligation: or duty upon the .
Contractor, including, but aot limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opponunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by manies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with eny rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issve to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply wuh all applicable mullectual
property laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreemcm the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion creed, nge, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take a!‘frmuwe action to
prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to_any of the Contrector's books, records and sccounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and condmons of ﬂus
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provnde all persoanel

‘nécessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that

all personnel engaged in-the - Services shall be qualified 10
perform the Services, -and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under a!l applicable Jaws.

7.2 Unless olherwise duthorized.in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months afer the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and |
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person; firm or
corporation ‘'with whom it is engaged in & combined effort 10
perform the Secvices to hire, eny person who is a State employee -
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or- performance of -this Agreement.  This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specificd in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the evént of eny
dispute conceming the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer’s decision shall be finsl for the State.

Contractor Initials
Date 3 123
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.) Any on¢ or more of the following acts or amissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Default™):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any rtpon required hcrtund:r, and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of:ny Event of Defauli, the State may
. take any one, or mare, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contracior & wrilten notice specifying the Eventof
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
. o greateror lesser specification of time, thirty (30) ddys from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default'is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the,
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor 8 written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to' be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such'notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a writien notice specifying the Event of
Defeult and set. off against any other obligations the State may
. owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
. any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminatc the
Agreement and pursue eny of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.
8.3. No failure by the State 10 enforce any provisions hereof afier

any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with*

regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Eyvent of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Evenl of
Dcrauh on the pan of the Contractor.

9. TE RM INATJON. )

9.1 Nowwithstanding paragraph 8, the Siate may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agrctmem for any reason, in whole or
in par, by thiny (30) dnys written notice to the Contractor that
the Stale is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Ageeement for .

ony reason other than the completion of the Services, the

Contractor shall, 21 the Stete's discretion, deliver to the

Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days afiec the date
of termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
deiail all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copics of the Termination Report shall
be identical 1o those of any Final Report described in the antached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, a1 the Staie's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within |5 days of notice of early termination, develop and

-Page 3 of 4

submit to the State a Tmnsmon Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATAJACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION, '

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the 'word “data” shall mean all

information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or scquired or developed by reasan of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
represeniations, compuler programs, computer priniouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documcnts al) whether
finished or unfinished. :

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and -
shall be returned 10 the State upon demand or upon termination

" of this Agreemeat for any reason.’

10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be govemned by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior wrilten approval of the Siale.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inthe

performance of this Agreement the Conlractor is in all respects

an independent contractor, and is neither an agent norf an

employee of the State. Neithér the Contractor nor any of its’
officers, employees, agents or members shall have suthority to

bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contrector shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State a1 least fiRtcen (15) days prior to

. the assignment, and & written consent of the State, For purposes

of this paragraph, a Change of Control. shall “constitute
assignment.  “Change of Control” means (3) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifly percent (50%) or more of the
voling shares or similar equily interests,’or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor,

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contrecior without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts ond assignment
agreemenis and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in & subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a

party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against eny and all claims,
liabilities-and costs for any personal injury or property damages, '
patentor copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State,.its officers or employces, which arise out of (or which
may.be - claimed to srise out of) the acts or omission of the

Contractor Initialéj ;
" - Date
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute & waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved o the
Siste. This covenant in paregraph 13 shall survwe the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14,1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain znd
continvously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
. following insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
fess than $1,000,000 per occurence and $2,000, 000 agg-rcgm
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject 1o subparagraph 10.2 hecein, in an amount not fess than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph (4.1 herein shal) be
on policy forms and endorsernents approved for use in the State
of New Hampshxr\: by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.

143 The Contractor shall fumnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successar, a centificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement,

Contractor shal! also fumish 1o the Comnu:nng Officer identified

in block 1.9, or his or her successor, céntificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The centificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shallbc attached and'are incorporated herein by
: rcfcrcncc

. WORKERS' COMPENSAT!ON
IS 1-By signing this agreement, the Conlteactor agrees, ccmﬁes
end warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapier 281-A (“ilorkers’
Compensation ™).
15.2 .To the-extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements

of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and

require any subconiractor or essignee 10 secure end mainiain,

payment of Workers' Compensalion in connection ~with”

ectivities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall fummish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any epplicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached end arc incorporated herein by reference. The Siate

shall .not be responsnble for payment of any Workers'

Compensatian premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or ony subcontracior or employee | of Contractor,
which might arise under appl:cablc State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with ‘the
performance of the Services under this Agrecment.

Page 4 of 4
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16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, posiage prepaid, in & United States
Post Office ‘addressed to the partics at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT, This Agrtemem may be amended, waived
or discharged .only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto end only afer approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Govemor and Exccutive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is réquired
under the circumstances pursuani to State liw, rule or palicy.

13. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be govemed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors -
and assigns. The wording used.in this-Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual inteat, and no rule
of coastruction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any ections arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and -
maintained in New Hampshire Superior.Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof,

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the evem of & conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A)and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control,

20. 'THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any.third partics and this Agreement shall' not be

. construed 1o confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are

* for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein’

shall in no way be held to explain, modify amplify or aid in the
interpretation, conurucnon or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement, :

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or medifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are nncomomcd
herein by refe(ence ' .

23. SEVERABILITY. [nthe event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a count orcompc:em _'unsdncuon 10 be
contrary to any state or federa) law, the remaining provisions of
this Agrecmcnt will remain in full force and effect.

,14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. Th:s Agreement, which may be

‘executed in & aumber of counterparts, cach of which shell be

deemed en orginal, consmu(es the entire agreement and -
undersianding bdetween the partics, and supersedes all prior

agreements and undcrsland:ngs with respect to the subject matter

hereof.

_ Contractor Initials
Date !
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.-Naw Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Now Hampshire Refugee Health Promoticn Program

-EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDABQCONTMCT PROVISIONS |

1. Revlslons to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1

1.2,

1.3.

Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 341, Eﬂeclrve DatelCompIetron of Services, is
‘amended as follows:

3.1.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement ‘to the contrary, and
subject to the appraval of the Governor and Executive Council of the

. State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and

all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on August
15, 2020. .

Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by addrng.
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. . The parties may extend the Agreement for up to three (3) additional years.

from ‘the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of

- services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the

Governor and Executive Councrl

Paragraph 12, Assrgnmenvoelegarson/Subconlracts is amended by adding .

-subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

'12.3. Subcontractors ‘are subject to the same contractual conditions as the

5§5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01 Exhibit A - Ravislons 1o Standard Contract Provisions Conlractor Inttials

QUOreSN121019

Contractor.and-the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. ‘The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action ‘shall be managed if the subcontractor's

. performance s - inadequate. The Contractor shall ‘manage the

subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective

. action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with

a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequale subcontractor performance

Page 10l Date -
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New Hampshire Departmenl of Health and Human Services
New Hnmpshlre Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services
1. Stammen! of Work

1.1.The. Contractor shall provide services and activities that promote the heallh and

wellbeing of designated eligible refugees. Services shall include, but are not -

" limited to, medical and mental health case management, health orientations,

health education, and heaith’ provider education. Services will ensure that

_ - refugees: (1) obtain needed health (including mental health) care beyond the

initial health screening; and (2) gain the basic knowledge and skills they need to .

navigate the U.S. health care system and to manage their own health and heaith

care independently. Services will help to increase refugee access to health care
and to reduce gaps in services.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are dehvered slatewude with a focus on the
geographic areas of Concord, Manchester, and Nashua.

© 1.3.The Contractor shall designate a case manager to .provide health (including
mental health) case management services to ensure refugees with complex
heaith conditions obtain needed health care beyond the mmal health exam,
mcludmg appropriate health msuranoe

1.4.The Contractor shall- ensure case management services |nclude but are not .
limited to:

1.4.1. Scheduling and coordmatlng medical and mental health appomtments
. 1.4.2. Accompanying clients to medlcalappomtmems

1.4.3, Provndmg and facilitating the provnsion of transportation to and from the
appointments; .

1.4.4. Ensuring appropriate mterpreter services are avallab|e as necessary
during appointments; and

1.4.5. Assisting refugees with obtaining appropnale health insurance.

1.5.The Contractor shall ensure a uniform, continuous and timely transition of case
- management services from the initial refugee health examination to all heeded
follow-up care beginning after the completion of the initial refugee health
.examination and/or on day ninety one (91) of resettlement (whichever is sooner), -
to ensure there are no gaps in services and continuity of care.

1.6. The Contractor shall schedule an initial dental appountmenl for all refugee children .
(age 0-18) within six (6) months of arrival. :

1.7.The Contractor shall conduct culturally and linguistically sensitive  health
orientations which shall include, but not be limited to the following topics:

1.7.1. Navigating the U.S. health care system.
1.7.2. Health insurance, including Refugee Medical Assistance,

$8-2021-0OHE-01-REFUG-01 Contracior Initials .~
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampahln Refugee Health Promotion Program )

EXHIBITB .

1.7.3. Privacy and consent laws.

1.7.4. The right to language assislance in health care settings and the role or
interpreters. :

1.7.5. Transportation options for medical appointments, mcludmg but not limited
to: :

-1.7.5.1. Public transportation training; ar'\d
. 1.7.5.2. Aranging Medicaid transportation.
1.7.6. Understanding types of health care providers including but not hmntad to:
1.7.6.1. anary care providers; -
1.7.6.2. Specialists; and
1.7.6.3. Phammacists.

1.7.7. Underslanding types of health care (e.g., preventive, urgent emergency}
and when, where and how to access each type.

1.7.8. Understanding availability of and when, where and how to access
mental/behavioral health serwces including treatment for substance use
‘disorders.

“178. Scheduling, keeping and cancelling appomlments
1.7.10. What to bring to appointments:
1.7.11. Medication, including but not limited to:

1.7.11.1. The difference belween prescriptions _and over-the-counter
= medication; '

"1.7.11.2. Refills,
1.7.11.3. Dosage instructions; and °
1.7.11.4. Side effects.

1.8.The Contractor shall provide appropriate interpreter services and transiated
materials for the health orientations. .

1.9. The Contractor shall adapt the health orientation curnculum to accommodate the
needs. of new refugee populations, with approval from the State Refugée
Program.

1.10. The Conlractor. shall maintain documentalién' of individual refugees who have
received health orientation services, including but not limited to the following:

1.10.1. The individual clients participating in the health orientation;
1.10.2. The topic(s) of orientation completed by each participant;

$8-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01 T : Contractor Initials

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. ' Page 2 0f 13 : 3 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F4F985-67FB-4AD3-9048-67D65DF7BF28

' DocuSign Envelope ID: 4708A489-6320—4400—BQZB-SC1DE1 554104

New Hampshire Departmént of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugeo Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

1.11. The contractor shall conduct both group (defined as a minimum of two (2)
participants) and individual health orientations, including at least one home visit -
to reinforce and clarify the information presented in the group setting, and to
address unique issues and.concerns. ! o

1.12. The Contractor shall provide, solely or in collaboration with other organizations,
at least six (6) group health education classes. The contractor shall:

1.12.1. Identify topics of concern in each of the various refugee populations and
’ prioritize the topics that are most urgent or relevant on an ongaing basis:

©1.12.2. lnvite and arrange for outside organizations to provide health education
; classes on the identified topics that are within their expertise;

1.12.3. Schedule the presenters: ' .

1.12.4. Ensure the provision of interpreter services;

1.12.5. Notify clients of class schedules; - .

1.12.6. Health education session topics may include, but are not limited to: _
~ 1.12.6.1. Health insurance terms, coverage requiremerits, options and the

-enroliment process.
1.12.6.2. Disabilities, including but Aot limited to autism.

1.12.6.3. Women's health, .including but not limited to domestic violence
" and reproductive health: " ' ' -

1.12.6.4. Men’s health:

1.12.6.5. Emotional Wellness: :

1.12.6.6. Lésbian, Gay, Bisexual, and Transgender (LGBT) health:
1.12.6.7. Oral health and hygiene; ;

1.12.6.8. Vision health; , _

1.12.6.9. Nutrition and benefits of exercise; .

1.12.6.10.Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV);

1.12.6.11. Tuberculosis risk reduction;’

1.12.6.12 Fire safety.

1.12.7. The Contractor shall provide. health -education in a culturally and
-« linguistically appropriate manner. . :

1.12.8. The Contractor shall distribute satisfaclion surveys at health education
sessions, to survey clients on the usefulness of the information,
presentation style, and other relevant information.

 §S-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01 Contractor Initials _ 27\’
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1.17.

1.
! 1.

1

1
1.18.

1.20.

$5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01 ' " Contractor Initials g
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The Contractor shall inform and coordinate community resources for the provision
of health care services not covered by Refugee Medical Assnstance (RMA)} or
other funding sources. . o

. The Contractor shall support the provision of nonglinical interven'tions.' such as
“adjustment support groups, to promote refugee weliness and prevent suicide.

. The Contractor shall participate in National Alliance on Méntal lliness Mental

Health First Aide trainings and/or other similar professional development

. opportunmes to inform practices.
1.16.

The Contractor shall support and/or assist with periodic screening of refugees
for emotional distress using the Refugee Health Screener 15 (RHS-15),
communicate results, and make referrals to health care providers.as needed

The Contractor shall maintain relationships wnlh the health (including mental-
health) providers within the refugee resettiement network through_outreach,
education and meetings. Areas of focus shall lnclude but are not limited to:

17. 1, Refugee health needs and culture.

17.2. Barners to care that may include but are not limited to language, cultural
. factors, and transportation i issues.

17.3. Continued adherence to the CDC Refugee Heallh Gundelmes for the initial
domestlc medical examination. :

17.4, National Standards for CLAS in health and healthcare
The Contractor- shall develop and foster relahonshlps with a minimum of four (4)'

- health care (including mental health) providers who are not in the refugee

resettlement network through outreach, meetings and education.. Areas of focus
shall include, but not be imited to the following:

18.1, Refugee health needs and culture. .
.18.2. Barriers to care that.include, but are not limited to language and culture

barriers, and transportation issues.

18.3. CDOC Refugee Health Guidelines for the mltlal domestic medical

examination.

.18.4. National Standards for CLAS in heallh and-healthcare.
1.19.

The Contractor shall prowde education and training to refugees at various
stages of resettiement about the availability of heaith insurance through the
Marketplace and altemahve sources.

The Contractor shall provide assistance with accessing, navigating and enrolling
in health insurance options through the Marketplace, expanded Medicaid or
other financial assistance options including but not limited to lacilxtatmg
applications. ,

-
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1.21. The Contractor shall provide planning and evaluation for Refugee Health
Pramotion Program (RHPP), including but not limited to the following:

1:21.1. Develop and collect linguistically appropriate surveys/questionnaires that
are built into health sessions and trainings.

1.21.2. Track the following: : : . \
' 1.21.2.1. .Number of referrals made:
1.21:2.2. Number of tralning sessions and participants;

1.21.2.3.  Number of consultations or point of contact wuth providers;
and

1.21.24. Number of mee!ings and training sessions.

1.21.3. Feedback with heaith service prowders to learn how the coordmahon is
working and make adjustments as necessary.

1.21.4. Internal feedback with staff, particularly case managers (and other case-
management specaahsts) to evaluate the relevance of the orientations to
implement necessary changes Ieadlng to anticipated improvements.

1.22. The Contractor shall communicate any health screening results received,
which may be conducted by the Contractor.or by a third pany. concerning &
client, to medical providers as needed.

1.23. The Contractor shall facilitate referrals to behavioral health providers, as
needed.

1.24. The Contractor shall mamtam documentatlon of the following:
1.24.1. Overall number of refugees resetiled i in lhe reporting period.

1.24.2. Number of initial domestic health exammatlons completed within thirty (30),
sixty (60) and ninety (90) days of arrival. .

'1.24.3. Number of refugees receiving . health andl/or mental health case
managemenl sefvices to address complex health conditions beyond the
initial domestic health examination.

1.24.4. The demographics of the refugees served, including génder. age, prirﬁary
‘ language, and country fled.

1.24.5. Number of refugees referred for follow-up services related to Dental

’ Issues, Emergency Issues (ER),- Tuberculosis, HIV, Mental Healih,
Infectious Disease, Physical. Therapy, Prenatal Care, Hearing Issues,
Vision Issues, and other conditions identified by the NH State Refugee
Heaith Coordinator.

- 1.246. Number of refugees assisted in obtaining appropriate health insurance —
both upon arrival, and at the time of transition off Refugee' Medical
Assistance.

$5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01 Conractor Initials < .
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1.25. The Contractor shall identify the primary health related issues of concern in
' each of the various refugee communities. Concerns may include but are not
Izm:ted to diabetes, hypertension, mental health and/or oral health concerns.

1.26. The Contractor shall provide all required reporting to the Department within -
LI fifteen (15) days following the completion of the reporting period.

1.27.  The Contractor shall provide semi-annual reporting to the Department within
thirty (30) days following the completion of the. reporting period.

[ 1.28. The Contractor shall provide all required reporting at in-person meetmgs as
requested by the Department. . ‘

. 1.26. The Contractor shall have the following staff
1.29.1. One (1) Administrator; and
1.29.2. One (1) Health Case Manager.

1.30. The Contractor shall participate in tram:ngs in order to undersland health .
insurance coverage and enroliment requirements on both the state and federal
level.

2. Reporting Requirements

2.1,  The Contractor shall submil monthly reports to the Department within thirty
(30) days fallowmg the end of lhe reporting period, to include but not limited
to:

2.1.1. Number arrivals by gender and immigrétion status.- .
2.1.2. Number recewmg tuberculosis screening within the followmg time penods ‘

' -2.1.2.1. Thlrty (30) days of arrival;
2122 Thirty (30) to mnety (90) days ofamval and
2.1.23.  Ninety (0) days ormore.

» 2.1.3. Number receiving initial health exam within the followmg time periods: -
' 2.1.31.  Thirty (30) days of arrival; ’
' 2132, Thinty.(30)to hinety (90) days of arrival; and O

2133 Ninety (80) days or more. '

2.1.4. Number of children age six (6) months to snxteen (1 6) years of age that.
have been screened for lead. . .

2.1.5. Number of children scheduled for first dental appointment wl!hm six (6)
months of arrival.

2:1.6. Number of clients referred fo the following:
2.1.6.1.  Primary care probider;’
2162. Dental care pr.ovider;
§5-2021-0HE-01-REFUG-01 : : Contractor Initiats
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2163.  Emergency room;

2164, Mental health provider;

2.16.5. Infectious disease specialist,

21.6.6.  Vision care provider;

2.16.7. Hearing care provider,

2.16.8. Pre-natai care provider; and- -

- 2169. Other specialists.

2.1.7. Number of clients receiving services by country of origin. -
2.1.8. Number of clients receiving health case management services.
2.1.9. Number receiving mental health case }nanagemént services.
2.1.10. Number clients par:tii:ipating in an adjustment shppqu group.
2.1.11. Number clients receiving initia) health orientation and topic(s) covered.
2.1.12. Number clients receiving health educa‘tion and topic(s) covered.
2.1.13. Number of service providers receiving training. |
2.1.14. Number of health case manager trainings and tdpic(s);

22. The Contractor shall submit semi-annual reports to the Department within,.
lhlrty (30) days followang the penod complehon and as required by grantor.

23.  The Contractor shall submit a final program report to the Department within
thirty (30) days prior to the completion of the contract period:

3. Performance Measures
31 The Contractor shall ensure lhe following performance mdlcalors are achneved

annualty and monitored on a monlhly basis to measure the effectiveness of
the agreement:

3.1.1. 100% of all heallh related orientations and workshops/trainings shall be '
provided throughout the project period, as necessary.

©3.1.2. 100% of all newly arrived refugees and those who have been in the United
States two (2) years or less shall be pruontlzed ' -

3.1.3. 100% of all written materuals and resources produced shal! be identified
’ and prioritized for translation as applicable.

3.1.4. 100% of all interpreter services. shall be coordinated cons1stenﬂy and
] 'regularly lhroughout the project period. .

3.1.5. 100% of all refugees with acute or chronic health conditions who require
care " beyond the inilial . medical examination shall receive case
- management including but.not |Jmlted to:

$8-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01 ' Contractor Initials
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3.1.6.

31T

3.1.8.
3.1.9.

3.1.10.
3.1.11.
3.412.

3.1.13.

3.1.14,

.appointment within 60 days of arrival.

315.1.  Scheduling and coordinating medical appointments;
3.1.5.2.  Transportation services; and
'3.1.53. " Interpretation services.

80% of refugees shall démonstrate increased knowledge about health.
insurance requirements including how, when and where to enroll in health
insurance.

80% of adults will demonstrate increased kﬁowledge about a‘coe'ssing_ and

navigating US Health system. _
80% of adults will know how to make and keep health appointments.

80% of adults will know how to use public, Medicaid and/or appropriate
transportation to get 1o medical appointments.

80% of adults will demonstrate increased knowledge of at least one health
topic:

100% of clients with health needs beyond initial exam will be scheduled for
follow-up care. . ' '

100% of arrivals with mental health needs will be scheduled for'

A minimum of four (4) new relélionships with providers outside of the
refugee résettiement network shall be established during each annual
project period. s : . -

A minimum of four (4) meetings with - providers within the refugee
resettlement network shall take place during each annual project period.

3.2.The Contractf:r shall measure program outpuls through the following which shall
. include but not be limited to: s

3.2.1.

322
. 323

Number and percentage of new refugees’ anending‘ group -health
orientations, and the topics completed during each session; '

Number of percentage of new refugees’ receiving a health home visit.

Number of referrals to health, mental and behavioral, health or othef
services. . . '

3.3.The Contractor shall measure the health literacy among refugees and the
improvement of their understanding of their health and of the American health
system by utilizing a simple questionnaire offered at each workshop and .
orientation. . ’

3.4.The Contractor "shall .track the number of individuals participating in. and
-completing health education sessions, as weil as the topics covered in each
session. ; )

§5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01 £ Contractor Initials
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35. The Contractor shall track the number and percentage of refugees recemng
-health and mental health case management services, including:

3.5.1. Refugee demographu:s

36.The Contractor ‘shall track: the number of health prowders in the reiugee
resettlement network- -Teceiving education/ training.

3.6.1. The Contractor shall track the number of health providers outside the
refugee resettiement network recelving education/training. :

3.7. The Contraclor shall measure the effectiveness of support services provided to
refugees to increase their access to appropriate health insurance by tracking .
the number and percentage of refugees accessing affordable health insurance -
upon arrival and those educated about and referred for assistance in obtaining -
appropriate health insurance when transmomng off Refugee Medical
Assnstance

3.8. The Contractor shall work collaboratrvely with the Department and other key
: stakeholders to adapt any performance targets if necessary.. g

'3.9. The Contractor shall develop and submit.a corrective action -plan. to the
Departmen! for any.performance measure that was not achieved.

3:10. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
_enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery.
. and policy based on successful oulcomes.

3.11. The Contractor may be required to provrde other key data and metrics to' the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

3.12._Where applicable, the Conlractor shall collect and share data with the
. Department in a format specified by the Department

- 4, Additlonal Terms '
4.1. Impacts’ Resultmg from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

4.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legisiation .
or court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the,
State has the right to modify * Service priorities and’ expendu!ure'
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compllance therewith.

4.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

4.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed descnptuon of the
language assistance services they will provide to persons with limited
English proﬁcrency and/or hearing impairment to ensure meaningfut
access fo their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date. ) . .

§5-2021-0HE-O1-REFUGO1 . Contracior thitisls
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4.3. Credits and Copyright .Ownarship‘

43.1..

All documents, -nolices, press releases, research reports and -other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the services
of the Contract shall include the following statement, *The preparation of
this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds
provided in part by the State of New Hampshire and/ér such other funding
sources as were available or required, e.g., the United States Department

" of Health and Human Services."

432

433,

All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or.
use. .

_The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original

materials produced, including, but not limited to:"
4331. Brochures. '

4332 Resource directories.

4333, Protocols or guidélines.

. 4334. - Posters.

434,

441

43.3.5. Reports.

The Contractbr shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

Operation of Facllities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

In the operation of any facilities for broviding services, the Contractor shall

comply with"all laws, orders and regulations of federal, slate, county and

municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor
with respect to the operation of the facility or.the provision of the services
at such facility. If any goverimental license ‘or permit shall be required for
the operation ‘of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times
comply with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In

connection with. the foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby

covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities
shall comply with all rules, orders, regulations, ‘and requirements of the
State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and
shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations. ' e
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4.5. Eligibility Determinations

4.5.1.

45.2.

453

If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals such

eligibility determination ‘shall be made in accordance with applicable.

federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and
procedures. - . .

‘Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the

Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times
as are prescribed by the Department. .

In addition to the detemmination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor. shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder, which file shall include all Information necessary to support an

" eligibility determination and such other information as the Department

requests. The Contractor shall fumish the Department with all forms and

‘documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the. Department

- . may request or require.

454,

6. Records

The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as '

well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing

regarding that' determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and -

agrees that all applicants for services shall be pemmitted to fill out an
application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed

51. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

51.1.

s.1.2.

5.2 During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
$5-2021-OME-01-REFUG-01 ‘ Contractor Initials _. '
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Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data

evidencing and reflecting all costs .and other expenses incurred by the.

Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received of
collected by the Contractor. -

All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures

of hisher right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department regulations. .

and practices, which sufficiently and propedy reflect all such costs and -

expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include,
without limilation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence .of

costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for - -

materials, inventories, valualions of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and eligibifity
(including all forms required to determine eligibllity for each such recipient),
records regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to
the Department to obtain payment for such services.
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Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representalives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
‘excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department.of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations ‘as, by the terms of the Contract are to be -
-performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or “survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenseés claimed by the Contractor as cosls hereunder the Department shall -
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
dusalrowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

6. Tarmlnatlon Reponfrranslhon Plan

6.1. Inthe eventof early termination of the Agreement the Contractor shall, wlthln
15 days of notice of early termination, ‘develop and submit to the State a
Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not limited to,
identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services-under the
Agreemeni and establashes a process to meet those needs:

- 6.2. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to,
any information or data requested by the State related to the términation of the
Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing commumcahon and
revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested. :

6.3." In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to
clients receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to having
services delivered by another enmy including contracted providers or the State,

. the Contractor shall provide a process for umnlermpled delivery of services in
the Transition Plan.

6.4. The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected

- Individuals about the transition. The Conlractor shall include the proposed

' communications in its Transition Plan submnted to the State as descnbed
above. . )

T. Exhublts lncorporaled

7.1. Al Exhibits D through H and J are attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

- 7.2. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information’
(Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 180 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached
Exhibit |, Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties

§5-2021-OHE-O1-REFUG-01 ' o  Contraclor Inttials - .
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and is incorporated by reference herein.

7.3. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

$5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01 . . Contractor Inilials _,
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded with federa1 funds.

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures mcurred
in the fulfilment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
ling item, as specuﬁed in Exhibits C-1, Budgel through Exhibit C-4, Budget.

3. The Contractor shall submit an invmce in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20th) working day of the following month, which identifies and requests
- reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred -in the prior month. The
Contractor shall ensure the invoice is comp!eted dated and. retumed to the.

. Department in order to initiate paymenl

4. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to laura.mcglashan@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

'Laura McGlashan, NH State Refugee Health Coordmator
Départment of Health and Human Services

"Office of Health Equity

97 Pleasant Street, Thayer Building

Concord, NH 03301

(603)-271-2688

5. The State shall make payment to the Conlractor within thirty (30) days of receipt

of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient

- funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions Form
Number P- 37 of this Agreement.

6. The final invoice shall be due 1o the State no.later than forty (40) days. after the
contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provlsions Block 1.7
Completion Date. .

7. The Contractor.must provide the services in Exhibit B Scope of Serwces in
compliance with funding requirements.

8. The Contractor agrees that funding under this 'Agfeement may be withheld, in_
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of
Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

9. Notwithstanding anything .to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding.under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to
the services provided, or if the said services or products ‘have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this

agreement.
Ascentris Community Services, Inc. Exhibtt C Contraclor nlials
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10.  Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
“limited to adjusting amounts within the .price limitation ‘and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budge! class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both partiés, without

obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and"
justified.

11. . Audits
11.1.

* 11.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in .

The Cantractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department

if any of the following conditions exist:

federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR
Part 200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

11.1.2.  Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to
the requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lil-b, pertaining to

" charitable organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or

more.

1113, Cond'ition C - The Conlractor is a public corﬁpany and

1.2

11.4.

required by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC)
regulations to submit an annual financial audit;

If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the antrac'!o_fs.fiscal'
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part

200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative . Requirements, Cost .

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

If Condition B or Condition C exists, the-Contractor shall submit an -

annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120

days after the close of the Contractor’s fiscal year.

In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the *

Contract, it-is understood -and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor.shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exceplion has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception,

Ascenlria Community Services, Inc, Exnibd C Contracior Initials

§5.2021-0HE01-REFUG-01 Paga 20l 2 Date _
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-680, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.); and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sectnons
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OFIEDUCA'HON -CONTRACTORS )
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections $151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 ef seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part |1 of the May 25, 1890 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Saction 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference; sub-graniees and sub-coniractors) thal is a State
may elect to make one ‘certification to the Depanment in each federal fiscal year in liev of certificates for

. each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the cerlification. The certificate set out belowisa .
material representation of fect upon which reliance is placed when the agency ewards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, ‘or govammont wide suspension or debarment Contractors using his form should
sond it to:

!

Commissioner .

NH Depariment of Health and Human Semces

129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee centifies thal it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement natifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use.of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition; |

_ 1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-iree awareness program lo inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantes's palicy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any avaiiable drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be impased - upon employees for drug abusé violations
' occurring In the workplace;
1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
" . ghven a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notilying the employes in-the statement required by paragraph (a) that, asa condition of

. employment under the grant, the employae will

' 1.4.1.  Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the' employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within len calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee cr otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees musi provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exh!bﬂ D~ Cemﬂulnon regardlng Drug Fres  ~ Vendor Initials’”
; Workplacs Requizemants 5
CUDMHSNI0N) L Pape 1ol 2 Data
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the

identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. -Teking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel sction against:such an employee, up to and ircluding
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as

amended: or

1.6.2.  Requiring such employes lo participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance of
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,

law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Maeking a good faith effort to continue to meintain a drug-free workplacc through

implermentation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the stte(s) for the performance of woﬂ: done in

connection with the specific grant.

" Place ol Performance (ntroe'! address, cily, county. state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

Ascentria Gmmomnty Sennices Toc,

“Timdinyg

E£xhibH D - Certification regarding Drug Free
. Workplace Requirements
CUDHMS/11071) ' Page20f2 -
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

- The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying. and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Conlractor's representative, as identified in Secnons 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Cemﬁcahon

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):

*‘Temporary Assistance to Needy Femilies under Title IV-A

*Child Support Enforcemant Program under Title IV-O

*Socia! Services Block Grant Program under Title XX

*‘Medicaid Program under Title XIX ‘ : e
*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI ) B
*Child Cere Development Block Grant under Title IV -

The undersignéd éeniliés, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or- employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an'officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of 8 Member of Congress in
connection with the ‘awarding of any Federal conlract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by 5pectﬁc mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. Ifeny funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will ba paid to any persan for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a8 Member. of Congress.
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in conneclion with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-

" contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Repont Lobbwng in accordance with its mstrucnons altached and Idanm‘ ed as Standard Exhibit E-.)

T 3. The undersigned sha!l require that the Ianguago of this certification be included in lha award
document for sub-awards at all tiers {including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperalive agreemants) and 1hal all sub-recipients sr\all centify and disclose accordingly.

* This certification is @ material represenlahon of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entarad into. Submission of this cerlification is'a prerequislte for ' making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required .
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more lhan $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: ﬂS(t’fl"f"\ﬂ ((’-\\mu.\n'\k‘ Servites .;r(‘c-

nstone
Clfveer

ExNM.E - Centificgtion Regarding Lobbying Vendor Inftials
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¢ ON RE
SPONSIS TTER

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisians agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12548 and 45 CFR Par 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have'the Contraclor's *
representative, as identified in Seclions 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification; .

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION v .
1. By signing and submitting this proposal {contract), the prospeclive primery paricipant is provkiing the
certification set out below. - . ’

2. Theinability of a person to provide the certificetion required below will nat necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction, If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the cenification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Departmen! of Heakh and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaclion. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from paricipation in

- this transaction, i :

3. The centification in this clause is a material repiesentation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous centification, in addition to other remedies
ovailable to the Federal Govemment, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or defauh.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS egency to
. whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant leams
that its certification was eoneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
.circumstances. ’

5. The terms “covered transaction,” "debarred,’ “suspended,” “ineligible,” *lower tier covered

» lransaction,” “participant,” *person,” “primary covered transaction,” "principal,® "proposal,™and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause. have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sactions of the rules implementing Executive Order 12543: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions,

6. The prospective primary participan! agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, shoutd the )
proposed covered transaction be entered into, k shall not knowingly enter inlo any lower liei covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” providad by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transaclions and in all solickations for tower tier covered transactions.

8. “A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certfication of a prospactive participant in &
lower lier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it delermines the eligibllity of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List {of excluded partias).

9. Nothing-contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a.system of records
-In order to render In good feith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspamslion Vendor Inlflials
: And Other Responsillty Matters
- CLVOHHSA 10713 Pago 1 ol 2 Dale
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10.

information of & participant is no! required to exceod that which is norrnally possessed by a prudent

- person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except tor transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in @
covered transaction knowingly enters into e lower tier covered Iransaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or volunlarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

C11.

The prospective primary participant certifies to the bast of f!s knawlodge and belief, that it and its

principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debanment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federa! department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this propasal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense i in
connection with oblaining, attempling to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
fransaction or a contract under a public ransaction; violation-of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlament, theft, lorgery, bridery, falsification or destruct:on of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; -

" 11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmental onmy

12.

(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (!)(b)
of this certification; and

.11.4. have not wilhin a three-year period preceding this apphcatron!proposal had one or more pubhc

transactions (Federal; State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospeclrve primary participant is unabla ta certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanstion to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACT!ONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospecuve lower tier participant, as

14,

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief thal it and its principals:

13.1. are nol presently dabarred'. suspended, proposed for debarment, declared inefigible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal depariment.or agency.

13.2. where the prospective lower tier panicipant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospeclive paricipani shall attach an oxplanahon to this proposal {conltract).

The prospeciive lower tier partucupar\t further agrees by submmmg this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineltgibtlrly and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower lier covered
transactions end in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name; ﬂsu.ﬂr]q ((thun.\\'\‘ Seevices ,Im‘-

fafese T

Datd ' , Na

A T\mo‘\hq uhnﬂmc_
Chief Opuriing OFFcer

ExhD!t F - Certification Reganding Debarment, Suspension Vendor inlials
.. Ang Other Responsibiity Matlers
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
EEOERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS
The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Generel Provisions agrees by signature of the Conlractor's

. fepresentalive as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, 1o executs the following .
. certification: . : .

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantens o subcontractors to comply, with any applicable

federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may Inctuda: -

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Actof 1968 (42 U.8.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statule from 'discriminating, either in employment practices or In

the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national onigin, and sex. The Act
requires centain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan; . ‘

- the Juvenile Justice Delinguency Pravention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act, Recipients of federa! funding under this
. statule are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
“ . benefits, on the besis of race, color, religion, national origin, dnd sex. The Act includes Equal
) Employment Opportunity Plan requirements; ) '

- the Civil Rights Act of 1884 (42 U.S.C. Section 20009, which prohidits recipiznts of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29‘U:S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or aclivity; ; . .

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1890 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunily for persons with disabilities in employment, State and tocal
government services, public accommodations, commaercial facilities, and transportation;_ .

B } . . . e
- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,.1683, 1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs, '

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activilles receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
omployment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R: pt. 31 (U.S. Depaniment of Justice Regulations - 0JJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination: Equal Employmen! Opportunity; Policias
and Procedures), Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations)..Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criterla for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equa! Treatment for Faith-Based .
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fisca! Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-238, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employae Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for cerlaln whislle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set oul below is @ material representation of fact upan which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment. . ‘ -

Exhiblt G
’ : . Vandor Indlials
Cartacaron of Compttance wi requirerents penairing I Feosni Mondt sriminaton, Equal Trsssment of Fan Barad Orpenizeoons
0 30 WIaSetOower protcions
2714
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In the event @ Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on fhe grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against 8 recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, 1o -
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman,

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions abr.ees by signature of the Contractor's
representative s identified in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification: .
1.. By signing and submitting this proposal (con!}act) the Vendor agreas to comply with the provisions
indicated above, .
Vendor Name: fiscentria Gmmunihy Sevieas, Tinc,
3) 14 {’bu e
Date "~ ]
EOIG | .
Vendor iniilals
Cor of CompRancs wii requr p ,&:mlmm&urwd'mmw
g
anrnd
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requiras that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularty for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, i the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local gavernments, by Federal grant, cantract, koan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded salely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for-inpalient drug or alcohol treatment. Fallure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to

* $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance arder on the responsible entity,

The Vendor identilied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identitied in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
centification: :

1. By signing end submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts 1o comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C_, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1894.

Vendor Name: ﬁsr_e.ﬂr'm(whmun-ﬁ\l Sem'.ces,j'nc.

3[.«[_14'1»

Date. i

Extibit H - Cerntification Regarding Vendor Inilials
EE Environmentyl Tobacco Smoke y
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSI|NESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Heallh Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and .
with the Standards for Privacy and Sécurity of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business

- Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

() Definitions. ,
8. “Breach” shall have the same maamng as the term 'Breach in secnon 164.402 of Title 45,
: Code of Federal Regulahons .

'b. ‘Business Associate” has the meamng given such term in sect\on 160.103 of Tme 45, Code
. of Federal Regulations

‘c. *Covered Entity” has the meaning given such termin secuon 160.103 of TnUe 45,
Code of Fadéral Reguiahons

d. Qgsmnglﬂ Record Se{” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164 501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meanmg as the term “data aggregabon in-45 CFR
Section 164.501.

1. ug_aﬂﬂ_ng_Qmm_rJ_g shall have the same meanmg as the term "health care operatmns
ln 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economiic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitie D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
20089. 3

h. “HIPAA" means the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Heallh
Information, 45 CFR Parts 180 162 and 164 and amendments thereto. -

i. “Individual” shall have the same meanling as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164. 501(9)

J. “Privacy Rule® shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Hagnh Infgrmg;ign' shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103; limited to the information created or received by
Business Assoclate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

32014 e | - Conuoctor Inldats
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"Required by Law™ shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 C_:Fh
Section 164.103.

. "Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her desngnee

"Security Rulg® shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Pan 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not - .

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accred:ted by the American Nationa! Standards

,Insmme

Other Q_e_ﬁgition - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Pans 180 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act-

Business Assoclate Usé apd g|gc!og'gre of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health

Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under

Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all

its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
' PHlin any manner that would constitutg a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I;" For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
. ‘As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was

disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business -

Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach. :

T'h‘e Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business.

Y2014 Exhidit t Contracior Initials ]

Heshh Ingurance Portablity Act
Busingss Associate Agreement 3 :
. Page 2068 ' Data {

A O



DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F4F985-67FB-4AD3-9048-67D65DF7BF28

CocuSign Envelope 1D: 4708A489-682D-44D0-BC2B-3C1DE1554104

‘New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit|

t

V2014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Enmy has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associale
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in'violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any addlltonal security safeguards.

Obllgations and Activities of Business Assoclate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associale becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health-Information not pravided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security.incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Assoénate shall immedialely perfoﬁn arisk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall mclude but not be
limited to:

“ o The nature and extent of the p(otected health information involved including the
types of identifiers and the likelihaod of re-identification; -
o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was, made;
o Wnether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed -
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated. )
The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

- The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the anacy. Secunty and

Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secrelary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's complrance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule. :

Business Associate shall raquure all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, lncludmg
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (/). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PH!

Exnibith - Conlractor Inltials
Health Insurance Portability Act .
Business Associale Agreement
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
.business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f, Within five (5) business days of receipt of a wrilten request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determfne

: Busnness Assoclate's compllance with the terms of the Agreament ,

g. Wlhin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Deslgnated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.-

h. . Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered ‘Entity fof an
‘ amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
. Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligalions under 45 CFR Section 164, 526 "

i Business Assoclate shalt document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures.as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528. .

J- Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an-accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available

" to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528. '

k. in the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate. the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding 1o forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as praclicable.

L. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, ali PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Assoclate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business

32014 il | Contracior Initlals _
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(4)

. (8)

(6)

Y2014

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of C

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its

‘ Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section

164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Assoclate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or ravocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall prornbtly notify Business Assaociate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of

PHL.

Terminat!on for Causa .

In addmon to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and cond:tsons (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Enlity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agresment set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associateé to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. |f Covered Entity

" determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the

violation to the Secretaly

I_\jigcellangoug
Definitions and Requlatory References. All terms usad,'but_ nol otherwise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to

- a Section in the anacy and Security Rule means the Section as in eftect or as

amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree 1o take such action as Is.
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rure ‘and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Assoclate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provudad by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation .'The partias agree thal any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

Exhidit { Contractor Initials
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e. . Segregaliop. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Suryival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return-or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
‘defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the.
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the terminaticn of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

’

' Depariment of Health and Human Services . HSCQ(\bL\ Commun lhl geNi(fS'lIﬂ(‘ '

The State Name of the Contractor

JAA— e

" Siyfhaturd of Authorized Representative j of Atharized Re’preseﬁtali%e

Ann Landkq

Name of Authorized/Representative Name of Authdrized Representative

ASSUM CVHH{SSMW\ Chief O'perqh}\c, Offcer

Title of Authorized Representative - Tite of Authorized Representative
15001 ) o I
Date Date i
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c T NG THE FED DING ACCOUNTAB D TRANSPARENCY
‘ ACT (FEATA) COMPLIANCE i

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requiras prime awardees of individusa)
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associsted first-lier sub-grants of $25, 000 or more. If the
initiat award is betow $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or. over
$25,000, the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health end Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any A
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

Name of entity

Amount of award

Funding agency

NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

Program source

Award titte descriptive of the purpose of tho fund:ng action

Location of the entity

Principle place of performance

Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS @)
. Total compensation and names of the top five executives H

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues eno from the Federal government, end those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2 Compensahon information is not already avallable through reporting 10 the SEC.

2OONBOALN -

o

Prime grant reciplents must submit FFATA required dala by the end of the month, plus 30 days, In which

the award or award amendment is mads.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3.of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 108-282 and Public Law 110-252,
“‘and 2 CFR Part 170 (Roponmg Subaward and Execulive Compensahon Information); and further sgrees

to have the Contractor's representative, as idantified In Scctrons 1.14 and 1.12 of the General Provisions

execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to prowde needed information as outiined above to the NH

Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with ali applicable provisions of the Federa!

Financial Accountabllity and Transparency Act.

Contraclor Name: ﬂS(en‘lf‘.-’n C:-mmu.\ﬁ\; SW{‘CS., IﬂC.

3hifree T2
Date - ' : : / Timdlny Johasime
_ Tie: it Opraking O¥icer

Exhbk J - Centification Reganding the Foderal Funding Contractor Inhlals
Accountsbilty And Transparancy Act (FFATA) Complisnce :
CULMEIN 10713 . Pago 1 of2 ) Data _> R4
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below I:sted questions are true and accurate.

3 The DUNS number for your entity is; 1 5815 0kY

2. Inyour business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) B0 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracis, subcantracts, loans, grants, subgranis, and/or
cooperative agreements?

j NO YES
)f the answer lo #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 abbvo is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
! business or organization through periodic reports filed under sectlon 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchanga Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a) 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
18867
NO — YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

I the answer lo #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organlzation are as foilowa

Nameg: Amount:
Name: ‘ Amount: ,
Name: " Amount
Name: . Amount; . )
Name: ' Amount:
. Exhiblt J - Cartification Regarding the F;dua% Funding Contractor Initials

Accountadility And Transparency Act (FFATA) comphnoo o
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A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. “Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where parsons other than authorized users and for an other than
suthorized purpose have access or potential access to persanally identifiable

" information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Heaith
Information, * Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term ‘Breach’ in section .
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. ‘“Computer Secunty Incident” shall have the same meanmg “Computer Security
-*Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handiing Guide, National Instdute of Standards and Technology U. S Depanment '
of Commerce ’

3. “Confidential Informatuon or *Confidential Data” means all conﬁdentlal information
- disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatmenl Records, Case Records, Prolected Heatth Information and

: Personally Identifiable Information.

' Confidential Information also includes any and all |nformauon owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Heallh and
Human Services (DOHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection; and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (Pt), Personal Financial
information (PFl), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).

Payment Card industry (PCI), and or olher sensitive and confidential information.

4. “End User" means any person or entity (eg contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder. .

6. “Incident” means an act that potentially wo!ates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or softwaré characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent, Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacemeént of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V6. Last update 1000918 . Exhibil K Contraclor Indtials
' DHHS Information .
. Security Requirements .
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méil, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction,

*Open Wireless Network® means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designeéd, tested, end-
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PIl, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data. ;

“Personal Information” (or *PI*) means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal

~ information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,

alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which s tinked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden.
name, etc. . ’

" “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for anacy of Individually Identifiable Health

Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United

- States Department of Health and Human Services.

- 10.

1.

12.

“Protected Hea!th information” (or “PHI® ) has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of 'Prolected Health Iniormatlon in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

“Security Rule” .shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F. R Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information™ means Protected Health Informalion that is
nat secured by a technology standard that renders Protécted Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing-organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute. .

). RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

- A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

i:

2

V5. Last update 10018 : ‘ ExhbiL X - ContraclorInllats

The Contractor must not use, disclose, mamtam or transmit Conﬁdemial Informahon
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,

including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not.
use, disclose, maintain or transmil PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

The Contractor must not dlsclose any Confidential Information in response to a

DHHS Informstion
. Securlly Requirements .
Page 2019 Oale
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first nolifying DHHS so thal DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

-3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS_ has agreed to be bound by additional

restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PH!
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such addmonal

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards. '

4. The Contractor agrees thal DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End

User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract,

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Dala obtained under this Contract may not be.used for

any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data lo the aulhonzed representatives

of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Conlract

- ' METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1.

Application Encryption. .If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. 'End User may hot use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitling DHHS
data. .

Encrypted Emall. End User may only-employ email to transmit Conﬁ&enlial Data if
email Is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information, -

Encrypted Web Site, if End User is employing the Web to transmit. Confdenlla!
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be

' secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file .
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage to transmit
Conf dential Data.

Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Dala via cemred ground

- mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices ta transmit
Confidentia! Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

VS, Last update 10/08/18 Exibi1 K Contractor Inklat _
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" wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private: network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. It End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile davice(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmmed or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP) also kncwn as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If.
End .User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Conhdential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If.End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devlces all
i date must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

. Nk RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to desiroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must: .

A. Retention

1. The Conlractor agrees it will nol store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement’shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabllmes and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to. ensure proper security monitoring. capabililies are in
place to detect potential security evenls that can impact State of NH systems
. and/or Depanment confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees lo provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in @ secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

: 5. The Conlractor agrees. Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant salution and comply with all applicable statutes and_
regulations regarding the privacy end security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

VS5, Last update 1009/18 ' Exhidli K Contractor Initlgls __
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chiel Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure. '

B. Disposition

1.

If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain 8 documented process for

sacurely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will -

obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, elactronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media

sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, -

degaussing) as described in NIST Speclal Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and ceify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide wrinpn certification to the. Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to.
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction. .

Unless oth‘erwi,se specified, within thitty (30) days of the termination "of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure mathod such as shredding. a

Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completaly destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure dala wiping. '

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agreeS to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any -
derivative data or files, as follows:

1.

V. Lasi update 100918 ! Exhidlt K . Conlractor inltinls

The Contractor will maintain .proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services. . :

The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Dsepartment
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from -
‘creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.). ¢
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The Confractor will mainlain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor sysiems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

The Contractor will ensure proper securily ;'nonitoring capabilities are in place to
détect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core funclions of the 'engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a

- program of an Internal process or processes that defines specific security

10.

1.

expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contraclor, including breach notification requirements.

The Contractor will work wilh the Department 1o sign and comply Wwith all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as parn of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors pnor to
system access being authorized. ;

If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate ‘pursuant to 45

.CFR 160.103, the Coniractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement

(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is o enable the Department and

Contraclor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may’

occur over the life of the Contractor engagement The survey will be completed
annually, or an afternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may reques! the survey be completed when the

" scope of the engagement between the Department and the Co_m;actor changes.

The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless

-prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office

leadership member within the Departmant.

Dala Security Breach Liability. 'ln the -event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage.or loss resulting from the breach.,

**The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

V5, Last update 10708/18 Exhidlt K - Contrector Inilals

!

DHHS Information |
Securdly Requiremenis ]
Page 8 of @ Dole

 AX 24



DocuSign Envelope ID: 76F4F985-67FB-4AD3-9048-67D65DF 7BF28

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4708A489-6820-44D0-BC2B-3C1DE1554104

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K
DHHS lnformauon Securlty Requiremants

12.

13,

14.

15.

16.

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, .maumg costs and
costs' associated with website and lelephone call center services necessary due to
lhe breach.

Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not lass
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy- Act of 1874 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Perts 160 and 164) that govarn protechons for individually identifi able health
mrormat»on and as applicable under State law.

Caontractor agrees lo establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technicat. and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must pfowde a level and
scope of securily that is not less than the level -and scope of security-requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at hitps:./Awww.nh.gov/doit/vendoriindex.htm
for the Department of- Information ‘Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident -

response process. . The Contractor will nolify the State's Privacy . Officer and the
State's Securlty Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
gecurity incident, or suspected breach which afects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those duthorized End Users who need- such DHHS Dala to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

. } 2
The Contractor musi ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV ‘A, above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure. ‘

b. safeguard this information at alltimes.

¢. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containmg PHI, PI, or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

~d. send emails containing Conlidential Information only. if éncggxgg and being
sent to and being recelved by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information..

VS, Last updale 100018 L L Contreclor Initiats
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons

| during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any

derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
.. such data mus! be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used’ and
" disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a frisk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

l. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies fo credentials used to access the site direclly or indirectly through
a third party apptication. )

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of theif End’ Users. DHHS -
reserves the right to conduct onsile inspections to monitor compliance with this i
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, ‘
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data

is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V.. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State’s Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provuded in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Mandling and Breach. Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
‘Contractor’s procedures must also address how the Contractor will:’

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine If personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in-this Exhibit or P-37;
4

Identify and convene a core response group 1o determhje the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

VS, Last update 1009/18 ‘ _ Exhubit K Contractor Inhlzls
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i

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, Identify appropriate
3 Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs asscmated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
' © measures.
; ) o
Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate Pl must be addressed and feponed as
. applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

V. PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Officer:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs nh.gov
B. DHHS Security Officer:
DHHSInformataonSecuntyOff oe@dhhs nh.gov

V5. Laat update 10:09/18 ' Exhiil K ) Contracior Infilals .
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2

This Amendment to the New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program contract is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
International Institute of New England, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 6, 2020, (Item #15), as amended on December 18, 2020, (ltem #7), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$247,612.50

2. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B — Amendment #2,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded with 100% federal funds from Administration for Children & Families,
as awarded on October 25, 2021 and December 29, 2021, by the Administration for Children
& Families; CFDA# 93.566.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 2, to read:

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfilment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-10, Budget — Amendment #2.

5. Add Exhibit C-5, Budget — Amendment #2, Exhibit C-6, Budget — Amendment #2, Exhibit C-7,
Budget — Amendment #2, Exhibit C-8, Budget — Amendment #2, Exhibit C-9, Budget — Amendment
#2 and Exhibit C-10, Budget — Amendment #2, which are attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

DS
International Institute of New England, Inc. A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials
4/14/2022
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DocuSigned by:
4/14/2022 lwn. &. (andry
24BAB37EDBEBA488...
Date Name: Ann H. Landry
Title:

Associate Commissioner

International Institute of New England, Inc.

DocuSigned by:
4/14/2022 Eﬂtﬁm? Thielman.

FC9947C0F978428

Date Name: jeffrey Thielman
Title:

President and CEO

International Institute of New England, Inc. A-S-1.2
SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this offide, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSigned by:
b .
4/15/2022 [ﬁ Yo Genino

7487348449414860.

Date Name: Robyn Guarino
Title:

Attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
International Institute of New England, Inc. A-S-1.2

S8-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B — Amendment #2

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1

The Contractor shall provide services and activities that promote the health and
wellness of designated Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR)-eligible
populations by:

1.1.1.  Providing opportunities to increase health literacy;
1.1.2. Coordinating physical health and mental health care;

1.1.3. Building capacity within communities to address mental health needs
including but not limited to help overcoming stigmas associated with
mental health care; and

1.1.4. Creating opportunities for social engagement to reduce isolation,
including but not limited to organizing wellness groups.

1.2. The Contractor shall provide services, statewide, to ORR-eligible populations to
increase access to health care and reduce gaps in services, with an emphasis
on the geographic areas of Concord, Manchester and Nashua. Services must
include, but are not limited to:

1.2.1. Physical and mental health case management.
1.2.2. Health orientations.

1.2.3. Health education.

1.2.4. Home visiting.

1.2.5. Targeted wellness groups.

1.2.6. Health provider education.

1.3. The Contractor shall ensure all required services in 1.2 are:

1.3.1. Client-centered;

1.3.2. Trauma-informed;

1.3.3. Strengths-based; and

1.3.4. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate (CLAS).

1.4. The Contractor shall provide physical health and mental health case
management services to ORR-eligible clients who require care beyond the initial
health examination, which includes, but is not limited to:

1.4.1. Scheduling and coordinating health, including mental health,
appointments.
1.4.2.  Accompanying clients to health appointments.
DS
L
S$S-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.4.3.

1.4.4.

1.4.5.

Providing and/or facilitating the provision of transportation to and from
health appointments.

Ensuring appropriate interpreter services are available to clients during
health appointments with providers, as needed.

Assisting ORR-eligible populations to obtain appropriate health
insurance.

1.5. The Contractor shall provide uniform, continuous and timely transition of case
management services from the initial refugee health examination and/or on day
ninety-one (91) of resettlement, whichever is sooner, including all needed follow-
up care, to ensure no gaps in services and continuity of care.

1.6. The Contractor shall schedule an initial dental examination for all ORR-eligible
children 0-18 years of age within six (6) months of arrival.

1.7. The Contractor shall conduct health orientations that shall include, but are not
limited to, the following topics:

1.7.1. Navigating the U.S. health care system.
1.7.2. Health insurance, including Refugee Medical Assistance.
1.7.3. Privacy and consent laws.
1.7.4. The right to language assistance in health care settings and the role of
interpreters.
1.7.5. Transportation options for medical appointments including, but not
limited to:
1.7.5.1. Public transportation training.
1.7.5.2. Arranging Medicaid transportation.
1.7.6. Understanding the different types of health care providers including, but
not limited to:
1.7.6.1. Primary care providers.
1.7.6.2. Specialists.
1.7.6.3. Pharmacists.
1.7.7. Understanding the different types of health care and when, where and
how to access each type including, but not limited to:
1.7.7.1. Preventive.
1.7.7.2. Urgent.
1.7.7.3. Emergency.
DS
o
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.8.

1.9.

1.10.

1.11.

1.12.

1.7.8. Understanding the availability of mental/behavioral health services,
including but not limited to treatment for substance use disorders, and
when, where and how to access services.

1.7.9. Scheduling, keeping and cancelling appointments.
1.7.10. What to bring to appointments.
1.7.11. Medication, including but not limited to:

1.7.11.1. The difference between prescribed medication and over-the-
counter (OTT) medication.

1.7.11.2. Refills.
1.7.11.3. Dosage instructions.
1.7.11.4. Side effects.

The Contractor shall provide appropriate interpreter services and translated
materials at all health orientations.

The Contractor shall adapt the health orientation curriculum to accommodate
the needs of new ORR-eligible populations, and modify the curriculum as
needed, with approval from the Department.

The Contractor shall maintain documentation of individual ORR-eligible clients
who have received health orientation services, including but not limited to:

1.10.1. The individual clients who participated in a health orientation:
1.10.2. The topic(s) of orientation completed by each participant;

The Contractor shall conduct both group, defined as a minimum of two (2)
participants, and individual health orientations, including a minimum of one (1)
home visit to reinforce and clarify the information presented in the group setting,
and to address unique issues and concerns.

The Contractor shall provide solely, or in collaboration with other organizations,
health education to ORR-eligible populations. The Contractor shall:

1.12.1. Identify topics of concern in each of the various ORR-eligible
populations and prioritize topics that are most urgent or relevant on an
ongoing basis.

1.12.2. Invite and arrange for outside organizations to provide individual and/or
group health education sessions on topics within their area(s) of
expertise, which may include the topics identified in Subsection 1.12.6.
below;

1.12.3. Schedule presenters;
1.12.4. Ensure the provision of interpreter services;

DS
1.12.5. Notify clients of class schedules; n
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.13.

1.14.

1.15.

1.16.

1.12.6. Ensure health education sessions include topics relevant to ORR-
eligible populations that may include, but are not limited to:

1.12.6.1. Health insurance terms, coverage requirements and options,
and the enrollment process.

1.12.6.2. Disabilities including, but not limited to, autism.

1.12.6.3. Women’s health including, but not limited to, domestic
violence and reproductive health.

1.12.6.4. Men’s health.
1.12.6.5. Emotional Wellness.

1.12.6.6. Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, and Questioning
(LGBTQ) health.

1.12.6.7. Oral health and hygiene.

1.12.6.8. Vision health.

1.12.6.9. Nutrition and benefits of exercise.
1.12.6.10.Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV).
1.12.6.11.Tuberculosis risk reduction.
1.12.6.12.Fire safety.

The Contractor shall distribute satisfaction surveys at health education sessions
in order to survey clients on:

1.13.1. The usefulness of the information provided;
1.13.2. Presentation style; and
1.13.3. Other relevant information.

The Contractor shall inform and coordinate community resources for the provision
of health care services not covered by Refugee Medical Assistance (RMA) or
other funding sources.

The Contractor shall facilitate the provision of non-clinical interventions including
but not limited to wellness groups to:

1.15.1. Promote refugee wellness;
1.15.2. Reduce isolation; and
1.15.3. Prevent suicide.

The Contractor shall facilitate a minimum of three (3) wellness groups each
Contract year, utilizing an evidence-based curriculum that may include, but is
not limited to, Pathways to Wellness Community Adjustment Support Group

Training Manual and Curriculum. [ M\
§S8-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.17.

1.18.

1.19.

1.20.

1.21.

The Contractor shall implement the Family Strengthening Intervention for
Refugees, a home visiting family-based preventive intervention, to a minimum
of five (5) families each Contract year.

The Contractor shall support and/or assist with ORR-¢eligible population periodic
emotional distress screenings using evidence-based tools that may include, but
are not limited to, the Refugee Health Screener 15 (RHS-15), and communicate
results and make referrals to health care providers as needed.

The Contractor shall maintain relationships with health care providers, including
mental health providers, within the refugee resettlement network; and develop
and foster relationships with a minimum of four (4) health care/mental health
care providers who are not in the refugee resettlement network through:

1.19.1. Outreach:
1.19.2. Education; and
1.19.3. Meetings.

The Contractor shall ensure relationships with health care providers/mental
health providers within, and not within, the refugee resettlement network focus
on, but are not limited to:

1.20.1. Health needs and culture of ORR-eligible populations.
1.20.2. Barriers to care that may include, but are not limited to:
1.20.2.1. Language.
1.20.2.2. Cultural factors.
1.20.2.3. Transportation issues.

1.20.3. Adherence to the CDC Refugee Health Guidelines for the initial
domestic medical examination.

1.20.4. National Standards for CLAS in health and healthcare.

The Contractor shall provide education and training to ORR-eligible populations
on the availability of health insurance through employers, the Marketplace,
expanded Medicaid and/or other financial assistance options at various stages
of resettlement, which will include, but is not limited to:

1.21.1. Assistance accessing and navigating the various health insurance
options available;

1.21.2. Assisting with health insurance enrolliment applications; and/or
1.21.3. Making referrals to organizations for assistance with health insurance

applications.
1.22. The Contractor shall provide planning and evaluation assistance to, the
Department including, but not limited to: I
S$S8-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program
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1.22.1. Developing and collecting satisfaction surveys distributed at
orientations, health sessions and trainings.

1.22.2. Tracking data, including:
1.22.2.1. Number of referrals made;
1.22.2.2. Number of training sessions and participants;

1.22.2.3. Number of consultations or point of contact with providers;
and

1.22.2.4. Number of meetings and training sessions.

1.22.3. Collecting feedback from health service providers to evaluate the
success of case management coordination, and implementing
adjustments as necessary.

1.22.4. Collecting internal feedback from staff, particularly case managers and
other case management specialists to evaluate the relevance of the
orientations to implement necessary changes leading to anticipated
improvements.

1.23. The Contractor shall communicate the results from ORR-eligible clients’ health
examinations conducted by a third party to medical providers as needed.

1.24. The Contractor shall facilitate referrals to behavioral health providers as needed.

1.25. The Contractor shall participate in virtual or in-person meetings with the
Department upon request.

1.26. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

1.27. Staffing and Training

1.27.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following staff positions to carry out the
services as specified in this Scope of Services:

1.27.1.1. Two (2) Case Managers:

1.27.1.1.1. One (1) Case Manager who shall provide
physical health case management services; and

1.27.1.1.2. One (1) Case Manager who shall provide
mental health case management services to
ORR-eligible populations with complex health

conditions.
1.27.1.2. One (1) Administrator. Responsibilities include, but are not
limited to:
DS
g
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

1.27.1.2.1. Oversight and supervision of the two (2) Case
Managers including performing all supervisory
duties; and

1.27.1.2.2. Oversight of the reporting process and ensuring
all required reporting is complete and submitted
to the Department timely in accordance with
Section 2. Reporting Requirements.

1.28. The Contractor shall ensure staff participate in trainings on the following subject
matters:

1.28.1. Understanding health insurance coverage and enrollment requirements
on the state and federal levels in order to assist ORR-eligible
populations obtain appropriate health insurance;

1.28.2. Implementing the Family Strengthening Intervention for Refugees as
specified in Subsection 1.17; and

1.28.3. Professional development training that may include, but is not limited
to, the National Alliance on Mental lliness Mental Health First Aide
training, to inform practices.

2. Reporting Requirements

2.1. The Contractor shall submit semi-annual reports to the Department for reporting
periods October 1 — September 30 and March 31 — April 1 no later than fifteen
(15) days after the end of each reporting period, and upon request by the
Department. Semi-annual reports must include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1.  Number of new arrivals by:
2.1.1.1. Gender,
2.1.1.2. Age;
2.1.1.3. Country of origin; and
2.1.1.4. Immigration status.

2.1.2.  Number of clients receiving tuberculosis screening within the following
time frames:

2.1.2.1. Thirty (30) days of arrival;
2.1.2.2. Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and
2.1.2.3. Ninety (90) days or more.
2.1.3.  Number receiving initial health exam within the following time frames:
2.1.3.1. Thirty (30) days of arrival;

2.1.3.2. Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and Ds
L
$8-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

2.1.3.3. Ninety (90) days of arrival or more.

2.1.4. Number of children six (6) months to sixteen (16) years of age who have
been screened for lead.
2.1.5. Number of children two (2) to eighteen (18) years of age scheduled for
first dental examination within six (6) months of arrival.
2.1.6. Number of clients referred to the following:
2.1.6.1. Primary care provider;
2.1.6.2. Dental care provider;
2.1.6.3. Emergency room;
2.1.6.4. Mental health provider;
2.1.6.5. Infectious disease specialist;
2.1.6.6. Vision care provider;
2.1.6.7. Hearing care provider;
2.1.6.8. HIV services;
2.1.6.9. Tuberculosis follow-up services;
2.1.6.10. Pre-natal care provider,
2.1.6.11. Other specialists as well as the other conditions identified by
the State Refugee Health Coordinator.
2.1.7. Demographic data for ORR-eligible clients served, including:
2.1.7.1. Gender;
21.7.2. Age;
2.1.7.3. Primary language; and
2.1.7.4. Country of origin.
2.1.8. Number of clients receiving health case management services.
2.1.9.  Number of clients receiving mental health case management services.
2.1.10. Number of clients participating in a wellness groups.
2.1.11. Number of clients receiving initial health orientation and topic(s)
covered.
2.1.12. Number of clients receiving health education and topic(s) covered.
2.1.13. Number of families participating in Family Strengthening Intervention
for Refugees, including:
2.1.13.1. Number of home visits completed,; DS
o
§8-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B — Amendment #2

2.1.14.
2.1.1%.
2.1.16.

2.1.13.2. The topics covered during each home visit; and

2.1.13.3. Number or percentage of new ORR-eligible clients receiving
a health home visit.

Number of health providers receiving training.
Number of health case manager trainings and topic(s).

Number of ORR-eligible clients educated and/or referred for assistance
in obtaining appropriate health insurance when transitioning off
Refugee Medical Assistance.

2.2. The Contractor shall identify and submit the primary health related issues of
concern in each of the ORR-eligible client communities to the Department.
Primary health related issues may include, but are not limited to:

Lekil s
el
22.3.
2.24.

Diabetes.
Hypertension.

Mental health.

Oral health concerns.

2.3. The Contractor shall submit a final program report to the Department no later
than fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the contract completion date.

2.4. The Contractor may be requested to provide additional key data and metrics to
the Department on an as needed basis.

3. Performance Measures

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following performance indicators are achieved
annually and monitored on a monthly basis to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement:

3.1.1.

100% of new ORR-eligible arrivals receive health-related orientations
and/or workshops/trainings throughout the contract period, with priority
given to those who have been in the United States for two (2) years or
less;

3.1.2. 100% of ORR-eligible clients who require care beyond the initial
medical examination receive case management services, including
mental health case management services, in accordance with
Subsection 1.4;

3.1.3. 100% of adult ORR-eligible clients receive assistance accessing
affordable health insurance upon arrival;

3.1.4. 100% of adult ORR-eligible clients are educated on the need to obtain
appropriate health insurance when transitioning off of Refugee Medical
Assistance; oe

o
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EXHIBIT B - Amendment #2

3.2.

3.1.5.
3.1.6.

3.7,

3.1.8.

3.1.9.

3.1.10.

3.1.11.

3.1.12.

All written materials and resources produced are translated:;

Interpreter services are coordinated consistently and regularly
throughout the contract period;

Results of the satisfaction surveys distributed at each orientation,
workshop and training demonstrate 80% of ORR-eligible clients have
increased knowledge and understanding of:

3.1.7.1.  Accessing and navigating the US Health System in order to
obtain health insurance;

3.1.7.2. Scheduling and keeping health appointments; and

3.1.7.3. Utilizing public, Medicaid and/or other appropriate
transportation to get to and from medical and mental health
appointments.

Results of the satisfaction surveys distributed at each orientation,
workshop and training demonstrate 80% of ORR-eligible adult clients
gained knowledge on a minimum of one (1) health topic.

A minimum of three (3) Wellness Groups are facilitated each contract
year;

A minimum of five (5) families are enrolled in and receive the Family
Strengthening Intervention for Refugees each contract year;

A minimum of four (4) new relationships are established with providers
outside of the refugee resettlement network each contract year.

A minimum of four (4) meetings with providers within the refugee
resettlement network are conducted each contract year.

The Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan for any
performance measure(s) not on target to be achieved annually, in accordance
with Subsection 3.1, to the Department on a quarterly basis until such time all
measures are achievable annually, that must include:

3.2.1. The barrier(s) to achieving the measure(s) annually; and
3.2.2. A detailed plan to achieve the measure(s) annually that must include,
but is not limited to, a timeline.
DS
G
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Additional Terms

3.3. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.3.1.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.4. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

3.5,

3.4.1.

The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of
the language assistance services they will provide to persons with
limited English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10)
days of the contract effective date.

Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.0.1.

3.5.2.

3.5.3.

3.54.

All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, “The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services.”

All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution
or use.

The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.5.3.1. Brochures.

3.5.3.2. Resource directories.
3.5.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.
3.5.3.4. Posters.

3.5.3.5. Reports.

The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

C
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3.6. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.6.1.

In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said
license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

3.7. Eligibility Determinations

373

3.7.2.

3.7.3.

3.74.

S$S-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 Contractor Initials
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If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals
such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with
applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines,
policies and procedures.

Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such
times as are prescribed by the Department.

In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder, which file shall include all information necessary to support
an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with
all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the
Department may request or require.

The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder,
as well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an
application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be
informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department

regulations.
DS
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4. Records

4.1.

4.2.

The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department,
and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and
original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders,
vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind
contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested
or required by the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price
limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder
(except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be performed
after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the
Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the Final
Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the
Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its
discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to
recover such sums from the Contractor.

5. Termination Report/Transition Plan

5.1.

S$S-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 Contractor Initials
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In the event of early termination of the Agreement, the Contractor shall, within
15 days of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not limited to,
identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the
Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs. o3
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5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to,
any information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the
Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and
revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to
clients receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to having
services delivered by another entity including contracted providers or the State,
the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in
the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected
individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed
communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as described
above.

6. Exhibits Incorporated

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

All' Exhibits D through H and J are attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance
with the attached Exhibit |, Business Associate Agreement, which has been
executed by the parties and is incorporated by reference herein.

The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

C
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Exhibit C-5, Budget - Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: International institute of New England

Budget Request for: Refugee Health Promotion Program - Afghan
(Nama of RFP)

Budget Period: July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022

T Total SalaryWages 5081 . Seoi st = =T : Scase : —
2__Employee Benefits 116875 - 1,168.75 - - - 116875 - 116875

Pharmacy
Medical
Office
6 Travel
7 Occupancy
6__Current Expenses
Telephone
Postage
Subscriptions.
Audit and Legal -
Insurance -
Board Expenses -
0 Somware -
10, Marketing/Communications -

11_Staff Education and Training - -
12_Subcontracts/Agreements : z

13 Other (spacific detais mandatory). . ”
Rental Assistance - -
indirect As A Percent of Direct - -
|

TOTAL 6,250 - 5250, -
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 00%

E
i

Ds
Exhiblt C-5, Budget - Amendment #2 Contractor Initals,
International Instiute of New England
$5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 4/14/2022
Page 1of 1 Date______
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Exhibit C-6, Budget - Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: International Institute of New England

Budget Request for: Refugee Health Promotion Program - Health Promotion Services
(Name of RFF)

Budget Period: July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022

1248416
2.871.36

TTRATE : - 5 - 128418

1. Total SalaryWages 12,484 16
287136 - - - 287136

2_Employee Benefits 287136

167.00

=
5
F
g
&
3
Bl
&
g

11_Staff Education and Training - -
12_Subcontracts/ ments - -

i
o |5
f
&

L TOTAL 15,523 B 15,523 . - - 16,623 - 15,623
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

i

Exhibit C-8, Budget - Amendment #2 Contractor Initials,

International Institute of New England
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Exhibit C-7, Budget - Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: International institute of New England

Budget Request for: Refugee Health Promotion Program - Afghan
(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023

1._Total Salary'Wages 2032617

L ) A )
2 467325 - 467325

%F
7

BER

§

i

Indirect As A Percant of Direct - -

1 TOTAL 26, % 75000 -
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 00%

DS
Exhibit C-7, Budget - Amendment #2 Contractor nifials,
International Institute of New England
§5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 4/14/2022
Page 1 of 1 Date.
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Exhibit C-8, Budget - Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Program Name: International Institute of New England
Budget Request for: Refugee Health Promotion Program - Health Promotion Services
(Name of RFP)
Budget Period: July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023
% = dspses -
93664 - X - - - 49,936.64 - 49,036.64
11,48542 - 11,485 42 - - - 11,485 42 - 11,48542

$00.00 50000 - = - 500.00 - 50000
| TOTAL 61,922 - B1922 - - - §1922 - 61,922
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 00%

Ds

Exhibit C-8, Budget - Amendment #2 Contractor Initials.
International Insiitute of New England
$5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 4/14/2022
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Exhibit C-9, Budget - Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: International Institute of New England

Budget Request for: Refuges Health Promation Program - Afghan
(Nams of RFP)

Budget Period: July 1, 2023 -September 30, 2023

081,54
116875

1._Total SalaryWages 508154 - 154
[2__Employee Benefits 116875 1,16875

|
&

6. Travel
7.

7._Occupancy
8. Current Expenses - -
Telephone
Postage
Subscriptions.
Audit and Legal
Insurance
Board
@__Sofware
10, Marketing/Communications
11._Staff Education and Training
12 _Subcontracts/Agreements

13._Other (spocific details mandatory):
[Rental Assistance
Indirect As A Percent of Direct

L TOTAL 6,250 =
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 00%

el ]

CE|

&l

Ds
Exhibit C-9, Budget - Amendment #2 Cantractor intias
International Insttute of New England
$5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 4/14/2022
Page 1 of 1 Date,
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Exhibit C-10, Budget - Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Program Name: International Institute of New England
Budget Request for: Refuges Health Promation Program - Health Promotion Services
(Name of RFP)
Budget Period: July 1, 2023 - September 30, 2023
12,48406 - 12,484.06 - - - 12,484.06 - 1748406
287136 - 2871.36 - - 287136 - 2,871.36
12500 - 12500 - - - 12500 - 12500
L TOTAL 15,480 - 15,480 - = - 15,480 - 15480 ]
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 00%
DS

Exhibit C-10, Budget - Amendment #2 Contractor Initials.
International Institute of New England
$5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A02 4/14/2022
Page 1of 1 Date____
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE
OF NEW ENGLAND, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on
February 12, 2016. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and

is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business [D: 739194
Certificate Number: 0005748539

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 4th day of April A.D. 2022.

Gonfodr

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Deborah Shufrin_, hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of International Institute of New England.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on December 1, 2015, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.
(Date)

VOTED: That Jeffrey Thielman, President & CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of International Institute of New England to enter into contracts or agreements with the
State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)
of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby centify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the

date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,

all such limitations are expressly stated herein. y

A

Dated.'4 12/2022
: ignature of Electéd O

Name: Debyiah < s
Title: Y«fowevflufy'

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORDI & DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
: CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 05/26/2021
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Willis Towers Watson Northeast, Inc.
c/o 26 Century Blvd

P.O. Box 305191

Nashville, TN 372305191 UsA

| E-MAI

E%E‘CT Willis Towers Watson Certificate Center

PHONE P FAX
(AIC Mo, Ext); 1-877-945-7378 | (A noy: 1-888-467-2378

,AD,DFPESS: certificates@willis.com )
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

NAIC #

INSURER A: Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company | 18058
BISURED INSURER B :
International Institute of New England, Inc. - = — =
2 Boylston Street INSURERC : - -
3rd Floor INSURERD :
Boston, MA 02116 -

INSURERE : )

INSURERF : |

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: W21045020

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

[INSR IADDLFUBE POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP o B
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE _|INSD | WVD | POLICY NUMBER (MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
“DAMAGE TO RENTED N =y
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR | PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $ 100,000
Al | - - | MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000
L] PHPK2270202 05/05/2021 ‘05/05/2022 _PERSONAL & ADV INJURY s 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000
[~ PRO- [_‘ ' o 50 . OD7
POLICY JECT | |Loc : | PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 3,000,000
OTHER: | $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY C[E 2“’;2%%2133_'“&5 LiMIT $ 1,000,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
A [ | OWNED | SCHEDULED 05/05/2022 | BOD N
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS PHPK2270202 05/05/2021|05/05/2022 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| § B
% | HIRED % | NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
|7 | AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY | (Per accident) 17 .
| ’ \ s
a | X |UMBRELLALIAB | X | occuRr | EACH OCCURRENCE $ 5,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE PHUB766723 05/05/2021 [05/05/2022 | sccnecaTE $ 5,000,000
DED | xl RETENTIONS 10,000 ‘ $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN }7 1 STATUTE ‘ ER . ]
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? D NIA e =
(Mandatory in NH) | E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| §
If yes, describe under I - - ~——T15
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
Named Insured includes International Institute of New Hampshire, Inc. and International Institute of Lowell , Inc.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DKULICK

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
2/11/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

propuUcer License # 1780862

HUB International New England
600 Longwater Drive

[ conTACT
NAME:

| (AIC o, Ext): (781) 792-3200

A% Noy(781) 792-3400

Norwell, MA 02061-9146 | ABBHESs:
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# |
) INSURER A : Travelers Property Casualty Company of America (25674

INSURED INSURER B : a a

International Institute Of New England, Inc. | INSURERC : B

2 Boylston Street, 3rd floor | INSURERD :

Boston, MA 02116 ‘ N

| INSURERE : B
INSURERF :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

hiy TYPE OF INSURANCE e [y POLICY NUMBER Lfdc’m"m'cg&?ﬁﬁ] P LIMITS
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY o ——— :
cLams-maE | | occur | DAMAGE TORENTED |’
— - MED EXP (Any one person) $
L R PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | §
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s
|rouer[158% [ Jioe | PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § o
OTHER: $
| AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY &gnggégi[n)nsmem umr | -
| | ANYAUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
| RS ony RUTGSHEP BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
| RIRESS oy ROTONTY (Bo hecidenty AGE $
| $
| UMBRELLA LIAB H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE s
EXCESS LIAB | CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE |
peo | | RetenTions s
A | ORKERE SMERNsATION, X[ &hRnre | (887 [
prbmiilmatt il SRR . 6JUB-9975L65-4-21 101112021 | 10112022 | | oo . 500,000
Mandatory inNF) N jura I E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE, § 500,000
DESERIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 500,000

Coverage for New Hampshire

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

NH Department of Education
Bureau of Adult Education
21 South Fruit Street, Suite 2
Concord, NH 03301

|

0

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

oo

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Allrights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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International
Institute of
New England

The mission of the International Institute of New England (IINE) is to create opportunities for refugees
and immigrants to succeed through resettlement, education, career advancement and pathways to
citizenship. IINE serves a unique and hard to reach immigrant population including refugees that speak
rarer languages; asylees; adult and child survivors of human trafficking; and unaccompanied children
Joining undocumented family members. Many are survivors of political violence, repression and
persecution. IINE is also unique in offering a holistic service continuum that combines resettlement,

trauma-informed case management, education, employment, and legal services, enabling us to
individualize support and help families thrive.

BOSTO!Q 2 delstdn S'tr‘eet. 3rd Floor Bdstoh, MA 02116 617-695-9990  ONLINE ii‘ne.org
LOWELL 101 Jackson St, Suite 2 Lowell, MA 01852 978-459-9031 EMAIL

info@iine.org
MANCHESTER 470 Pine Street, Lower Level Manchester, NH 03104  603-647-1500
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50 Washington Street

Westborough, MA 01581
' S 508.366.9100

great minds | great hearts aafcpa.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of
International Institute of New England, Inc.:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of International Institute of New England, Inc.
(a Massachusetts nonprofit corporation), which comprise the statements of financial position as of
September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, cash
flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of International Institute of New England, Inc. as of September 30, 2020 and 2019, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Boston, Massachusetts
March 25, 2021

Page 1



INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statements of Financial Position
September 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Current Assets:
Cash S 906,611 S 303,109
Short-term investments 400,000 600,000
Government contracts and contributions receivable 723,511 898,459
Accounts receivable 54,101 41,620
Prepaid expenses and other 17,744 75,131
Total current assets 2,101,967 1,918,319
Investments 6,772,529 6,389,743
Property and Equipment, net 1,588,536 1,728,194
Security Deposits 100,434 100,434
Total assets 10.,563.4 10,136,690
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable S 59,503 S 66,190
Accrued expenses 347,866 372,088
Current portion of lease incentive 110,782 110,782
Conditional advances 57.924 84.864
Total current liabilities 576,075 633,924
Deferred Rent and Lease Incentive, net of current portion 751,328 857,417
Total liabilities 1,327,403 1,491,341
Net Assets:
Without donor restrictions:
Operating 7,968,322 7,535,501
Property and equipment 942,314 971,188
Total without donor restrictions 8,910,636 8,506,689
With donor restrictions 325,427 138.660
Total net assets 9,236,063 8,645,349
Total liabilities and net assets 466 S 10,136,690
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 2



INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets
For the Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Without With Without With
Donor Donor Donor Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Restrictions Total
Revenues:
Government contracts $ 3,965,017 S - $ 3,965,017 $ 3,694,803 S - $ 3,694,803
Grants and contributions 1,688,987 675,977 2,364,964 1,779,756 392,684 2,172,440
Donated goods and services 560,288 - 560,288 1,062,113 - 1,062,113
Program service fees 229,059 - 229,059 231,069 - 231,069
Contracted services 159,183 - 159,183 131,921 - 131,921
United Way allocation 58,800 - 58,800 60,000 - 60,000
Net assets released from program restrictions 639,210 (639,210) - 367,970 (367,970) -
Total revenues 7,300,544 36,767 7,337,311 7,327,632 24,714 7,352,346
Expenses:
Program services 4,921,123 - 4,921,123 5,777,290 5,777,290
General and administrative 1,515,827 - 1,515,827 1,351,264 - 1,351,264
Fundraising 835,801 - 835,801 1,079,977 - 1,079,977
Total expenses 7,272,751 - 7:.272,751 8,208,531 - 8,208,531
Changes in net assets from operations 27,793 36,767 64,560 (880,899) 24,714 (856,185)
Non-Operating Revenue (Expense):
Investment return 382,836 - 382,836 352,632 352,632
Capital grants and contracts 35,832 150,000 185,832 - ) -
Loss on disposal of property and equipment (42,514) - (42,514) (9,029) - (9.029)
Total non-operating revenue (expense) 376,154 150,000 526,154 343,603 - 343,603
Changes in net assets 403,947 186,767 590,714 (537,296) 24,714 (512,582)
Net Assets:
Beginning of year 8,506,689 138,660 8,645,349 9,043,985 113946 9,157,931
End of year 8,910,636 325,427 9,236,063 8,506,689 138,660 8,645,349
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 3



INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended September 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Changes in net assets S 590,714 S (512,582)
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:

Capital grants and contracts (185,832) -
Investment return (382,836) (352,632)
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 42,514 9,029
Depreciation 299,534 282,936
Amortization of lease incentive (110,784) (110,784)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (12,481) (41,620)
Government contracts and contributions receivable 310,780 (185,256)
Prepaid expenses and other 57,387 38,760
Accounts payable (6,687) 22,261
Accrued expenses (24,222) 45,202
Conditional advances (26,940) 24,061
Deferred rent 4,695 16,944
Net cash provided by (used) in operating activities 555,842 (763,681)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Proceeds from sale/transfer of investments 200,050 775,050

Acquisition of property and equipment (202,390) (124,735)

Investment purchases - (16,412)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (2.340) 633,903
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Capital grants and contracts 50,000 -

Net Change in Cash 603,502 (129,778)
Cash:
Beginning of year 303,109 432,887
End of year 2906611 .5 303100
Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Transactions:

Unrealized gain on investments S 83056 156,426

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 4



INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

(With Summarized Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2019)

Personnel and Related:
Salaries

Payroll taxes and fringe benefits

Donated services

Purchased and contracted services

Staff training
Recruitment

Total personnel and related

Occupancy:
Rent and utilities
Depreciation
Equipment rental
Repairs and maintenance

Total occupancy

Other:
Client assistance
Special events
Professional fees
Depreciation
Service charges
Supplies and materials
Telephone

Travel, meetings and conferences

Donated goods
Insurance

Dues and subscriptions
Printing

Storage

Postage

Advertising
Miscellaneous

Total other

Total expenses

2020 2019
General
and
Program Adminis-

Services trative Fundraising Total Total
$ 2,572,879 S 867,535 S 410,616 $ 3,851,030 S 3,744,694
483,114 151,974 78,362 713,450 713,122
513,454 - . 513,454 913,115
78,949 116,003 33,859 228,811 259,052
2,330 1,827 575 4,732 13,311
846 774 1,944 3,564 3,880
3,651,572 1,138,113 525,356 5,315,041 5,647,174
427,811 67,662 37,686 533,159 522,158
152,337 34,530 16,249 203,116 201,858
13,362 1,047 925 15,334 18,141
1,749 788 - 2,537 16,460
595,259 104,027 54,860 754,146 758,617
361,974 - - 361,974 717,364
- - 220,806 220,806 295,880
- 109,586 1,125 110,711 98,348
72,510 16,257 7,651 96,418 81,078
10,480 51,510 14,124 76,114 74,012
49,692 12,594 398 62,684 79,849
52,321 7,375 1,944 61,640 72,439
25,337 22,075 1,088 48,500 76,242
46,834 - - 46,834 148,998
12,639 33,859 - 46,498 52,765
11,387 10,861 4,048 26,296 36,022
6,060 5,331 2,223 13,614 23,771
10,304 277 - 10,581 9,995
6,683 1,303 2,078 10,064 12,912
7,037 - 100 7,137 17,090
1,034 2,659 - 3,693 5,975
674,292 273,687 255,585 1,203,564 1,802,740
$ 4,921,123 $ 1,515,827 $ 835,801 $ 7,272,751 $ 8,208,531

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 5



INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

General
and
Program Adminis-
Services trative Fundraising Total
Personnel and Related:
Salaries S 2,492,807 S 736,209 S 515,678 S 3,744,694
Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 470,743 144,123 98,256 713,122
Donated services 913,115 - - 913,115
Purchased and contracted services 120,332 122,337 16,383 259,052
Staff training 3,567 4,595 5,149 13,311
Recruitment 1,566 2,314 - 3,880
Total personnel and related 4,002,130 1,009,578 635,466 5.647,174
Occupancy:
Rent and utilities 417,070 50,445 54,643 522,158
Depreciation 151,394 34,316 16,148 201,858
Equipment rental 16,393 968 780 18,141
Repairs and maintenance 9,561 6,899 - 16,460
Total occupancy 594,418 92,628 71,571 758,617
Other:
Client assistance 717,364 - - 717,364
Special events - - 295,880 295,880
Professional fees - 98,348 - 98,348
Depreciation 63,141 9,340 8,597 81,078
Service charges 7,305 51,894 14,813 74,012
Supplies and materials 68,263 9,168 2,418 79,849
Telephone 64,461 3,366 4,612 72,439
Travel, meetings and conferences 41,013 22,603 12,626 76,242
Donated goods 148,998 - - 148,998
Insurance 17,079 35,686 - 52,765
Dues and subscriptions 9,780 14,555 11,687 36,022
Printing 8,587 117 15,067 23,771
Storage 9,661 334 - 9,995
Postage 4,872 1,841 6,199 12,912
Advertising 16,049 - 1,041 17,090
Miscellaneous 4,169 1,806 - 5,975
Total other 1,180,742 249,058 372,940 1,802,740
Total expenses S 5,777.290 S 1,351,264 S 1,079,977 S 8,208,531

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 6



INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

1. OPERATIONS AND NONPROFIT STATUS

International Institute of New England, Inc. (the Institute) is a nonprofit organization that
provides assistance to the immigrant and refugee populations of Massachusetts and New
Hampshire. In fiscal years 2020 and 2019, there were approximately 2,500 unduplicated people,
from approximately 100 countries that benefited from the Institute’s services, gaining the
knowledge and skills necessary for their integration into American life. The Institute’s services
include English and literacy classes, citizenship education, job training and placement, legal aid
and counseling services, and case management.

The Institute is exempt from Federal income taxes as an organization (not a private foundation)
formed for charitable purposes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). The
Institute is also exempt from state income taxes. Contributions made to the Institute are
deductible by donors within the requirements of the IRC.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Institute prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
standards and principles (U.S. GAAP) established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB). References to U.S. GAAP in these notes are to the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC).

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

The Institute adopted FASB’s Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), with respect to its revenue recognition policies. The core
principle of the new accounting guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue when it
transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. As a result of
the adoption of Topic 606, disclosures related to revenue recognition have been enhanced. The
Institute adopted ASU No. 2014-09 using a modified retrospective method applied to those
contracts which were not completed as of October 1, 2019. There was no cumulative-effect
adjustment to opening net assets as of October 1, 2019. The adoption of this ASU did not have
a material impact on the accompanying financial statements.

The Institute also adopted FASB’s ASU No. 2018-08, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying
the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made.
This ASU clarifies and improves guidance for contributions received and contributions made and
provides guidance to organizations on how to account for certain exchange transactions. In
addition, it clarifies whether a contribution is conditional. As a result, it enhances comparability
of financial information among not-for-profit entities. The Institute adopted ASU No. 2018-08
using a modified prospective method effective October 1, 2019. Under the modified
prospective method, this ASU only applies to agreements not completed or entered into
(revenue or expense that has not yet been recognized) as of October 1, 2019. As a result, the
fiscal year 2019 financial statements are not restated and there was no cumulative-effect
adjustment to opening net assets as of October 1, 2019.

Page 7



INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major, or central to the provision of
program services are reported as revenues and expenses in the accompanying statements of
activities and changes in net assets. Non-operating revenue (expense) includes investment and
property and equipment related activity.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Property and Equipment and Depreciation
Property and equipment are recorded at cost when purchased or at fair value at the date of

donation. Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Leasehold improvements Lesser of life of

lease or 10 years
Furniture and equipment 3 -10vyears
Vehicles 5 years

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded based on management’s analysis of specific
accounts and their estimate of amounts that may be uncollectible, if any. No allowance for
doubtful accounts was deemed necessary as of September 30, 2020 or 2019.

Cash

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, management considers all highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash, except those funds that
are included in the Institute’s investments (see Note 4).

Fair Value Measurements

The Institute follows the accounting and disclosure standards pertaining to ASC Topic, Fair Value
Measurements, for qualifying assets and liabilities. Fair value is defined as the price that the
Institute would receive upon selling an asset or pay to settle a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants.

The Institute uses a framework for measuring fair value that includes a hierarchy that
categorizes and prioritizes the sources used to measure and disclose fair value. This hierarchy is
broken down into three levels based on inputs that market participants would use in valuing the
financial instruments based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Institute.
Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the
financial instrument, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or
unobservable.

Page 8



INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing the financial instrument developed based on market data obtained from sources
independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting
entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the
asset developed based on the best information available.

The three-tier hierarchy of inputs is as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset either directly
or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active.

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable, and which require significant judgment or
estimation.

An asset or liability's level within the framework is based upon the lowest level of any input that
is significant to the fair value measurement.

Investments

Investments are recorded in the financial statements at fair value. If an investment is directly
held by the Institute and an active market with quoted prices exists, the market price of an
identical security is used to report fair value. Reported fair values of shares in mutual funds are
based on share prices reported by the funds as of the last business day of the fiscal year. The
Institute’s interest in a limited liability partnership is reported at the net asset value (NAV)
reported by fund managers, which is used as a practical expedient to estimate fair value, unless
it is probable that all or a portion of the investment will be sold for an amount different from
NAV. As of September 30, 2020, and 2019, the Institute had no plans to sell this investment.

Revenue Recognition
Government Contracts, Grants and Contributions

The Institute’s primary sources of revenue are from Federal and state government contracts.
Amounts received under these contracts have been recorded in accordance with ASU Subtopic
958 (see page 10). These contracts are considered nonreciprocal transactions because the
general public receives the benefit as the result of the assets transferred. These conditional
contributions are recognized as services are provided or costs are incurred.

Grants and contributions and United Way allocations are recorded as revenue and net assets
without donor restrictions when unconditionally committed. Grants and contributions with
donor restrictions are recorded as revenues and net assets with donor restrictions when
unconditionally received or pledged. Net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net
assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities and changes in net
assets as net assets released from restrictions as costs are incurred or time or program
restrictions have lapsed.
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue Recognition (Continued)
Government Contracts, Grants and Contributions (Continued)

In accordance with Topic 958, the Institute must determine whether a contribution (or a
promise) is conditional or unconditional for transactions deemed to be a contribution. A
contribution is considered to be a conditional contribution if an agreement includes a barrier
that must be overcome and either a right of return of assets or a right of release of a promise to
transfer assets exists (see Note 8). Indicators of a barrier include a measurable performance-
related barrier or other measurable barriers, a stipulation that limits discretion by the recipient
on the conduct of an activity, and stipulations that are related to the purpose of the agreement.
Topic 958 prescribes that the Institute should not consider probability of compliance with the
barrier when determining if such awards are conditional and should be reported as conditional
grant advance liabilities until such conditions are met. Assets received before the barrier is
overcome are recorded as conditional advances.

A portion of the Institute’s revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable and unit-rate contracts
(contracts), which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the
incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts are recognized as revenue when the
Institute has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract provisions. Amounts
received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as conditional advances in the
accompanying statements of financial position.

Special events revenue, included in grants and contributions in the accompanying statements of
activities and changes in net assets, is from the Institute’s ability to host fundraising events.
Special event income consists of both contributions and sales. The contribution portion of the
special event income is recognized as revenue when unconditionally committed or received in
accordance with Topic 958. Special events are considered donor restricted if the proceeds of
the event are restricted for specific purposes or time periods at the time of the event. The sales
portion of the special event income is recognized in accordance with Topic 606 and is derived
from various components, including ticket sales from fundraising events held in which the
transaction price is determined annually. Registration fees for these events are set by the
Institute and have not been allocated as the events are each considered to be separate
performance obligations. The fee portion for these events is immaterial and have not been
recognized separately from the contribution portion.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers — Topic 606

The Institute generally measures revenue from exchange transactions based on the amount of
consideration the Institute expects to be entitled for the transfer of goods or services to a
customer, then recognizes this revenue when or as the Institute satisfies its performance
obligations under a contract. The Institute evaluates its revenue recognition based on the five-
step model under Topic 606: (1) Identify the contract with the customer; (2) Identify the
performance obligations in the contract; (3) Determine the transaction price; (4) Allocate the
transaction price to separate performance obligations; and (5) Recognize revenue when (or as)
each performance obligation is satisfied.

The Institute recognized program service fees for legal and translation services provided for
clients, in which the clients either pay for the services themselves or are sponsored by
corporations depending on the service provided. Program service fees generally consist of a
single performance obligation to provide services, and agreements with clients do not contain
variable consideration. Accordingly, program service fees are recognized at a point in time,
which is also when the performance obligation is satisfied. The transaction price is a fixed fee
based upon the service provided, which is established by management based on hourly rates
and expected number of hours to complete the service.
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue Recognition (Continued)
Revenue from Contracts with Customers — Topic 606 (Continued)

Contracted service revenue consists of various training and education service programs
provided to immigrants and refugees that span over several months based on the nature of the
program or course. There is a single performance obligation for all programs, which consists of
the completion of the training and education program or course and related events. Revenue is
recognized ratably over the period of the program or course, and the transaction price is based
on fixed quoted prices. The contract amount may vary based upon the number of participants
in the program and the rate per participant. Generally, a fixed-fee contract is signed by either
an individual participant in the program or an organization sponsoring the individuals. The
transaction price is determined based upon hourly rates established by management and the-
number of hours estimated to complete a contract.

Other

Investment return consists of interest, dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses.
Interest income is recorded as earned and dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date.
Realized gains and losses on investment transactions are recorded based on the average cost
method. Unrealized gains and losses are recorded based on changes in fair value. All other
revenue is recognized as earned.

Expense Allocations

Program expenses include direct expenses, as well as indirect expenses, which are allocated
based upon management’s estimate of the percentage attributable to each program.

Certain categories of expenses are attributable to more than one program or supporting
function and are allocated on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that
are allocated are salaries, payroll taxes and fringe benefits, which are allocated on the basis of
estimates of time and effort; occupancy and depreciation, which are allocated on a square
footage basis; and other operating expenses, which are allocated based on management’s
estimate of usage.

Advertising Costs

Costs incurred for producing and communicating advertising are expensed when incurred and
are reflected as advertising in the accompanying statements of functional expenses.

Donated Goods and Services

The Institute receives donated goods and services in various aspects of its program services.
The value of the donated items is based on values assigned or estimates made by the donors.
Donated goods include food and clothing; and donated services include legal, teaching, and
consulting work. Donated items received were as follows:

2020 2019
Donated services $ 513,454 § 913,115
Donated goods 46,834 148,998

$ 560,288 S 1,062,113
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Donated Goods and Services (Continued)

The Institute also receives a substantial amount of donated administrative services. Many
individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that help the Institute accomplish
its goals. These services do not meet the criteria for recognition as contributed services under
U.S. GAAP and, accordingly, are not included in the accompanying financial statements.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 25, 2021, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. See Note 7 for an event that met the criteria for
disclosure in the financial statements.

Income Taxes

The Institute accounts for uncertainty in income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic, Income
Taxes. This standard clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statements regarding a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The Institute has determined that there
are no uncertain tax positions which qualify for either recognition or disclosure in the financial
statements at September 30, 2020 or 2019. The Institute’s information returns are subject to
examination by the Federal and state jurisdictions.

Net Assets

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions:

Net assets without donor restrictions are those net resources that bear no external restrictions
and are generally available for use by the Institute. The Institute has grouped its net assets
without donor restrictions into the following categories:

Operating - represents funds available to carry on the operations of the Institute.

Property and equipment - reflect and account for the activities relating to the Institute’s
property and equipment, net of related liabilities.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions:

The Institute receives contributions and grants that are designated by donors for specific
purposes or time periods. These contributions are recorded as net assets with donor
restrictions until they are either expended for their designated purposes or as the time
restrictions lapse.

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of the following at September 30:

2020 2019
Purpose restricted S 175,427 S 138,660
Capital restricted 150,000 -

S 325,427 138,660
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

RETIREMENT PLAN

The Institute has a defined contribution retirement plan covering all eligible employees over the
age of twenty-one who have completed a minimum of 1,000 hours of service within each of
their first two years of employment. Employee contributions are vested immediately into the
plan upon eligibility. The Institute made $60,174 and $74,120 of matching contributions to the
plan during the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, which are included in
payroll taxes and fringe benefits in the accompanying statements of functional expenses.

INVESTMENTS

Investments, which are stated at fair value (see Note 2) in the accompanying statements of
financial position, are as follows:

2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Money market funds $ 1,200,058 §$ - S - $ 1,200,058
Mutual funds:
Equities 3,621,534 - - 3,621,534
Fixed income 1,019,733 - - 1,019,733
S 5,841,325 S - S - 5,841,325
Limited liability partnership (see below) 1,331,204
Total investments S 7,172,529
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Money market funds S 45216 S - S i S 45216
Mutual funds:
Equities 4,431,162 - - 4,431,162
Fixed income 1,244,737 - - 1,244,737
5,721,11 S - S - 5,721.115
Limited liability partnership (see below) 1,268,628
Total investments $ 6,989,743

In accordance with ASU No. 2015-07, the Institute’s investment in a limited liability partnership
is valued at fair value using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) practical expedient and has not
been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in the above tables
are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts presented in the
statements of financial position (see Note 2).

Investments are reported in the accompanying statements of financial position as current or
long-term assets based on management’s intent with respect to the use of the investments. At
September 30, 2020 and 2019, $400,000 and $600,000, respectively, were reported as current
investments as management’s intent is to use these funds for operations in the subsequent
year.

The investments are not insured and are subject to market fluctuation.
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

5. CONCENTRATIONS

The Institute maintains its cash balances with two banks. The Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) insures balances at each bank up to certain amounts. At certain times during
the year, cash balances exceeded the insured amounts. The Institute has supplemental
coverage at one bank, which insures the portion of deposits in excess of the FDIC's limit. The
Institute has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management believes the Institute is
not exposed to any significant credit risk on its operating cash balance.

Funding agencies and donors exceeding 10% of the Institute's operating revenue and support
(excluding donated goods and services) or government contracts, contributions and accounts
receivables as of and for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, are as follows:

Government
Contracts,

Operating Contributions

Revenue and Accounts
Funder and Support % Receivables %
2020 2019 2020 2019
Commonwealth of Massachusetts 21% 18% 37% 20%
U.S. Committee for Refugees and Immigrants 14% 17% 20% 19%
State of New Hampshire 9% 7% 18% 6%
Private donor 1% -% 14% -%

6. FUNDING

The Institute receives a significant portion of its funding from government agencies, all of which
are subject to audit by the specific government agency. These contracts are subject to audit by
these government agencies. In the opinion of management, the results of such audits, if any,
will not have a material effect on the financial position of the Institute as of September 30, 2020
and 2019, or on the changes in its net assets for the years then ended.

7. LEASE AGREEMENTS

The Institute leases its main office space in Boston, Massachusetts under an agreement that
runs through July 2026. Monthly lease payments for fiscal years 2020 and 2019 were
approximately $42,000 and $41,000, respectively, and increase throughout the term of the
lease. The Institute records rent on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The
difference between the monthly lease payments and the related rent expense for a given year is
recorded as deferred rent. The straight-line rent expense combines the escalation amounts and
an initial three-month rent-free period. At September 30, 2020 and 2019, deferred rent was
$215,888 and $211,193, respectively, and is included in deferred rent and lease incentive in the
accompanying statements of financial position.

The lease agreement also included a tenant improvement allowance of $1,107,822 in the form
of a reimbursement for construction and related costs incurred by the Institute for leasehold
improvements. This improvement allowance is reported as a liability and is being amortized
over the lease term. The improvement allowance is included in deferred rent and lease
incentives in the accompanying statements of financial position. Amortization of the lease
incentive was $110,782 during each of the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, and is
netted with rent and utilities in the accompanying statements of functional expenses.
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

7. LEASE AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The Institute leases program and administrative space under various operating leases and
tenant-at-will agreements. These leases expire at various dates through January 2023. The
leases require the Institute to maintain certain insurance coverage and pay for its proportionate
share of real estate taxes and operating expenses.

Facility rent expense under all leases was approximately $514,000 and $500,000 for the years
ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, which is included in rent and utilities in the
accompanying statements of functional expenses.

In February 2021, the Institute entered into an operating lease agreement for program space in
Lowell, Massachusetts. The lease will commence on July 1, 2021, with monthly payments of
$6,756 through June 30, 2031. Rent increases annually based on the Consumer Price Index,
which is limited to a maximum annual increase of 3%. There are extension options for two
additional five-year periods.

The Institute also has a copier lease with monthly payments through June 2022.

Future minimum lease payments under the lease agreements for the next five fiscal years are as

follows:
2021 S 617,014
2022 S 587,850
2023 $ 557,880
2024 S 553,247
2025 S 565,496
Thereafter $ 479,753
8. CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS AND GRANTS

Conditional Government Contracts

During fiscal year 2020, the Institute received grants and contributions (including government
contracts) that contained donor-imposed conditions that represent a barrier that must be
overcome as well as a right of return of assets or release from obligations. The Institute
recognizes these grants and contributions, including government contracts, when donor-
imposed conditions are substantially met (see Note 2).

Conditional promises to give at September 30, 2020, consist of:

Subject to measurable performance barriers S 629,471
Incurring qualifying expenses 557,306
Total conditional promises to give S 1,186,777
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

10.

CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS AND GRANTS (Continued)
Paycheck Protection Program Loan

The Institute applied for and was awarded a loan of $884,501 from the Paycheck Protection
Program (PPP) established by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act).
The funds were used to pay certain payroll costs, including benefits during a covered period as
defined in the CARES Act. A portion of these funds may be forgiven, as defined in the
agreement, at the end of the covered period and the remainder of the funds will be due over a
two-year period with interest at 1%. Any repayment will be deferred for a period of ten months
from the end of the covered period, when the note, plus interest, will be due in equal monthly
payments over a two-year period. The forgiveness calculations are subject to review and
approval by the lending bank and the Small Business Administration (SBA).

The Institute believes there is less than a remote chance this loan will not be forgiven and,
therefore, is accounting for it as a conditional grant under ASC Subtopic 958-605. This grant is
conditional upon certain performance requirements and the incurrence of eligible expenses.
Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Institute has incurred expenditures in
compliance with the loan application and CARES Act requirements. As of September 30, 2020,
the Institute recognized the full PPP loan amount of $884,501 as grant revenue, which is
included in government contracts in the accompanying 2020 statement of activities and changes
in net assets.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Institute’s President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is also a member of the Board of
Directors. Compensation and employee benefits for services provided as the President and CEO
are determined by the independent members of the Board of Directors and are based on
performance objectives.

The Institute’s Chief Financial Officer is also the Institute’s Treasurer.

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Institute’s financial assets available within one year from the statements of financial
position date for general operating expenses are as follows at September 30:

2020 2019
Cash S 906,611 S 303,109
Short-term investments 400,000 600,000
Government contracts and contributions receivables 723,511 898,459
Accounts receivable 54,101 41,620
2,084,223 1,843,188
Less - donor restricted cash and contributions receivable 325,427 138,660

Total financial assets and liquidity resources available

within one year $ 1,758,796 S 1,704,528

The Institute is substantially supported by grants and contributions without donor restrictions
and government contracts. As part of the Institute’s liquidity management, the Institute has a
policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities and
other obligations come due.
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Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2020 and 2019

11.

12.

13.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment consist of the following as of September 30:

2020 2019
Leasehold improvements $ 1,955,962 S 1,928,778
Furniture and equipment 679,676 589,571
Vehicles - 23,064
2,635,638 2,541,413
Less - accumulated depreciation 1,047,102 813,219
Net property and equipment S 1,588,536 $ 1,728,194

Depreciation expense was $299,534 and $282,936 for the years ended September 30, 2020 and

2019, respectively.
CONTINGENCY

The COVID-19 pandemic in the United States has caused business disruption and a reduction in
economic activity. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is
considerabhle uncertainty around the duration. While the Institute expects this matter to
negatively impact its operating results, the related financial impact and duration cannot be

reasonably estimated at this time.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain amounts in the fiscal year 2019 financial statements have been reclassified to conform

with the fiscal year 2020 presentation.
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International Institute of New England
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Partner, Flagship Pioneering

Christina Bai

President and Chair of the Board, MeBo Global Education,
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Sam Epée-Bounya
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Tuan Ha-Ngoc

President and CEO, AVEO Pharmaceuticals (Retired)

Belinda Juran

Partner, WilmerHale (Retired)

William Krause, Secretary

Portfolio Manager and Vice President, Northern Trust

Shari Loessberg

Senior Lecturer, MIT Sloan School of Management

Bopha Malone

Vice President, Enterprise Bank

Libby May
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Communications, Southern New Hampshire University

Theo Melas-Kyriazi

CFO, Levitronix LLC

Dr. Frederick Millham

Chief of Surgery, South Shore Hospital

Deborah Shufrin, Assistant
Secretary/Clerk
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Nia Tatsis

Chief Regulatory Officer, Vertex Pharmaceuticals

Jeffrey Thielman, President
and CEO

President and CEO, International Institute of New England

Céline Mukasine, Treasurer

Chief Financial Officer, International Institute of New
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Case Specialist, Refugee Mental Health Promotion

Reports to: Community Services Manager
Supervision: N/A
Status: Non-exempt

Overview:

The Case Specialist, Refugee Mental Health Promotion will provide health and case

management services for refugee clients and their families resettled through IINE.

Qualifications:

Bachelor’s degree or equivalent experience within the field.
Ability to maintain confidentiality regarding client information
Strong knowledge of database management and design; MS Outlook, Access, Excel and Word

Strong intercultural communication skills; demonstrated ability to work effectively with people
from other cultural backgrounds

Bilingual candidates preferred—proficiency in Arabic, French, Dari, Pashtu sought
Strong organization skills and attention to detail
Must have driver’s license, personal vehicle, auto insurance, and clean driving record

Duties and Responsibilities:

MENTAL HEALTH CARE

Promote the mental health and well-being of all new and vulnerable refugees residing in the
greater Manchester and Nashua areas.

Promote the mental health literacy of refugees, to enable them to access and navigate the U.S.
mental health & healthcare systems independently.

Build capacity within communities to address mental health needs, including help overcoming
stigmas associated with mental health care and creating opportunities for social engagement
to reduce isolation

Help to build and maintain a growing network of mental healthcare providers and make client
referrals for service.

Respond to internal referrals from IINE case specialists - Counsel and assist families in
adjustment and attaining appropriate mental health services and, when appropriate,
contribute to the client’s self-sufficiency plan.

Ensure that refugees obtain all needed medical and mental health services in a manner that is
timely as well as culturally and linguistically appropriate.

Facilitate wellness groups

Conduct home visiting as part of the Family Strengthening Program for Refugees

Increase refugee access to affordable mental healthcare and make referrals on client’s behalf
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— Document all contacts made on behalf of clients and services provided in the clients’ case files;
enters data in the central database.

— Report responsibilities as assigned: monthly domestic case coordination, quarterly and annual
reports for the health Promotion program.

— Submit client’s mental health records, I-94s and intake forms to mental health providers.

— Set mental health appointments, screenings and follow up appointments.

— Assistin cultural orientation by helping the client to navigate the Mental health system

— Documents all contacts made on behalf of clients and services provided in the clients’ case
files; enters data in the central database.

— Attend staff meetings and weekly Client Disposition meeting.

= Perform all other duties assigned by supervisor.
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Case Specialist, Refugee Health Promotion

Reports to: Resettlement Program Manager
Supervision: N/A
Status: Non-exempt

Overview:

The Case Manager, Health & Resettlement Services, will provide health and case management

services for each refugee client and their families resettled through IINE.

Qualifications:

Bachelor’s degree or equivalent experience within the field
Dari and Pashtu speaking candidates strongly preferred
Ability to maintain confidentiality regarding client information

Bilingual/biliterate English Dari & Pashto or other languages is preferred, with demonstrated
literacy, fluency and written communication skills in each language. Skills test will be given.

Strong knowledge of database management and design; MS Outlook, Access, Excel and Word

Strong intercultural communication skills; demonstrated ability to work effectively with people
from other cultural backgrounds

Strong organization skills and attention to detail
Must have driver’s license, personal vehicle, auto insurance, and clean driving record

Duties and Responsibilities:

HEALTH

Promote the health and well-being of all new and vulnerable refugees residing in the greater
Manchester and Nashua areas.

Promote the health literacy of refugees, to enable them to access and navigate the U.S. health
care system independently.

Ensure that refugees obtain all needed medical and mental health services in a manner that is
timely, as well as culturally and linguistically appropriate.

Increase refugee access to affordable health care over the long term.

Document all contacts made on behalf of clients and services provided in the clients’ case files;
enters data in the central database.

Reporting responsibilities as assigned: monthly domestic case coordination, quarterly and
annual reports for the health Promotion program.

Submitting client’s IOM health records, 1-94s and intake forms to health providers.

Setting medical appointments (screenings, lab, X rays, ultrasounds, mammograms,
immunizations, dental, eye care, hearing, etc.) and coordinating follow-ups.
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— COVID-19: Assist Local Health Department with connecting clients to COVID-19 Information /
updates, scheduling vaccine & booster appointments. Helping to advocate / promote the
positive benefits of receiving vaccinations for clients who are vaccine resistant.

— Coordinate and assess needs of clients; and develop short and long terms service plans based
on IINE’s comprehensive range of services in conjunction with other service providers.

— Counsel and assist families in adjustment and attaining appropriate services and when
appropriate contribute to the client’s self-sufficiency plan.

= Help to build and maintain a growing network of healthcare providers and make client
referrals for service.

— Documents all contacts made on behalf of clients and services provided in the clients’ case
files; enters data in the central database.

— Attend staff meetings and weekly Client Disposition meeting.
— Perform all other duties assigned by supervisor.
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International Institute of New England

Keyv Personnel

Refugee Health Promotion Program

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

TBD Mental Health Case Worker 41,600 60% $37,452

TBD Health Case Worker 41,600 60% $37.,452

Refugee Health Promotion Program - Afghan

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

TBD Mental Health Case Worker 41,600 25% $15,638

TBD Health Case Worker 41,600 24% $14,851
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STATE OF NEW MSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF THE CbMMISS[ONER
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

Lori A. Shibisette 603-271-9200  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9200 7
Commissioner Fax: 603-2714912 TDDAccess: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.ah.gov
Lori A. Weaver

Deputy Commissioner

November 3, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to
amend existing Sole Source contracts with the vendors listed below for services and activities to
promote the health and well-being of refugees resettled in New.Hampshire, by.increasing the total
price limitation by $9,375 from $225,000 to $234,375 and by extending the completion dates from
August 14, 2023 to September 30, 2023 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on May 6, 2020, item #15.

Vendor Name | Vendor | Area Served Current Increase Revised

‘ Code Amount {Decrease) Amount
Ascentria - ’
Community 222201 | Concord, NH $112,500 $4,687.50 |- $117,187.50
Services, Inc.
International
Institute of New | 177551 | NGNCReSIer. | g442 500 $4687.50 |  $117,187.50
England, Inc.

Total: $225,000 $9,375 $234,375

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022, 2023, and 2024, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified. -

05-95-95-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY,
REFUGEE SERVICES

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is (o join communities and families
- in providing opportunilies for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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o | e, | o | (%, | U | G | Gt

2021 | 102-500731 C‘;,’:ggcgé” 42200012 | $65,421 $9,375 $74.796

2022 | 102500731 | CH0aCe " | 42200012 | - 575,000 $0 $75,000

2023 | 102500731 C‘,’,’:gg"s'ié“ 42200012 | $75,000 so | $75.000

2024 | 102-500731 C‘,’,';ggcs‘zc’“ 42200012 |  $9,579 $0 $9,579
Total | $225000 | $9,375 | $234,375

EXPLANATION

y This request is Solo Source because the contracts were ongmally approved as sole

Contractors listed above are the only Contractors that possess the comprehensive chent
information and cultural experlise required to manage client cases and address the complex,
interrelated health and social needs of each individual.

The purpose of this request is to add additional funding for State Fiscal Year 2021 and
change the contract period date from August 14, 2023 to September 30, 2023 to align with the
federal grant period. The Federal Grant Office of Refugee Resettlement requested the contracts
align with the awarded funding and funding period.

Refugees who have resetiled to New Hampshire will be served through these contracts.
Approximately 500 individuals will be served over the duration of the entire contract terms.

The Contractors will ensure services include scheduling and coordinating medical and
mental health appeintments; accompanying clients to medical appointments; providing and
facilitating transportation to appointments; and ensuring interpreter services are acquired for all
appointments, as necessary.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures:

* 100% of all heaith-related orientations and workshops/trainings shall be provided
throughout the project period, as necessary.

e 100% of newly arrived refugees and those who have been in the United States two
(2) years of less shall be prioritized.

o 100% of all written materials and resources produced shall be identified and
pricritized for translation as applicable.

e 100% of all interpreter services shall be coordinated consistently and reéularly
throughout the project period.

¢ 80% of refugees shall express an increased knowledge about health insurance
/ requirements including how and where to enroll in health insurance. .
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« B0% of adults shall express increased knowledge about accessing and navigating
the U.S. health care system. ‘

e B0% of adults will know how to make and keep medical appointments.

o 80% of adults will know how to use public, Medicaid, and/or appropriate
transporiation to get to medical appointments.

¢ 80% of adults shall demonstrate increased knowledge about at least one health
topic.

o 100% of clients with health needs beyond initial exam shall be scheduled for follow-
up care.

e 100% of clients with mental heaith needs beyond initial exam shall be scheduled
for follow-up care within 60 days of arrival.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend
the agreements for up to three (3) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The
Department is exercising its option to renew services for one (1) month and fifteen (15) days of
the three (3) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department
will be out of compliance with the Office of Refugee Resettlements request to align the funding
and contract period with the grant. Refugees with complex health conditions may not receive the
follow-up medical care they need in a timely and culturally and linguistically appropriate manner,
and refugees may not gain the knowledge and skills they need to navigate the U.S. heaith care
system independently and to manage their health and health conditions.

Area served: Statewide ;

Source of Funds: Administration for Children and Families 100% CFDA# ©93.576
FAIN#90RX0280.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

i A. Shibinette
~Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HiJMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS
SFY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

05-95-95-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, REFUGEE SERVICES

100% Federal Funds
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. Vendor #222201
S(als:alrscal Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) |Revised Amount
2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 32,812.00 | % 4,687.50 37,499.50
2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00 | § - 37,500.00
2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00 | § - 37,500.00
2024 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 4,688.00 | S - 4,688.00
Sub Total $ 112,500.00 | § 4,687.50 117,187.50
International Institute of New England, Inc. Vendor #177551
Slat:e?fca' Class / Account Class Title ~ Job Number [Current Amount |Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount
2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 32,609.00 | $ 4,687.50 37,296.50
2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00 | $ - 37,500.00
2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00 | $ 2 37,500.00
2024 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 4,891.00 | $ - 4,891.00
Sub Total 42200012 3 112,500.00 | § 4,687.50 117,187.50
Overall Total| $ 225,000.00] $ 9,375.00] $ 234,375.00)

Attachment - Bureau of Behavioral Health

Financial Detail
Page 1 of 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

State of New Hampshire
‘ Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

This 1* Amendment to the New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program contract (hereinafter
referred to as “Amendment #17) is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health
and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department”) and International Institute of
New England, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 2
Boylston Street 3rd Floor Boston, MA, 02116.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract”) approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 6, 2020, (Item 15), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A Section 1.2, the
Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
September 30, 2023.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$117,187.50.

3. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budget Sheet by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-1, Budget Sheet
Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

@i

International Institute of New England, Inc. Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
$5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A01 Page 1 0f 3 Date 11/9/2020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written beldw.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DocuSigned by:
11/19/2020 E\nn H. N. Landry
—=—24RARV/FORERLRA
Date Name: Ann H. N. Landry

Title: Associate Commissioner

International Institute of New England, Inc.

- DocuSigned by:
11/9/2020 [jq%;l Thitlman.

STAIEFICFTAE4S)...
Date Name: Jeffrey Thielman

Title: President & CEOQ

International Institute of New England, Inc. Amendmenl #1
S$S5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A01 Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. . o

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSigned by:
11/25/2020 ' [ 6
~ DSCA9202E32C4AE,..

Date Name: Catherine Pinos

Title: Attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:
International Institute of New Englang, Inc. Amendment #1

§8-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A01 Page 30of 3
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE ’5- 1&‘]

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

. 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 0330) -3837
Lori A. Shibinette ) ! 603-271-9200  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9200
Commissioner Fax: 603-2714912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

- March 20, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House '

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to enter
into sole source agreements with the vendors listed below to provide the services and activities to
promote the health and well-being of refugees resettled in New Hampshire, in an amount not to exceed
$225,000, effective August 15, 2020 or upon date of Governor and Execullve Council approval,
whichever is later, through August 14, 2023. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name - Vendor Location Contract Amount
Number |
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. 222201 Concord, NH’ , $112,500
International Institute of New
England, Inc. 177551 Manchester, NH $112,500
; TR 567 SR Total: $225,000

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2021 and anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years
2022 and 2023 and 2024, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgels, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95-95-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, REFUGEE SERVICES

Fs:ctael Class/Account Class Title Job Number | Total Amount
Year )
2021 102-500731 - | Contracts for Prog Svc | 42200012 $65,421
2022 102-500731 - Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $75,000
-2023 “102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $75,000
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $9,579
— : e R Total " $225.000
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His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council
Page2of 3 :
EXPLANATION

Thts request is sole source because the vendors listed above are the only entities wha possess
the comprehensive client information and cuftural expertise required to manage client cases and address
the complex, mterrelated health and social needs of each individual. - Moreover, because Health

‘Promotion services build upon and flow from the services provided under the Reception and Placement
‘ and Case Coordination grants, contracting with these entities ensures that no clients fall through the
cracks, and that there is continuity of care with no gaps in services. '

The purpose of this request is to provide services and activities that promote the health and
wellbeing of refugees resettied in New Hampshire. Services include, but are not limited to health’
arientations; health education; medical and mental health case management, and health provider
education. The services are provided in an effori to reduce gaps in services and to ensure refugees
obtain all necessary medical and mental health services beyond theé initial health screemng

Approximately 500 individuals will be served over the duration of the entire'contract term.

The Contractars will ensure services include scheduling and coordinating medical and mental .
health appointments, accompanying clients to medical appointments; providing and facilitating
transportatlon to appoumments and ensuring interpreter servlces are aoqunred for all appointments, as
necessary. .

The Contractors will be providing these. services to refugees resettled asylaes; and secondary
mngrants who have been in the United States for five years or less, with a focus on individuals who have
been in the United States two (2) years or less as well as any victims of trafﬁckmg (SIV)'s o other {ORR)
desugnated eligible rec:pnen!s arriving in the service areas.

Refugee Health Promot:on services provided by the Contractors will

(1) - Promote the hea1th literacy of refugees to enab!e them to access and navngate the U.S.
"Health Care System independently; i

(2) Ensure refugees obtain all needed medical and mental health services in a tume!y and
culturaily appropriate manner; .

(3) ° Increase refugee access to affordable health care over the long term; and
“(4)  Assist refugees become self-sufficient and decrease the néed for public assistance. .

The Depariment will monitor the effectiveness of the Contractor and the delivery of services
required under this agreement using the fo!lovying performance measures: - ’

o 100% of all heallh-related orientations and workshops/trainings shall be- provided
throughout the project period, as necessary.

o 100% of all newly arrived refugees and those who have been in the Unuted States two (2)
years of less shall be prioritized.

o 100% of all written materials and resources produced shall be udentuﬁed and- pnonttzed for
. translation as applicable.

o 100% of all interpreter services shall be coordinated consistently and reguiariy throughout
the project period.

o B80% of refugees shall express an increased knoMedge about health insurance

" requirements including how and where to enroll in health insurance.

o 80% Number of adults with increased knowledge about accessnng and navigahng US-
Health system
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‘His Excallancy. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councll
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o 80% Number of adults who know how-1o make and keep health appointments

80% Number of adults who can use public, Medicaid and/or appropriate transportation
to get to medical appointments » ‘

. o 80% Number of adults who demonstrate increased knowlédga about at least one health
topic ; :

o 100% Number of clients with health needs beyond initial exam scheduled for follow-up
care . : : g :

o 100% Number of arrivals with mental health needs scheduled for appoiniment vdiihin 60
days of arrival '

As referenced'in Exhibit.C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, of these agreements,
the parties have the option'to extend contract services for up to three (3) additional years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the

- Governor and Executive Council. ' T :

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, refugees with complex
health conditions may not receive the follow-up medical care they need in a timely, culturally and
linguistically appropriate manner. The inability of refuges to access necessary heaith care could result
in a lack of understanding and managing their heaith and health conditions. ' -

. Area served: Statewide.
Source of Funds: Administration for Children and Families 100% CFDA# 93.576 FAIN#

"in the event that the Fe_déra1 (or Other) Funds become no.longer available, ‘General Funds will
nat be requested to support this program. * ’ ’ . : :

L

Respectfully submitted,

e

. Lori A. Shibinetie
. Commissioner

nf-D!parlmml of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMEN DMENTS
SFY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

05-95-85-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, REFUGEE SERVICES
100% Federal Funds

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. Vendor #222201
State Fiscal Total Contract
Ve Class / Account Class Title Job Number Amount
2021 102/5007 31 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 32,812.00
2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37.500.00
2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00
2024 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 S 4,688.00
Sub Total $ . 112,500.00
International Institute of New England, Inc. Vendor #177551
Stete Fiscal Class / Account Class Title Job Number Cunnt Modfled
Year Budget
2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 32,609.00
2022 102500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00
2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00
2024 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 4.891.00
Sub Total . 42200012 $ 112,500.00
. 225,000.00]

Attachment - Bureau of Behavioral Health
Financial Detall

Page 1of 1

\

Overall Total[ $
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (verslon 12/1172019)

Subjrct. Nuv Hnmpslurn. R\.I'ugcc Healih Pramotion Program (55-2021-OHE-01-REFUG- 02)

Emiiﬁf This agreentent and nll of its aitnchuncnis shall become pubhc upon subnusslou to Govemar and G
Executive Council for approval. Any infocnation thal is privaie, confdential or proprictary mus!
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed toin \mnng prior to signing th contracl.

ACRLL»\ILNT
The Stote of New Hampshire and the Contracior Imchy munull) ayree as fullows: i
GENFERAL PROVISIONS :
1. CIDENTIFICATION. o T
1.1 Sintc Agency Name - % i 1.2 Stale Agency Address
New Hampshire Uepartiment of Healih and [ leman Services 129 Pleasant Sticer
' : Concord, NH 03301-3357
1.3 Cuntraclor Name o ’ 1.4 Contraciar Address
International lastitute of New England, Inc. | 2 Boylston Street 3rd [loor
Boston, MA, 02116
1.5 (fdnlm—to: l‘l'\m\c ‘ 1.6 Account Noniber | '} 1.7 Comgletion Dute 1 L8 Price Limitation”
Nunnber ) . p |
. ’ . 05-095-042-7922000- Augusi 14,2023 : 112,500 .
(617)695-9990 42200012
1.9 Contmeling Officer for Staie Agency o “ 1 1.10 Stase Agency Telephont Numbec
Nathan D, White, Director . ) (603) 271-9631

=1 NmnclﬁdTi(IroI'Comr_n:(orSignaloo' —
3/{7_/{0 Jeffréy Thielman, President and'CEQO i

104 Namd ond Tifle of Stie Agency Sigwory

e 2} 75|14 Aym i,

SIHE t\ppw\'ai by The NIT, DepmmcnlofAdmlmslrnlmn Division of Uersonik! (jcrppl!rhbh)

.By:. : Dircctor, On:

Al (Fu m, Subslnmc nnd E\ccnrllon) {lflrpplfcnblc)

o M[ofprro

117 Approvel K::zovcnmr il Em:umc Conncil (i opplicable)
Gac Mcclmb Date:

1.16 Appioval by the Ator c_)l"G.

By:

G&Cliem n

Puge 1 of 4 JT‘

Contractor Initials A'
" Date m‘j

-

. —— — o —
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2. SERVICES O BE PERFORMED, The State ol New
Hampshire, acling through the agency identified in block 1.1
("Statc"), -engnges contrnctor identified in block 3
("Contraclor”) to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
wark or sale af goads, or hoth, identified nnd more particulady
descrived in the auached EXHIBIT B which is mco.—ponled
herzm by reference ("Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithsianding any, provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the epproval of the Governor and
Execulive Council of the'State of New Hamipshire, if applicoble,
this Agreenent, ond all obligations of the partics hereunder, shall
beconk effective on the date the Governor end Executive
Council npprove this Apreenment ns indicated in block 1.17;
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shalt become cffective on the date the Agreeinent is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1,13 (“EfTective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commeuces the Scrvices prior to the
I:ffective Nate, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed nt the sole risk of the
Countractor, and in the event that this Agreement does nol become
effective, the State shall hove no linbility to the Canicactur,
“including  without Hnitation, oy obligntion to pay the
Contractor for any ‘costs incurred or Scrvices perfonned.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF ACREEMENT.
Natwithstanding any provision of this, Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the Swe lierennder, intluding,
withow lnitation, the continuance of payments herewnder, are
mmangun upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affecied by any slate or federal legisiative or excentive
aclion that ceduces, eliminaies or oiherwise miodifics the
nppropriation or availability of fm:dmg for this Agrccmem and
the Scape for Services provided.in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no cvent shall the Swte be liable for any payments
hercunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. la the
event of a reduction or teemination of appropriated finds, the
‘Siate shal) have the right 10 withhold payment until such funds
become avnilable, il ever, nud shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or tennination,
The State shall nol be required to transfer Nunds from any other

. account or souree-to (he Acconnt identificd in block 1.6 in the
event funds in thal Account nre reduced or unavailable,

5 CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LINITATION/
PAYMENT.

$.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
nre identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated hercin by relerence,

$.2 The-payment by the State of the contracl price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contrattor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred dy the Coniragtur i the
performnance hereol, and shall be the only and the complete

" Page2ofd ' !
. R

compensation to the Conlractor for the Services: The State shall
have no liabilisy to the Contractor other than Ihe contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from ony amounis
othenise paynble 10 the Contraciar under this Agreement those
liguidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7~ or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstauding any provision in this Agreement o the

conirary, 9nd notwithstanding uncxpected circumsiances, in no
eveni shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8,

6. COMPLIANCE DY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EM PLOYNMENT
OFPPORTUNITY.

6.1 tn conncclivn with the perfonnance of the Secrvices, the
Contractor shall comply with all nppl:cnble statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federl, state, coum) or muicipal
authorities which, impose ony obligation or duty upon the
Conlracior, inchuding, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
cmptoymenl opportunity laws. [n addilion, if this Agreement is
finded in any pan by inonies of the United States, the Coniraclor
shioll comply with ol fedderal excentive ordeis, rules, tcgulaimns
and statutes, and wilh any rules, ccgulations and guidclines as the
Siaic or the United Sintes issue to implement these regulations.
The Conleactos shall nlso comph wilh all applicable intellectual -
praperty laws:

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contenctor shall not
discriminate againsi employces .or applicants for cmp]:)) nent
beeanse of rnce, color, religion, creed, nge, sex, handicap, sexnal
oricntation, or national origin and will 1ake nmnmmc action lo
prevent such discrimination.

623, The Coniractor agrees ta pcmm the State or United States
necess to any of the Conimelor’s books, recards and accounts for
the purposc of ascertnining co:nplncmce willtall rules, regulations
and ordees, mad the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement,

7. PERSONNEL.

2.1 The Contractor shall atils own expense provide all personnel
nccessary to perform the Services. The Contrnctor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perfonn the Services, and shail be propery licensed and
otherwise anthorized to do so under all applicable laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in \\ntmg, during the teen of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) wonths afier the
Completion Date in block-1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom i1 is engaged in n combined effort 1o
peefoant ihe Services to bire, ony person who is a State cmiployee
or ofticial, who is materially involved:in the procurcment,
administrtion or performance of this Agreement.  This
provision shall survive teeminntion of this Agreement.

7.3 The Conteacting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's represeniative, nthe event of nay
dispute concerning the mtcrplcnnon of 1his Agreement, the

Comrmcting Officer’s decision sholl be final for the State. -

\
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following ncts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of defnult hereunder (“Event
of Default”):
8.1.1 faiture to, perfonn the Services sallsfncmnly or on
schedule;
3.1.2 feilureso subnm ony teport required hercunder; and/ur
8.1.3 failure 1o perform any other covenant, temm or condition of
this Agrecmeént,
8.2 Upon the occurrence ol any Event of Defauli, the State may
1ake any ane, ur More, or n.ll, of the following nctions;
8.2.1 give the Contractor n written notice specifying the Gvent of
Defnalt and requiring it (o be remedicel within, in the absence of
agreater or lesser specification of tine, thinty (30) day's from the
date ofthe nolice; and ifthe Fvem of Defanh is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreemient, elfective Lwo (2) days eller giving the
_Contracior notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractar a wrilten notice specifying the Event of
Defnalt and suspending all payments (0 be made unkler this
Agreement and ordering thai the portion of the contract price
which would otberwise nccrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such aotice until such tinic as the Siate
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Defaull
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
* 8.2,3 give the Conimetor & writien notice spccuf;mb the Eventof
Defnult and set off against any ather obligations the Siate may
owe 1o the Conlracior any damages the State suffers by reason of
. any Event of Defauli; and/or
$.2.4 pive 1he Coniractor n written notice specifying lhe Event of
Delnulty treat the Agrecment a3 breachied, terminate  the
Agreement and pursue ony of its remedics alaw or in equity, or
boily.

$.3. No failure by the Sme to enforce any provisions hereolafter

any Event of Defauli shall be deemed a waiver ofits rights with
regarid to thay Event of Defaull, or any subscquent Fvent of
Defaull. No express failure 10 enforce any Event of Default shall
be ddeemed n woiver of the.right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hercofl upon any further or other Evemt of
Deflnutton the partof the Contractor.

9, TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paeagraph 8, the Stale may, nt its sole
discretion, tenminate the Agreesnent [or any reason, in whole or
in pard, by thiny (30) doys written notice to the Contractor that
the Stale is exercising its option to tenninale the Agreement.

9.2 Jii the cvent of an enrly termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of Uk Services, 1w
Contiactor shall, al the Siate’s disceetion, deliver 10 1he
Contracting Officer, not Inter than fifteen (1 5) days afler the dare
of tennination, a repont (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail al) Services performed, and he contract price earned, 1n
ond including the date of termiination. The fonn, subject matter,
conleat, nnd number of copics of the Teanination Report shall
be idcatical (o those of any Final Report described in the atinched
EXHIBIT B. tn addition, m1 the State’s discretion, the Cantractor
shall, within 15 days ol notice of early tennination, develop and

Pagec I ol'4

submit 10 the State n Transition I'fan ror services wkler the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION. .
10.1 As uscd in this Agreement, the word “duta” shall mean oll
information and things developed or obtained during the
perfornmance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreemenl, including, but not limited to, all studies, repons,
files, formulac, surveys, inaps, charts, sound recardings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
represcnItions, COmpUICT Progrants, compuier prinouts, notes,

. letters, memoranda, papers, nnd documents, all swhether

(inished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Siate or purchased with funds provided lor that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, gnd
shall be returned o the State upon deinand or upon termination .
of this Agreement for any reason.

10.3 Confideatsnlily of data shal) be governed by N.H. RSA
chnplcr 91-A or other exisiing law. Disclosure ol’ data requlres
prior written approval of the State,

1. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inthe
performance of this Agreement the Conlractor s in all cespects

on |ndependcul contractor, and is neithér an agent nor en -

eoployee of the State, Neither the Contracior nor any of its
officers, employecs, agents or mentbers shall have authority 1o
bind the S1atc or-reccive any henefits, workers' compensation or
other enwoJuments provided by the Siate 1o its employees.

1. ASSIGRMENT/DELECATION/SUDCONTRACTS.

12,1 The Contractor shall not nssign, or otherwise transfer rny

interest in this Agreement without the prior wrilten notice, which .

shall be provided to the State at least fiteen (15) days prior to

" the assignment, il a writien consent of the State. For purposes

of his paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitue
assignment.  “Change  of Control” means (n)' merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or serics of related iransnctions in

.which a third party, together with its aftilistes, becames the

dircet or indireel owier of Alty percent (50%) or more of the

voting shares or similar cquity interesls, or combined voling .
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sole of all or substantiadly nl}

of the'nssers ol the Contenctor.

122 Nowe of the Scrvices shall be subcontrncted by the

Contractoe without prior writlen notice and consent of the Siate.
The State is entitled to copics of all subcaniracts and nysignment

ngreenrents and shall nat be bound by any provisions conlained”

in a subcontract or an assignment agreemenl o which inis not n
pany.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless othénvise exempied by Inwy, .

the Contractar shall indennify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employves, from wnd ugainst any and el claims,
liabilitics and costs for any persanal injury or propeny damages,
patent or copytight infringement, or other claims asseried against
the Stale, its oMicers ar employees, which arise out of {or which
may be claimed to arise out of) Mhe acts or omission of the

Co\ e
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Contmetor, or subcontrctors,” inchiding but not limited 1o the
weglipence, reckless or intentional conduct. The Sinte shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arisiny under
this paragraph 13. Notwiihstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contnined shall be decmed to constitute a waiver of the sovercign
inununity of the Sinte, which immunity is hereby rexerved to the
Sinte. This covenant in paragraph |3 shall survive he
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contrnctor. shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
contindously mainiain in force, and shall requice nay
subcantructor or mssigiee 10 obtain and maintain in force, tie
following insurnice:

14.1.1 comimercial general linbility insurance against ofl clainis
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounis of nol
less than $1,000,000 per occwrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; ond

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form cmermg all property
subject 4o subparngraph 10.2 herein, in on amount not lcss than
80% of the whole replacement value 6f thé property. ;

14.2 The policies described.in subparagraph 14.1 hercin shall be
on policy forms nud endorsements appeoved for nsc in the Siae
of New Hampshire by the N.II. Department of Iusurnncc and
issued by insarers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.

14.3 The Countractor shal) furnish 10 the Contracting Officer
‘identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, o certificate(s) of
insumnce for all insvrance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OfMicer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurnnce
for all renewal(s) of insumnce required under this Agrecinent no
later than ten (10) days- prior 10 the expiration date of cach
msurance policy.” The certificale(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereol shall be attached nid are incorporated hercin by
reference. ' '

15. WORKERS' CONMPENSATION.
15.1 Uy signing this ogreement, the Conirnctor agrecs, cerifics
and wonvants that the Contractor is in compliance with ar exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (“Workers'
Comypensation ™).
15.2 To the extent the Commcwr is subject to the nqmmncnrs
of NIl RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall mainiain, end
require any subcontmctor or assignee (o secure and maintain,
payment of Warkers® Compensalion in conneclion  with
pelivities which the person proposes 1o undertake pursuant to'this
Agreement. The Coatractor shall furnish the Contraeting Officer
identified in black 1.9, or his or her successor, proofof Workers'
Compensation in the manuer described in N.H. RSA chapier
281-A and aay applicable rencwal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated hierein by reference. The-Siae
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Campensation prcnuums or for any other claim or benefit for
Cantraclor, or noy " subcontractor or cmployce of Contmelor,
'ulnch might arise vnder applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compcumnm laws in connection wilth the
pcrl'onnauce of the Services under this Agreement.

Page 4 of 4

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a pany hereto to the other pany
shall be deemed 1o have been duly delivered or given at the time

of mniling by certificd mail, postage prepaid; in 8 United States
Post Office addressed 1o the partics ot the sidresses gn en in
blocks 1.2 and 1 .4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be nmended, waived
or discharged only by an instrumcnl in writing signed by the

.purties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,

waiver or discharge by the Governor and'Fxecutive Council of
the State of New 1 lamipshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant (o State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUAI. This Agrecment shall
be govemed, interpreted nud cunstrued in accordance with the

laws of the Siafe of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and

inures 10 the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by Ibe parties to express (heir mutuat intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applicd ngainst or in favor of any-party.

Auy aclions arising oul of this Agreement shall be broughl and

mnintnined in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
ucluincJurlsdlchon thereol.

19. CONFU(.'I'I.\"G TERMS. In the cvent of & conflict
between the terms of this -37 form (as modificd io EXHIBIT
A) anVor alathments and amendment thereof, the terms of (he
.37 (ns modified in EXHIBIT A) shall comrul. -

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties herelo do not intend 1o
Lenelit any hird parties and this Agreement shall not be
congtrued to confer any such benelit.

21. IIEADINGS. The headings throughom the Agrecment ere
for reference purposes only, and the words conlnined thercin
shall in no way be held to cxplain, modify, amplify or aid in (he
interpretation, construclion or meaning of the pmvmmas of this
Agreecment.

2. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or odifying
provisions set forth in the anached ENHIRIT A nre incorparated
herein by re I’crsncc

23. SEVERABILITY. Inthe eveatany of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a coun of competent Jm‘lSdlCliOll to be

. conlery lo any state or federnl faw, the remaining pravisions: of
1his r\bu‘cmcu! will rcmain m full force and clfect.

24. ENTIRE ACRELMLN 1. This Agreement, which miny be
executed in a awnber of counterparts, each of which shatl be
deemed mn original, constilules the entire agreeiment and
underslanding between the partics, and superscdes afl prior
agreements and understandings with respect 1o the subject matter
hercof. -
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" New Harfipshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS |

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

14.

1.2.

1.3.

CuDr I I21018

§5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02 Exhibill A - Revisions lo S1andard Conlracl Provisions Conuaclor Iniliats 3
. . , ’ o

Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is

amended as follows: ' ¢ .

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effeclive on August
15, 2020. ’ .

Paragraph 3, Efféclive’ Date/Completion- of Services. is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows: , '

.3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to three (3) additional years

from ithe Complelion Date, conlingen! upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreemenl of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council. : _

Paragraph 12, AssignmenUDeIegaiionlSubcontrac%s, is amended by adding .
subparagraph 12.3 as follows: : :

0y

"12.3. Subcontraclors are subject to the same conlractua) conditions as the

Contractor and the Conlraclor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those condilions. The Conlractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontraclors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
perormance is inadequate. The Conlractor shall manage the
subconlractor's perfarmance on an ongoing basis and take carrective
-action as necessary. The Conlractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subconlraclors provided for under this Agreement and nolify
the Stale of any inadequate subcontractor performance..

Page 1 of-1 - muEH
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New Hampshire Depariment of Health and Human Servlcas
New Hampshire Refuges, Haalth Promotion'Program ’

EXHIBITB :

Scope of Services
1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide services and activities that promiote the health and
wellbeing of designated eligible refugees. Services shall include, but are not
limited .to, medical and menta! health case management, health orientations,
health education, and heallh provider education. Services. will ensure that
refugees: (1) obtain needed heallh (including mental heallh) care beyond the
initial health screening; and (2) gain the basic knowledge and skills they need to
navigate the U.S. health care system and to manage their own health and health
care independenlly. Services will help to increase refugee access to heanh care
and to reduce gaps in services.

1.2.The Conlraclor shall ensure services are delivered slalewnde with a focus on the’
geographic areas of Concord, Manchester, @nd Nashua.

1.3.The Contractor shall designate a case manager to provide health (including
.mental health) case management services lo ensure refugees with complex
health condilions obtain needed health care beyond the initial heanh exam,
including appropriate health insurance..

1.4.The Contractor shall ensure case management services include, bul are not
limiled to:_

1.4.1. Scheduling and coordinating medical and mental health appointments;

3

1.4.2. Accompanying clients to fnedical apppimmenls;

- . -, 1.4.3. Providing and facilitating the provision of transportation to and from the
' appointments;

1.4.4. Ensuring appropnale interpreler services are available as necessary
" during appointments; and i ;

1.4.5. Assisling refugees with’ oblaamng appropriate heallh insurance,

1.5.The Contractor shall ensure a uniform, continuous and timely transition of case
management services from the initial refugee heallh examination to ‘all needed
follow-up care beginning after the completion of the initial refugee health
examination and/or on day ninely one (91) of resetllement (whichever is sooner),
to ensure there are no gaps in servicés.and continuity of care.

" 1.6. The.Contractor shall schedule an inilial dental appomtmem for all refugee children -
{age 0-18) within six (6) months of arrival.

1.7.The Conlractor shall conduct culturally and linguistically sensilive health
orientations which shall include, but not be limited to the following topics: -

1.7.1." Navigating the U.S. health care system.
1.7.2. Healthinsurance, including Refugee Medical Assistance.

Y}

§5.2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02 ‘ 5 Contracior initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshlre Rolugoo Mealth Promotion Program

EXH[BlT B

1.7.3,
1.7.4.

1.7.5.

1.7.6/

177,

1.7.8.

1.7.8.

1.7.10.
1.7.11.

Privacy and consent laws.

The right to language assistance in health care sellings and the role of
interpreters.

Transportation options for medccal appointments, including but not limited
to: .

1.7.5.1. Public transponatidn training; and

1.7.5.2. Arranging Medicaid transportation. .
Understanding-types of health care provaders mcludmg bul not limited to: ,

1.7.6.1. Primary care providers;

1.7.6.2. Specialists; and

1.7.6.3. Pharmacists.

Underslandmg types of health care (e.g., prevenlive, urgent, emergency)
and when, where and how to access each type.

Underslandmg availability of and when, where and how to access
mentallbehaworal health serv:ces including treatment for substance use
disorders.

Scheduling, kéeping and cancelling appointments.
What to bring to appoiniments.
Medication, including but nol limited to:

" 1.7.11.1. The difference between pfescriplions and over-_}hé-counter

medication;
1.7.11.2. Refills;
1.7.11.3. Dosage instructions; and

©1.7.11.4. Side effects.

1.8.The Contractor shall provide appropriale interpreler services and lranslated
materials for the heallh orientations. : :

1.9. The Contractor shall adapi the health orientation curriculum to accommodate the
needs of new refugee populations, with epproval from the. State Refugee
Program.

1.10. The Contractor shall maintain documentation of mdmdua1 refugees who have
received health orienlalion services, including but not limited to the following:

1.90.1.
1.10.2.

-The mdlwdual clienls parhmpallng in the health onentatvcm
The topic(s) of orientation compleled by each parhcupam

$5.2021-OHE-D1-REFUG-02 Conlractor lnllials‘ll
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Ruman Services
New Hampshire Relugee Healtb Promotlon Ptogram

EXHIBITB

.1.11. The contractor shall conducl both group (defined as'a minimum of two (2)

parlicipants) and individual health orienlations, including at least one home visil

~ to reinforce and clarify the information presented in the group seltmg and to
address unique issues and concerns.

1.12. The Contractor shall provide, solély or in collaboration wnlh other organizalions,
al least six (6) group health education classes. The conlractor shall:

M.12.1:

1122,

.1.12.3. Schedule the presenters; )

1.12.4. Ensure the provision of interpreler services;

1.12.5. Notify clients of class schedules: .

1.12.6. Health educalion session topics may include, but are not limited to:

- 1.12.6.1. Health insurance terms, coverage reqmrements, options and the
enrollment process.
1.12.6.2. Disabilities, inctuding but not limited to autism: :
* 1.12.6.3. Women's heallh, including but not Inmuted to domestic vno!ence
and reproductsve health; ;
1 12.6.4. Men's heallh;
*1.12.6.5. Emotional Wellness;
1.12.6.6. Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, and Transgender (LGBT) heaith
" 1.42.6.7. Oral health and hyglene.
1.12.6.8. Vision health,_
1.12.6.9. Nutrition and benefits of exercise;
1.12.6.10.Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HiV):
1.1286. 11. Tuberculoﬁis risk reduction;
1. 12612 Flresalety )

1.12.7. The Contractor shall provide health education in a cullurally and
linguistically appropnale manner.

1.12.8. The  Contractor shall distribute satisfaction surveys at health education
sessions, 10 survey clienls on the usefulness of the . information,
presentation style, and other relevant information.

§5.2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02 Coatraclor Initials ]

Identify topics of concern in each of the various refugee’ populahons and
prioritize the topics that are most urgent or relevant on an ongoing basis.

Invite and arrange for outside organizations to provide health education
classes on the identified topics that are within their expertise;
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New Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBITB

1.13. The Contractor shall inform and coordinate community resources for the provision
of health care services not covered by Refugee Medical Assistance (RMA) or
other funding sources.

1.14. The Contractor shall support the provision of nonclinical interventions, such as
adjustiment support groups, to promote refugee weliness and prevent suicide.

1.15. The Conlractor shall participate in Nationa!l Alliance on Mental liiness Mental .

Health First ‘Aide trainings and/or other s:mnlaf professional development
opporlunities, to inform'practices.

1.16. The Contractor shall support and/or assist with periodic screening of refugees
- for emotional distress using the Refugee Health Screener 15 (RHS-15),
communicale results, and make referrals 10 heallh care providers as needed.

'1.17. The Contraclor shali maintain relationships with the health (including mental -
heallh) ‘providers within the refugee reseltiement network through outreach,
education and meetings. Areas of focus shall include but are not limited to:

1.17.1. Relugee health needs and culture.

1.17.2. Barriers to care that may-include but are not limited lo language, cullural
factors, and transportalion issues.

1.17.3. Continued adherence to the CDC Refugee Hezllh Guidelines for the initial
‘domestic medical examination.

1.17.4 National Standards for CLAS in health and heallhcare.

1.18. The Contraclor shall develop and foster retalionships with a minimum of four (4)
health care (including mental heallh) providers who are not in the refugee
reseltlement network through oulreach, meetings and education. Areas of focus.-
shall include, but not be limited to the following:

1.18.1. Refugee health needs and cuﬂure

1.18.2. Barriers to care that inciude, but are not limited to language and cullure
barriers, and transportation issues.

1.18.3. COC Refugee Health Guidelines for the muha\ domeslic medical
‘' examinalion.

1.18.4. National Standards for CLAS in health and healthcare.

1.19. The Contractor shall provide education and training to refugees al various
stages of resetilement aboul the availability of health lnsurance through the
J Marketplace and allernalwe SOUrces.

1.20. The Contractor shall provide assistance with accessing, navigating and enrolling
in health insurance options through the Marketplace, expanded Medicaid or

other financial assistance oplions including but not limited to facilitating *

applicalions.

55-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02 ' Conlractor Inllials d l
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New Hampé.ﬁlré Department of Health and Human Services '
New Hampshire Relugee Health Promotlon Program

EXHIBITB

1.21. The Contractor shall provide planning and evaluation for Refugee. Heallh
Promotion Program (RHPP), including but not limited to the following:

1.21.1. Develop and collect linguistically appropriate surveys/questionnaires that
are built inlo health sessions and trainings.

1.21.2. Track the following:
1.21.2.1.  Numbef of referals made;
1.21.2.2. Number of training sessions and participants,

1.21.2.3.  Number of consultations or point of contact with providers;
and

1.21.2.4. Number of meelings and training sessions.

1.21.3; Feedback with health service providers o learn how ihe coordination is
* working and make adjustments as necessary. »

1.21.4. Internal feedback with stafi, particularly case. managers (and other case
management specialists) to evaluale the relevance of the' orientations to -
implement necessary changes leading to anticipated improvements.

. 1.22:  The Conlractor shall communicate any heallh screening resulls received,
which may bé conducled by the Contractor or by a third parly, concerning a
client, Io medical providers as needed.

1.23. 'The Contraclor -shall {acdnate referrals to behavioral health providers, as
. needed.

1.24. The Conlractor shall maintain documentation ol lhe fol!owing;
1.24.1. Overall number of refugees reseltled in the reportihg period.

.1.24.2, Number of inilial domestic health examinations completed within thity (30),
sixty (60) and nlnety (80) days of arrival.

'1.24.3. Number of . refugees receiving health and/or mental health case
management services to address complex health condmons beyond the -
initial domestic health exammahon ;

1.24.4.'The demographics of the refugees served, including gender, age, primary |
language; and country fled. . :

.1.24.5. Number of refugees referred for follow-up services related to Dental
Issues, Emergency Issues (ER), Tuberculosis, HIV, Mental Health,
Infectious Disease, Physical Therapy, Prenatal Care, Hearing Issues,
Vision Issues, and other conditions identified by the NH State Refugea
"Health Coordinalor.

1.24.6. Number of refugees assisted in_obtaining approprtate health insurance ~
both upon arrival, and at the time of transition oH Refugee Medical
* Assislance.
$5.2021-0HE-01-REFUG02 - ‘Conlractor Initiats A
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Now Hempshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBITB

. 1.25. The Contractor shall identify the primary heaith related issues of concern In
each of the various refugee communities. Concerns may include but are not
limited to diabetes, hypertensmn mental health and/or oral health concerns.

. 1.26. - The Contractor shall pmwde all required reporting to the Depaitment within
- fifteen (15) days following the completion of the repomng period.

1.27. The Contractor shall provide semi-annual reporting to the Depantment within

thirty (30) days following the completion of the reporting period.

1.28. The Contractor shali provide all reqmred repomng atin- person meetings as

requested by the Department.
1.29. The Contracior shall have the following staff:
~1.20.1. One (1) Administralor; and
1.29.2. One (1) Health Case Manager.

1.30. The Contractor shall participate in trainings in order to understand health
insurance coverage and enroliment requirements on both the state and federal
level.:

2. Reporting Requirements

2.1.  The Contractor shall submit-monthly reports to the Department within 1hmy
(30) days fol!owmg the end of the reporling period, to.include but not limited
to:

211 Number arrivals by gender and immigralion slatus.

'2.1.2. Number receiving tuberculosis screening within the Iollowmg lime periods:
24.21.  Thirty (30) days of arrival; ‘
2122, Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and
2.1.2.3. . Ninety (90) days-or more.

213, Number receiving initial heallh exam within |he followmg time penods

' 2.1.31.  Thirty (30) 8ays of arrival;
21.3.2.  Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and
21.3.3.  Ninety (80) days or more. '

2.1.4. Number of children age six (6) months 1o s:xleen (16) years of age that
have been screened for lead. -

"2.1.5. Number of children scheduled for first dental.appoiniment within six (6) '

monlhs of arrival.
1246, Number of clients referred to the followmg
2.1.6.1.  Primary care provider: K
21.6.2. . Dental care provider; .
$5.2021-0HE-01-REFUG-02 Contractot Inifia's
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21.7.
2.1.8.
219,

2.1.10.
2111
“2.1.12.
2113,

2.1.14.

2.1.6.3. Emergency room; . :
2.1.64.  Mental health provider,;

2.1,6.5. - Infectious disease speciaiisl;.

2.1.686. Vision care provider;

21.6.7. Hearing care provider;

2:1.6.8. « Pre-natal care providér; and ¢

2.1.6.9.  Other specialists.

Number of clients recelvmg services by country ot origin.
Number of clients receiving health case management services.

Number receiving.mental health case management services.

Number clients parti¢ipating in an adjustment support group.

Number clients receiving initial health orientation and t_opic(é) covered.
Number élie nts receiving health education and iopic(s) covered.
Number of service providers receiving training.

Number of health case manager trainings and topic(s)'

22. The’ Contractor shali submit semi-annual reports to the Depariment within
thirdy (30). days following the period completion, and as required by grantor.,

2.3.  The Conlractor shall submil a final program repor to the Department within
thirty (30) days prior to the completion of the contract period.

3. Performance Measures )
3.1. © The Contractor shali ensure the (ollowing pedormance indicators are achleved

annually and monitored on a monthly basis 1o measure the effectiveness of
the agreemem

341
312
38,
3.1.4,

3.15.

100% of all health-related orientations and workshops/irainings shall be
provided throughout the project period, as necessary.

100% of all newly arrived refugees and those who have been in the United
States two (2) years or less shall be priorilized.

100% of all written malerials and resources produced shall be identified
and pnormzed for translation as applicable.

100% of all interpreter services shall be coordinated con5|stently and
regularly ihroughout the project period. -

100% of all refugees with acute or chronic health conditions who ‘require
care beyond the initial medical examination  shall receive case
management, including but not limited to:

: 3T
$5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG 02 Contractor Intials
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EXHIBITB

3.1.51.  Scheduling and coordinaling medical appointments:
3.1.5.2. Transporiation services; and
3.1.53.  Interpretation services.

3.1.6. 80% of refugees shall demonslrate increased knowledge about health
insurance requirements mcludmg how, when and where to enroll in health
Insurance. - A

3.1.7. '_BO% of adults will demonstrate increased knowledge about accessing and-

navigating US Heallth system.
3.1.8. 80% of adults will know.how to make and keep health appointments.

3.1.9. 80% of adults will know how to use public, Medicaid and/or appropriate
transportation to get to medical appointments. -

3.1.10. 80% of adults will demonstrale increased knowledge of at least one heahh
~ topic.

31.1 'l 100% of clients with health needs beyond inilial exam will be scheduled for,
I’ollow-up care.

3.1.12. 100% of arrivals with mental health needs will be scheduled for
appomlment within 60 days of arriva).

3.1.13. A minimum of four (4) new relationships with prov'sde:s oulside of the
* refugee resetllement network shall be estabhshed dunng each annual
project period. g

© 3:1.14.A minimum ‘of four (4). meetings wilh providers within the refugee
' reseltiement network shall take place during each annual project period.

3. 2 The Contractor shall measure program oulpuls through the rol!owmg which shall
include bul not be limited to:

3.2.1. Number and percentage of new tefugees altending group health

orientations, and the topics completed during each session;
3.2.2. Number of percentage of new refugees’ receiving a health home visit.

3.2.3. Number of referrals lo heallh, mental and beha\noral health or olher

services.

3.3.The Contractor shall ' measure the health literacy amohg relugees and the‘

improvement of their underslanding of their health and of the American heaith
‘system by ulilizing a simple queslionnaire offered at each workshop and
- orientation,

3.4.The Contractor shall track the number of iridividuals participating In* and
completing health education sessions, as well as the topics covered in each
session.

1 . . . -
$5:2021-0HE:01-REFUG.02 . Convacior ritas_S;3
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3.5.The Contractor shall track the number and percentage of refugees recelving
health and mental health case management services, including:

3.5.1. Refugee demographics.

3.6.The Contractor shall \rack the number of health providers In the refugee
resetllement network receiving education/ training.

36.1. The Contractor shall track the number of health providers outside the
refugee resetiiement network receiving educalion/training.

3.7. TheContractor shall measure the effecliveness of support services. prowded to
refugees to Increase their access to appropriate health insurance by tracking
the number and percentage of refugees accessing affordable health insurance
upon arrival and those educated sbout and referred for assistance in obtaining

) appropriate, health insurance. when transmonmg ofi *Refugee Medical
Assistance,

3.8. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with the Deparlment and other key ‘

stakeholders to adapt any performance largets if necessary.

3.9. The Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan to the
Oeparlment for any performance measure thal was not achieved.

3.10. The Contractor shall actively and regularly coltaborate with the Department to
: enhance contract management, improve results, and ‘adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful oulcomes. i

3.11. The Contractor may be required to provide olher key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-leve! cemographic, peirformance, and service data.

3.12. Where applicable, the Contiactor shall collect and share ‘dala wnlh the
Department in & format specified by the Depanment

4, Additional Terms
4.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislatlve Changes :

4.1.1. The Contractor agrees that to the exlenl future state or, federal legistation
or court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the
State has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance {herewith.

4.2. Culturally and Llngulsllcal|y Agpropriate Services (CLAS)

4.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of the

language assistance services they will provide to persons with limited
English proficiency andlor hearing impairment lo ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or sewlces within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

.

' 3T
£5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02 Contraclor Initials

Intarnational Institute of Now England, Inc.  Page 9 of 13 Dale 3! 192 ;0

'

- —t s tm———

- e — e — e s




DocusSign Envelope ID: B1853805-9418-4EE6-9743-4D9DAFD75063

New Hambshlro Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Hesith Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

4.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

43.1.

432,

43.3.

4.34.

All documents, nolices, press releases, research feports and other
materials.prepared during or resulling from the performance of the services’

of the Contract shall include the following slatement, "The preparation of °

this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contracl with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds
provided in part by the Stale of New Hampshire and/or such other funding
sources as were available or required, e.g., the United States Department
of Health and Human Services.”

Al materials produoed or purchased under the conlracl shall have prior
approval from the Departmenl before prmhng production, distribution or
use.

The Department shall retain copynght ownershnp for any and-all ongmai
materials produced, including, but not limited lo:

4.3.3.1.  Brochures.

43.3.2.  Resource direclories.
43.3.3.  Protocols or guidelines.
4334 Posters.

43.3.5. : Reporls..

The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written epproval from the Department. .

4.4. Operation of Facllitias Compliance with Laws and Regulat%ons

C 441,

In the operatlon of any facilities for providing services, the: Contractor shall
comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, stale, counly and
municipal authorities and wilh any direction of any Public Officer or officers

pursuant to laws which shall imposé an order or duty upon the contractor -
with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services,

at'such facility. If any governmental license or permit shall be required for
the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,

the Confractor will procure said license or permit, and will al all times

comply with the terms and conditions of each such license.ar permit. In
conneclion with the loregorng requuemenls the Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Conlract the facilities
shall comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the
State Office of the Fire Marshal and lhe local fire prolection agency, and
shall be in conformance with locai bundmg and zomng codes, by-laws and
regulallons

o
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5. Records

5§5-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02 3 3 Contractor Inilia

13

45. . Eligibility Determinations

451,

452

453

454,

if the Contractor is permilted to determine the eligibility of individuals such

 eligibility determination shall be made in accaordance with applicable

federal and stale laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies ar\d
procedures.

Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times
as are prescribed by the Department.

In addition 1o the determination forms required by the Department the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder, which file shall include all information-necessary to support an
eligibility determination and such other information as the Depariment
requeslts. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and

" documentation regarding eligibility determinations.that the .Depariment

may request or require.

The Contractor understands that all applicants for serwces hereunder as -

well as mdwnduals declared ‘ineligible have a right to a fair hearing

" regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and

agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an
application form and thal each.applicant or re-applicant shall be informed
of his/mer right to a fair hearing-in accordance with Department regulations.

5.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not hmsted to:

5.1.1.

5.1.2.

Books, records, documents and other elecironic or physical data
."evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the

Contractor in the performance of the Conlract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor.

All records must be maintained in accordance with accounling procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such cos!s and

_expenses, and which are acceplable to the Department, and 10 include,.

without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of
costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for
materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind coniributions, labor time cards,
payrolis, and other records requested or required by the Depariment.”

Stalistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shallinclude all records of application and eligibility
(including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient),

records regarding the provision of services and all involces submitted to

the Department to obtain- payment for such services.
. o o h\
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52 During the term of this Conlract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Depariment of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representalives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,

" excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Depariment of the
maximum number of unlts provided for in the Contracl and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract andlor survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, thal if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Depariment shall disallow any
expenses claimed bythe Contraclor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor. .

6. Termination ReporUTransltion Plan

6.1. - In'the event of early termination of the Agreement, the Contractor shal, within
15 days of nolice of early termination, develop and submil lo the State a
Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, includsng bul not limited to,
idenlifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the
Agreement and establishes a process to meel those needs.

6.2. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the Stale and shall promptly provide
detalled information lo support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to,
any information or data requesied by the Slale related to the termination of the
Agreement and Transilion Plan and shall provide ongoing communicalion and
‘revisions of the Transition Plan to the Stale as requesled

©, 6.3. Inthe event thal services under the Agreemenl including but not limited to
clients receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to having
services delivered by another enlity including contracted providers or the’ State,
the Contractor shall provide a process for umn!enupted delivery of servnces in
the Transition Plan.

6.4. .The Contractor shall eslablish a method of notifying cluenls and other affected
Individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed
communications in its Transition Plan submilted to the State as described
above.

7. Exhibits Incorporated

.7.1. All Exhibits D through H and J are altached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein. .

7.2. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in complrance .
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information
(Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parls 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portabimy

55-2021-0HE-01-REFUG-02 ' ' Contractor Initials
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"and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached
Exhibit |, Business Associate Agreement, which has been execu!ed by the parties
and is incorporated by reference herein.

7.3. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data relaled to this Agreement in
. accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements,
) whlch is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

\

— .
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded with federal funds.

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfliment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budge! through Exhibit C-4, Budget.

3. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20th) working day of the following month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The
Conlractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order 1o initiate payment. T

4. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an ‘electronic signature and
emailed to lalira.mcglashan@dhhs.nh gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Laura McGlashan, NH State Refugee Health Cocrdmator
Department of Health and Human Services
_Office of Health Equity
97 Pleasant Street, Thayer Buildmg
Concord, NH 03301
(603)-271 -2688

5. The Stale shall make payment to the Contractor within thmy (30) days of receip!
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submilted invoice and if sufficient -
funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions Form
Number P-37 of this Agreement.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specnf ed in Form'P-37, General Prowsmns Block 1.7
Complehon Date.

7. The Contraclor must provide the services in Exhibit 8 Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

8. The Coniractor agrées that funding under this Agreement may be w:lhheld in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of -
Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in par, in the event
. of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to
the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this

agreement.
g 3T
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10. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounls. within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between Stale Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the

. Budgel Office may.be made by wrilten agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive. Council, if needed and
justified.

‘11, Audits
11.1.

11,2,

11.3.

Intarnational Inslitule o New England, Inc. Exhibit C * Contraclot Inltiats ___
§5-2024.OHE-Q1-REF UG-02 Pago20l2 Date ,,3_ i ‘

Rev. 0110810

The Conlractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Deparlment
if any of the following condilions exist:

11.1.1. Condition A - The Conlr,aclor expended $750,000 or more in -

federal funds received as a.subrecipient. pursuant lo 2 CFR
"Part 200, during the most recently compleled fiscal year.

11.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to_audit pursuant 10

the requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lil-b, pertaining to

charitable organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or

more.

11.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and
required by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC)
reqgulations to submit an annual financial audit.

If Condition A exists, lhe Contraclor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accardance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part

200, Subparl F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost *

Priri_ciples, and Audit Requirements for Féderal awards.

If Condilicn 8.0r Condition C exists, lhe, Conlractor shali submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent.CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

In addition to, and not in any way.in limitation' of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any stale or federal audit exceplions
and shall return to the Department all paymeénts made’ under the
Contracl to which exception has. been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services .
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATIO GARDI -FREE WORKPLACE U|REME

The Vendar identified in Seclion 1.3 of the General Provislons agrees to comply with tha provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act'of 1988 (Pub, L. 100-690, Title V. Sublitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees lo have the Conlractor's. represanlalive, as identified in Sections
1.11and 1.12 of the Genera! Provisions execute the fotiowing Certification:

ALTERNATWE |- FOR GRANTEES OTHER THANINDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEAI.TH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - -CONTRACTORS

This certificalion Is requirad by the regulations implementing Sections $151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Waorkplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Tille V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
' 1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages '
21681-21691), and require certification by granlees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
. conltractors), prior to award, that hey will maintaln a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation providas thal a grentee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certnﬁcahon to the Department in each federal fisca! ysar in lieu of certificates for
each granl during lhe federal fiscal year covared by the cedification. The cedificale sel out below is a
material representstion of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certificalion or violation of the cedification shall be grounds for suspension of paymenls suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contraclors using this {orm should
send it to; :

Commissioner

NH Department of Heallh and Human Services
128 Pleasan! Streel, L

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The granlee certifies that it will or will conlinue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.  Publishing a stalement notilying employees that the unlawful manufacture, dislribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a conlroled substance is prohibiled in the granlee’s
workplace and specilying the aclions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Eslablishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform empbyees aboul
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee's policy of mainlaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3.  Any avallable drug counseling, rehabiltation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penallies thal may be imposed upon employees lor drug abuse violations
occurdng In the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee lo be.engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the stalemenl required by paragraph {a). ;

1.4. Notifying the empbyeo in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as 8 condmon of

' employment under the granl, the employes will

1.4.9. Abide by the lerms of the stalement; and.

1.4.2,  Notify the employer In wriling of his or her conviction for a violalion of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the warkplace no later than five calendar days afler such
conviclion;

1.5, Nolilylng the agency in writing, within len calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or olherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicled employees must provide notice, including position litle, fo every grant

" officer on whose grant aclivily Ihe convicled employee was working. uniess the Federal egency

—
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has designated a central pain! for the receip! of such notices, Notace shall include 1ha
identification numbei(s) of each sffected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the tollowing aclions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph. 1.4.2, with respect lo any employee who is 80 convicled
1.6.1. Taking appropriale personnel action agains! such an employes, up 1o and Includml
tarminalion, consisten! with the requirements of the Rehabdnahon Acl of 1973, as
emended; or
1.6.2. - Requiring such employea to partkcipate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, Siate. or local heanh
law enforcement, or other appropriale sgency.
17 Mak}ng 8 good (alth effor to continue to maintain o drug-iree workplace through
nmplemen!ahon of pasagraphs 1.1,1.2, 1.3, 1.4. 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for lhe performance of work done in
connection with the specific granl.

Place of Performance (street address. cily. counly, stata, zip code) {list edch localion)
Check O if there are workplaces on file thal are not identified here.

Vendor Name: <

3/!9-/-?.0

Date

3T
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

Section 310 of Public Law 101.121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and

31 U.S.C: 1352, and further agrees lo have the Contraclor's representative, as idenlified in Seclions 1.11
. and 1.12 of the General Provisions execule the fallowing Cedtification:

US DEPARTMENT OF .HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - COﬁTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS -
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

‘Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
“Temporary Assistance to Needy Femilies under Tille IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Tille IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX  ~ '
“Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Tille [V

The undersignéd-certifles, to the best of his or her knowledge and belie!, that: i

1. No Federal appropiiated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behall ol the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or altempling to influence an olficer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of @ Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, cantinuation, renewal, amendment, or

" modification of any Fedara! contract, grant. loan, or cooperalive agreement (and by specific manlion
sub-grantee or sub-conlractor). : . . ;

2. It eny lunds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person lor

" influencing or attempling to influence an officer o employee of any agency, & Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, of an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal conlracl, grant, loan, or cooperalive agreement {and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submil Standard Form LLL, {Disclosure Form to
Reporl Lobbying, in accordance with its Instructions, sttached and identified as Slandard Exhibit E-1)

3. The undersigned shall reguire that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards al ll tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and conlracls under grants,
loans, and cooperativa agreements) and thal all sub-racipients shall certify and disclose accordingly:

This carilication is & material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this lransaction
_was made or enlered into. Submission of this cenification is 8 prarequisile for making or entering inlo this
trgnsaclion imposed by Seclion 1352, Titte 31, U.S, Code. Any person who fails lo file the required

certification shall be subject to o civil penally of not less than $10,000 and nol more fhan $100.000 for
each such failure.

. o Vendor Name: 3
3 )19/:,10 o h @mﬂm
Date Ntk SehE T awidman

Title: p,“,'dc Fte CEO
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Exhibit F
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION

SPO LITY MA

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the'General Provisions agrees to comply wilh lhe piovisions of
Executive Office of the Presiden!, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Parl 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Mallers, and further agrees to hava the Conlractors =
represeniative, s identified in Sections 1.11 and 1,12 of Ihe General Provisions execute the following
Cerification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION . ;
By signing and submilting this proposal {contract), the prospeclive primary partnclpan! is prowdmg the
certificelion set out below,

2. Theinability ofa person to provids the cerlificalion required below will nol necessa:ily result in deniat
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospeclive participant shall submil an
explanation of why it cannot provide the cerlificalion. The cerlification or explanation will be
considered in conneclion wilh the NH Department of Health and Human Services" (DHHS)
detarmination whelher to enter into Lhis transaction. However, failure of the prospective prmary
pamcipant fo furnish a certificalion or an explanation shall disqualify such person 1rom paricipation in
this transaction, ;

3. The ceritication In this clause is a material representation of lacl upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enler into this lransaction. 11 il is later determined that the prospeciive ,
. primary parlicipanl knowingly rendered an etroneous certification, in addilion lo other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminale this transaclion for cause or defaull,

4, The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (conlract) is submilted If at-eny lime the prospective primary padticipant leamns
thal ils certification was erroneous when submilled or has become erronecus by reason of changed
circumstances. '

5. The lerms “covered transaclion,” "debarred,” “suspended.” ‘ineligible.” “lower tier covered
fransaclion,” "panicipan!,” “person,” “primary covered llansadion,' *principal,” “proposal,” and

“volunlarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings sel out in the Definilions and

Covarage sections of the rules implementing Execulwe Order 12549: 45 CFR Parl 76. Seelhe -

altached delinitions.

6. .The prospechve primary participan! agrees by submiiting this proposal (contract) thal, should the
-proposed covered lransaclion be entered into, it shall not knowingly enler into any lower tier covered
*transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or volun(anly excluded
lwm participalion in this covered transactlon, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary parhcupanl furher agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause tilled “Cedilication Ragafding Debarmenl, Suspension, Ineligibitity and Vquntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transaclions,” provided by OHHS, wilthout moadification, in ali lower lier covered
transactions end in all solicitations for lower tier covered transaclions.

8. A participant in a covered transaclion may rely upon a certificalion of a prospeclive pamc«pan! ins
lower lier covered transaction that il is not debamed, suspended, ineligible. or involuntarily excluded
(rom the covered transaction, unless il knows thal the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility.of ils principals. Each
paricipant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded paries).

9. Nolhmg contained In the foregoing shau be construed 1o require establishment of a system of records
in order lo rendcr in good faith tha cerlification requ.red by this clause. The knowledge and

—
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information of a participant ls not reqwad to exceed that whlch is normally possessed by 8 prudent
pemon In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Excepl for transactions authorized under paragreph 6 of these instructions, il a pamcnpanl Ina
coverad transaction knowingly enlers into a tower lier covered transaclion with a person who is
suspended. debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this lransaction, in
addition 10 other remedies available to the Federal govemment, DHHS may lerminate |his lransaction
lor cause or defaull, .

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospeclive primary pamcpanl cerifies 10 the best ot its knowledge and belief, that it and u;
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred. suspended, pioposed for debarment, declared insligible, or

. voluntarily excluded from covered lransactions by any Federal depariment or agency.

11.2. have not within a Ihree-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection wilh obtalning, altampling to obtsln, or performing a public (Federa, Slate or local)
transaclion or a cantract under a-public transaction; violation of Federal or ‘State antitrus!
siatutes or commission of embezzlement. thel, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of

. records, making false statements, or receiving slolen properly.

11.3. are not presently indicled lor otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entily
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumeraled in paragraph (1)(b)
of this certification; and

. 11.4. have nol within a three-year period preceding this apphcahonfproposal had one or mora public
tmnaachons (Federal, Stale or local) terminated for cause or defaull.
12. Where the prospeclwa primary paricipant is unable to cenily lo any of the statements in this
cedification, such prospeclive participant sha!l allach an explanaﬂon io this proposal (coniract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By skgning and submitting.his lower tier proposal (conlracl) the prospective lower lier paricipant, as
defined In 45 CFR Par 76, cerlifies 1o the best of its knowledge and belief that it end its principals:
13.1. are nol presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from pamcnpallon in this ransaclion by any fedaral department or agency.
13.2. where the prospeclive lower tier participant is unable lo cedify lo any of the above, such
prospectwe pasticipant shall anach an-explanation to this proposal (conlracl)

14, The prosp_ecliva lower lier parikcipanl furlher agrees by submilting this proposal {contract) that it will
include this clause entilled *Certification Regarding Debarmant, Suspension. Ineligibilily, and
Volunlary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transaclions,” withoul modificalion in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitalions for lower tier covered transaclions.

Vendor Name:

3h§/qo N 4 )/

Date ' Name: d{: ohielmen
C T Puod @ CEO
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/

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS , '

The Vendor identified [n Section 1.3 of the Gene'ai Provisions agrees by slgnature of the Conlracior's

" . representative es'identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera! Provisions, to execute the I'ollowfng

certification:

Vendor will comply and will require any subgrantees or suboommclors 1o comply, with an{« epplicable
federal nondiscrimination requlromenu which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Sale Streets Acl of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Seclion 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, efther in employment practices or in
the delivery of servicas of benefils, on the basis of race, color,.religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opporunity Plan:

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Seclion §672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil righls obligalions of the Sale Sireets Acl. Recipients of federal funding under this
slatute are prohibiled from discriminating, elther in employmem praclices or in lhe delivery of services or’
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national arigin, and sex. The Aclincludes Equal
Employmenl Opportunity Plan requirements; .

- iha Civll Rights Acl of 19564 (42 U.S.C. Seclion 2000d, which prohsbds recipients of federal fi nanclal
assistance {rom discriminating on the basis of race, color, of nalional origin in any program or activity);-

- he Rehabilitalion Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 734), which prohibits recipients of Federal financiai
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disabiiity, in regard lo employment and the delivery of -
servicas or benefits, in any program or aclivity,

- the Americans with Disabllities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sechons 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination end ensures equal opportunity for persans with disebililies in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodalnns commercial facilities, and transparialion;

- the Education Amendmenis of 1972 (20u.s.C. Sections 1681 1683, 1685-86), whnch prohibils
-discnmmauon on lhe basls of sex in federally assisted education programs;

.- the Age Discriminalion Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C: Seclions 6106- 07). which pmh&»ls discrimination an the
basls of ege in programs or aclivilies receiving Federal linancial assnslance {t does nol mcludé
employmant discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt: 31 (U.S. Depaniment of Justice-Regulations — OJJDP Gran! Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
{(U.S. Depariment of Juslice Regulations - Nondiscriminalion; Equal Employmen! Opportunily; Policies
. and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal proteclion of the laws lor faith-based and community
organizalions), Execulive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for parinerships wilh faith-based and neighberhood organizalions; -

- 28 C.F.R. pl. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulalians — Equal Trealment for Faith-Based
Orgamzahons) and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and Thae Naliona! Defense Authorization
Act (NDM) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacled January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contracl Employee Whislleblower Protections, which protects employees against.
reprisal for certain whislle blowing aclivilies in connection with federal granis and contracts.

The certificate sel oul below is a material reprasentation of facl upon which reliancé is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False cerificalion or violetion of the certificalion shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension of termination of granls, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G ) '
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Slate adminisirative egency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due piocess hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
agains} a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Olfice for Civil Rights, lo
the applicable conlracting agency of division within the Department of Healih and Human Services, and
1o the Depanment of Hegllh and Human Servrces Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor idenlified in Section 1.3 o! the General Provisions ag'vaes by sugnalura of the Conlraclor's
representative as identifiad in Seclions 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Pfowslons to execule the following
certification: .

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (oonuacl) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated nbove

3/*9/20

Date R Nem&. JeW “Jhi dmon
. Tile: Qresidiade CEO

_—
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Vendor Initlaks d \'
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING EEVIBONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Past C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not ba permitted in any portion of any indoos facilily owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely of regularly for the provision of heaith, day care, education,
or library services to children'under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through Slate or local governments, by Federal grant, conlract. loan, or loan guaraniee, The
law doas not apply to children’s services provided in privale residences. facilities funded solely by
Madicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of faciliies used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of (he law may resull in the imposition of a civil monelary panally of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administralive compliance order on the respansible entity.

The Vendor idenlified in Seclion 1.3 of the Géneral Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contraclor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 2nd 1.12 of the Genera! Pravisions, to execule the following -

cedification;

1. By signing and suSmilling this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonabla efiorts lo comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Lew 103-227, Pant C. known as \he Pro-Children Act of 1894.

Vendor Name:

.?alf"/?zq - n

O B e SO S Thieleon
| ~ .+ Tile Pregidets. CEO
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of lhe Genaral Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 . .
CFR Parts 160 and 1684 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected healthinformalion under this Agreement and "Covered
Entily” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Heallh and Human Services.

(1) | efin|

a. Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Tille 45,
- Code of Federal Regulations.

b. Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tille 45, Code
_of Federal Regulations.

c.  “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160 103 of Tll|9 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

- d.. "Designated Record Set” shall Kave the same meamng as lhe lefm ‘desrgnated record sel”
in 45 CFR Secllon 164.501.

e. "Data Aggregalion shau have the same meamng as the term “data aggregalion”in 45 CFR
- Seclion 164.501.

f. “Health Carg Qperations” shall have the same meaning as the lerm “healih care operalions”
in 45 CFR Seclion 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Sublitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Relnveslmenl Actofl .
2008. .

h.' “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portabnity and Accountability Act of 1995, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Securily of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Paris 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto. -

i. * “Individual® shall have the same meaning as the (erm "individual” in 45 CFR Seclion 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g): .

j.  "Privacy Rule™ shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United Stales
Department of Health and Human Services,

k. “Protected Heallh Infgn'ngtion‘ shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
Information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or recelved by
Business Associale [rom or on behalf of Covered Entity.

32014 Extubel | ’ Conlm:lu Initials L
Healih Insurance Portabilily Act '
Busincss Asseclale Agreement . 2/ ‘)/ Q 0
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(2)

"Required by Law" shall have the same mean!ng as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

§gggm shall mean the Secfelary of the Depariment of Health and Human Services or
hsslher designee. ;

"Security Rule" shall 'mean the Securily Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Haalth Informalion” means protected health information that is not

secured by a lechnology standard that renders protecled health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable 1o unaulhorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a slandards developing organizalion that is accredited by the American Nallonal Slandards
Institule. . 3

Qm_e_[ge_fmm All térms not otherwise defined herein shall have lhe meaning
eslablished under 45 C. F R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amendad lrom lime to time, and the
HITECH .

Acl.

BuS ness Asaoclaie Use a sure pf A formation,

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protecled Health
Information (PHI) eéxcepl as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, Including bul not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall nol use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner |hat would conslitute a violation of the Privacy and Secunly Rule.

Business Assoclale may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and admlnlslrallon of the Busmess Associale;
. ‘As required by law, pursuant lo the terms sel forth in paragraph d. below; or |
1. For dala aggregahon purposes lor the heallh care operalions ol Covered
Entity.

. To the extent Business Associale is peimilted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must oblain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and

used or further disclosed only as required by law or for Ihe purpose for which il was -

disclosed to the third party; and (i) an agreement from such third party to.notify Business
Associafe, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Securily, and Breach Notification
Rules of.any breaches of the confidentialily of the PHI, to the exlent it has obtalned
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Assoclate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary 10
provide services under Exhiblt A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response.io a
requesl for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying .
Covered Entily so that Covered Enlily has an opportunily to objecl to the disclosure and
1o seek appropriate relief. If Covered Enlity objects to such dnsctosure the Busmess

32004 & 2 Exhivll | ’ Conumoumuh \Sl »
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Assoclate shall refrain from disclosing the PH! until Covered Enlity has exhausted all
remedies.

Il the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above lhose uses or disclosures or securily
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Securily Rule, the Business Associale
shall be bound by such addilional restriclions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional securily safeguards.

Obligati and Activities of Busine ssoclate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Enlily's Privacy Oficer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected

-“health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured

protected health information and/or any securily incident thal may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity. ’

- The Business Associale shall immediately perform a risk assessment when il becomes

aware of any of the above siluations. The risk assessment shall include, but notbe
limited to: '

o The nature and extent of the prolected heallh infermation involved, including lhe
types. of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;
o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
.disclosure was made;
o Whether the prolected healih infonnalion was actually acquired or viewed
o Theextent to which the risk to the protected heanh information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in wriling to the
Covered Entily.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule. i

Business Associale shall make available all of ils internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of delermining Covered Entily's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Securily Rule.

Business Associate shall requ!re all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access lo PHI under the Agreement, lo agree in wriling to adhere tothe same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Saction 3 {I). The Covered Entily
shall be considered a direct third patly beneficiary of the Conlractor's business assoclate
agreements with Contractor's inlended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

IT
Exhibit 1 - Conltacter Initials !
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business assoclates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the slandard
conlract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure or
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of 8 written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make avallable during normal business hours et ils offices al!
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating lo the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Enlity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entily to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of recelving a written request from Covered Enlity, .
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Enlity, or as directed by Covered Eatity, to an individualin order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or & record aboul an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associale shall make such PHI available to Covered Entily for |
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfillits
obligalions under 45 CFR Seclion 164. 526,

Business Assaciate shall document such disdasures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Enlity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accoumlng of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Seclnon
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Enlity for a
request for an accounling of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

“In the event any individual requests access to, amendment ol, or accounting of PHI

directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Enlity shall have the .
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request lo Covered Entily would cause Covered Entity or the Business

‘Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Securily Rule, the Business Associate

shall instead respond 1o the Individual's request as required by such law and nolify
Covered Entily of such response as soon as practicable,

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associale shall return or deslroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or recetved by the Business Assoclate in connection wilh the
Agreement, and shall not relaln any coples or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or

~ deslruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI hag been olherwise agreed to in

the Agreement, Business Associate shall continug to exiend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and liml further uses and disclosures of such PHI lo those
purposes thal make the return or deslruction infeasible, for so long as Business .

Exnfitl Conhactor [nitials |
Health Insurance Porlabiity Acl
Businoss Assoclate Agreement /
Page 4010 one 3/13/20




DocuSign Envelope ID: B1853805-9418-4EE6-9743-4D9DAFD75063

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhiblt |

(4)

(5)

(6)

372014

Associate maintains such PHI. |f Covered Entity, in ils sole discretion, requires that the
Business Assaciate destroy any or all PH!, the Business Assocuale shall certify to

" Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obllgation vardEnti

Covered Entity shall nolify Business Associale of any changes or limilalion{s) in ils
Notice of Privacy Practices provided o individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Seclion
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI, ’

Covered Enuiy shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided ta Covered Entity by individuals whose PH! may be used or

"disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuanl to 45 CFR Section

164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered enlity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restriclions on the use or -
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entily has agreed lo In accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such resmctnon may affect Business Associale’s use or disclosure of
PHI .

Terminati (") .Cause'

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Enlity may immedialely terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entily's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately -
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach wilhin a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. - If Covered Entily
délermines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Enlity shall report the
violation to the Secretdry.

Mlsce[laneou
Definitiops and ngg!atoy References. All lerms used, but not otherwise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning-as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
{from time 1o time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Seclion in the Privacy and Securily Rule means ihe Seclion as in effect or as
amended.

Amumg_l Covered Enlity and Business Associate agree 1o take such action as is
necessary lo amend the Agreement, from time 10 time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and

. Securuly Rule, and applicable federal and slate law.

Data Qwnership. The Business Associate acknowledges lhal it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or crealed on behalf of Covered Entily.

Interpretalion. The parlies agree that any ‘ambiguily in the Agraement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

Exhitit Conlraciar Inlals
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e. Searegation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any

- person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shali not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition: 1o this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or -
) destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3} |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the

standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit |,

. .Depariment of Heallh and Hﬁman Services ’ International Inslilute_.bl'New .E'r}gland

T'he\s‘:ﬁm@ W nda

Signaturé of Authorized Representative

ature of Aulhorized Represenlalive

’ MV] wj‘\duef ' Jeffrey Thielman
Name pf Authorized R reéeqtative, Name of Authorized Representative
; S()uﬂbk M[ S&[&M ~ President and CEQ
Title of Autharized Representalive Title of Authprized Representative
Wb - 3)19 (20
Date = Date .
2014 ' - Exhiol | P P |
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’ ACT (FEATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountabillity and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individval
Federal granis equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or sfier October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to execulive compensation and associated first-lier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequeni grant modifications resull in a lolal award equal Lo or over
$25,000, the award is subject lo the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the data of the award.

In asccordance with 2 CFR Pant 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department ol Health #nd Human Services (DHHS) musi report the lollowing information for any
subaward or contracl award subject to the FFATA reporting requiremants: .

Name of entity .
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award tite descriptive of the purposa of the fu nding actian
Location of the enity
Principle place of performance |
.Unique identifier of the entily (DUNS #)
. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revanues ara from the Federal govarnment, and those
revenues are grealer than $25M annually and -
10.2. Compensalion Information Is nol already available through reporting lo the SEC.

..

2oPNOORLN

o

Prime grant reciplens must submit FFATA requ:red data by lhe end of u;e month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment ks made.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions egrees lo comply with the provisions of
" The Federal Funding Accountability end Transparency Acl, Public Law 109-282 end Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Pant 170 {Reporting Subaward ahd Executive Compensation Information), end further agrees
to have lhe Contractor's represeniative; as identified in Seclions 1. 11 and 1.12 of ihe General Provisions
"execule the lollowing Certilicalion:

The below named Conlracior egrees to provide needed informalion as outlined aboveto the NH
Departmenl of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the F ederal
Finanoa! Accountability and Transparency Act. .

Contractor Nar.ne: .

| 3/'?/&0

Date RO © NaWe: Jf% . THM’”‘O#
Title: Pvtslcb.uﬁ « CEO
A - 2

Exhibil J ~ Ceniication Regarding (ke Fedaral Funding Contractor Initiaty
) ; ActounisbERy And Transparancy Act (FFATA) Complianco ﬂ v
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As the Conlraclor idenlified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed queslions are true and accurate. “

1.

2.

CU-OHIHS 0TS

The DUNS number for your enity is: 09( L’ g"] 5ﬂ0] ?DOO 0

In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business ¢r organizalion
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal conlracts, subcontracts,
toans; grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subconlraclts, loans, grants, subgrants, andlor
cooperalive agreements? ? .

_X __no . YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

tf the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer (he lollowing:

Does the public have access loinfarmation about the compensation.of the execulives in your

" business or organization through periodic reports filed under seclion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Secuiities

Exchange Acl of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(3), 780{d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867 ' W :

.

NO YES
If the answer lo #3 above is YEs;stop here
If the answer to #3 ‘above Is NO. please answer ihe following:

The names and compensation of the live most highly compensated oHficers in your business o
organization are as follows: - '

Name: _ _ _ Amount;
l::ame: g - Amount;
Name: : . Amounl: :
Name: _ 0 Amounl:
N.ame{ Amduril:
Exhibd J ~ Certificallon Regarding the Fadera! Funding » Conlractor Initlals AT
Accountablity And Transpaiancy Act (FFATA) Compliance
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Exhibit K
. DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described méaning in this document:

1.

V5, Lost updale 10V0X18 . T Exibil K ' Canitactor Initials ’J l..

_regulations promulgated thereunder.

"Breach® means lhe loss of ‘control, . compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
slluations where persons other than aulhorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access lo personally identifiable

" information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health

Information, * Breach® shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” In seclion.
164.402 of Tille 45, Code of F ederal Regulations.

'Computer Securiiy Incident” shall have the same meanlng “Compuler Securily
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Securily Incident

Handling Guide, National lnsmule of Standards and Technology, U.S. Departmen! :

of Commaerce. s

*Conlidential Information” or "Confidential Data” means all confidential informalion
disclosed by one-party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treasiment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

-Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or rnanaged by

the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which callection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health. Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PF1), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Securily Numbers (SSN}),
Payment Card Industry (PCl), and or olher sensilive and conridenlial information. '
'End User® means any person or entily (e.g., contraclor conlractor's employee

business associate; subconlractor, other downstream user, etc.) thal receives
DHHS data or. derivalive dala in accordance wnh the terms of this Contract.

"HIPAA® means the Health Insurance Portabilily and Accountabilily Act of 1996 and the

.

*incident” means an acl that potenlially violales an explicit or implied seCurity policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
sysiem or its data, unwanted disruplion or denial of service, the unauthorized use ol
a syslem for the processing or slorage of dala; and changes to system hardware,
furmware, or software characleristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through thefi or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and imisrouting of physical or electronic

—_~

DHHS nlormation
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mail, all of whlch may have the potenual 1o pul the dala at risk of unaulhonzed
access, use, disclosura, modification or destruction.

“Open Wireless Network® means any network or-segment of a network lhat is
not designated by the State’ of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as & prolected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the Stale, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the tfansmnssmn of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS dala. ;

*Personal Information” (or “PI") means information which can be used 1o dtslmgunsh i

. or trace an Individual's Identity, such as théir name, social security number, personal

10.

1.

12,

information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or idenlifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birlh, mother's maiden
name, elc.

* *Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards lor anacy of Individually Identifiable Health

Information at 45 C.F.R. Parls 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

“Protected Health Informalion” (or ‘PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 CF.R. §
160.103.

*Security Rule' shall mean the Securily Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Heallh Information al 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto. '

*Unsecured Protectad Heallh Informalion™ means Protected Health Informalion thal is
not secured by a technology slandard that renders Protecled Health Information
unusable, unreadabls, or indecipherable to unaulhorized individuals and is
developed or-endorsed by a standards.developing organization thal is accredited by

.* the American Nalional Standards Institule.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential. Information.

1.

2.
V5, Las) update $000%18 Extivil K Conliacior initials J T

The Contractor must nol use disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
excepl as reasonably necessary as outlined under ihis Contracl. Fudher, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its direclors, oHicers, employees and agents, must nol
use, disclose, maintaln or transmil PHI in any manner thal would constitute a violation
of the Privacy end Security Rule.

The Conlractor must not disclose any Confidentiat information in response to' 8

DHHS laformation N ' :
Secusily Requiraments /
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6. Tha Conlractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives

V5. Lasl update 10°08/16 Cxhibil K Contractor Inilials \\ !

requesl “for disclosure on the basis tha! it is required by Iaw in response to a
subpoena, elc., withoul first notifying DHHS so lhat DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. It DHHS notifigs the Contractor that DHHS has agreed o be bound’ by addmonal

restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pussuant to'the Privacy and Securily. Rule. the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additiona!
restrictions and must abide by any additional securily safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees thal DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End

User must only be used pursuant lo the terms of this Conlract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for

any.olher purposes lhat are not Indicated In this Contract.

of DHHS for the purpose of inspecling to conflrrn compllance with the terns of this
Contract. .

1. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

Applicalion Encryption. If End User is ifansmlmng DHHS dala comtaining
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor allesis the applications have
been evaluated. by an expert knowledgeable in cyber securily and that said
applicalion's encryplion capabililies ensure sécure transmtssnon via the internet.

Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer. disks
or porlable étorage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a melhod of lransmilling DHHS
data.

’ Encrypted Eman! End User may only employ emaul to transmit Confidential-Data if

emall Is encrypted and being senl to and being received by eman addresses of
persons aulhonzad to recelve such information.

'Encrypled Web Site. If. End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential

Data, the securs sockel layers (SSL) must be used and 'the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmilied via a Web site. .

File Hoshng Services, also known as File Sharing Siles. End User may nol use file

hosting services, such as DropboX or Google Cloud Storage. to transmit .

Confidential Dala.

Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data wa certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when senl to a named mdawdua!

Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devuces ‘to transmit
Confidential Dala said devices must be enctypled and password-protected.

Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmil Confidential Data via an open

D1HS Inlormation
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wireless network. End User musl employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitling via an open wirgless network. - .

9. Remote User Communication. |If End User is employing remole communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed. ’ g

10. SSH File Transter Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is .employing en SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and dccess privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
informalion. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmilling Confidential Data ‘will

‘ be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).. - o

" 11. Wireless Devices. If €End User is transmitting Confidential Dala via wireless devices, all
' dala must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. '

Il RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Conlractar will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. Afier such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to deslroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Conlraclor agrees it will not store, transfer or process dala collected in
conneclion ‘with the services rendered under this Conlracl outside of the United
States. This physical localion requirement shall also apply'in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabililies, and includes backup
data and Oisaster Recovery locations. :

2. The Conlractor.agrees lo.ensure proper secufity moniloring cépabililies are in
place to detect polential securily events thal can impact State of NH syslems-
and/of Depariment confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. ‘The Conlractor agrees 1o prdv'nde_sgqurily awareness and educaticn for its End
Users in support of protecting ,Depaﬂmen_l._conﬁdenlial information.

4. The Contractor agrees o retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure localion and identltied in section IV. A.2 .

‘6. The Conlractor agrees Conlfidential Data stored "In a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH complian( solution-and comply with all applicable stalutes and .
regulations regarding the privacy and securily. All servers and devices mus! have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware ulilities. The environmenl, as a

.
P
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whole, must have aggresswe intrusion-detection and firewall proteclion.

6.. The Conlraclor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chiel Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerabllily of the hosting
infrastruclure.

"B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
: sub-contractor systems), lhe Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such dala upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for.any Stale of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
-+ New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
"in accordance with indUstry-accepled standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitizalion, National Institute’ of Standards and Technology u. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data deslruction, and will provide wrillen certification to the Deparimenl
upon request. The wnuen centification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulalory and professional slandards for retention requirements will be JOany
gvaluated by the State and Conlractor prior to destruction. .

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirly (30) days of the termination of this
Conlract, Conlraclor agrees to destroy all hard copaes of Confidential Dala using a
secure method such as shredding.

< I Unless otherwise spamfsed within thirly (30) days of me termination of this
Contiact, Conlraclor agiees to completely destroy all electronic Conlfideniial Data
by means of dala erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

. PROCE'DURES FOR SECURITY

A Contraclor agrees o safeguard the DHHS Dala received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
conlidential Information collecled, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Con!ractor wm mainfain policies and procedures to protect Departmem'
conlidential Information throughout the informalion lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, slorage and secure des!ruclnon) regardiess of the
media used to store the data (i.e., lape, disk, paper, elc.).
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11.

The Conlractor will maintain appropriale authentication and access contrals to
contractor systems that collect, transmit,. or stere Depariment conlidential information
where applicable. ' '

The Conliractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential. security events that can impact Slate of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems. '

The Conlractor will provide regular Security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Coniractor will maintain @
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectalions, and monitoring compliance 1o security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Conlractor, including breach notificalion requirements.

The Contractor will work wilh the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State ol New Hampshire and Department system access end authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
oblaining and maintaining access to any Depanment system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Conltractor and any applicable sub-conlractors prior to
system access being authorized. -

If the Department determines the Contractor-is a Business Associate pursuant fo 45
CFR 160.103, the Conltractor will execule a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for mainlaining compliance with the
agreement. ] .

'The Contractor will work with the Department at its request fo complete a System

Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and

Contraclor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may

occur over the .life of the Contraclor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Deparments discrelion with agreemenl by
the Contraclor, or the Deparimen! may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Conlractor changes.

The Conltractor will nol slore, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Depariment dala offshore or outside the boundaries of the Uniled States unless

prior express wiilten consent is obtained from the Informalion Security Office

leadership member within the Departqnent.

Dala Securily Breach Liability. In the event of any securily breach Contraclor shall
make efforts to investigale the causes of the breach, promplly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

Ty e
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit ‘monitoring sefvicés, mailing costs and
cosls associated with website ang telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach. .

Conlraclor must, comply with ali applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential [nformation, and must in ail olher respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies. Including,

. but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1674 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS

13.

14,

15.

16

VS, Lasl updale 10018 Exhibil K Convacior islials

Privacy Act Regulalions (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 .and 164)that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

Contractor agrees lo establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to~
prevent unautharized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide 8 level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
eslablished by the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Informalion Technology:

"Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement al hilps:/mwww.nh.gov/doit/vendorfindex.htm -

for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and'
procurement information relating to vendors.

Conlractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notificalion and incident
rasponse process. The Conltraclor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any securily breach immediately, al the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This inciudes a confidential information breach, computer
securily Incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshne systems that connec! 1o the Stale of New Hampsmre network.

Contractor musl reslrlcl access to lhe Conlldenhal Data oblained under lhis
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform lheir official duties in conneclion with-purposes iaenliﬂed_ in this Contract. ~

The Confraclor must ensure that au End Users:

a. ‘comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information thal is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure. ;

 b. safeguard this information al all times.

c. ensure that laplops and other electronic devices/media conlasnmg PHI PI or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Conlidential Information -only if gncrypled and being
senl to and being recelved by email addresses of persons aulhorized to
receive such informalion.

3T
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Inférmation to the extent permitied by law.

1. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door Iocks. card keys,
biomelric identifiers, etc.). oo, . s

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Conlfidential Data, including any
derivalive files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted al all times when in transil, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in seclion IV above.

in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate. safeguards, as determmed by a risk-based
. assessment of the clrcumslances invoived.

-

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must nol be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure,
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or mdlrecﬂy through
a third pary appllcahon

V5. Lasl updala 10:09/18 Exhblt K ' © Conlraclor Inhlak

Contraclor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users.- DHHS
reserves lhe right to conducl onsile inspeclions to monitor compllance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and olher applicable taws and Federal regulations unlil such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of in accordance wilh this Contract.

LOSS RE PORTING

The Contractor must nolify he Slate's Privacy Ollicer and Secunty Officer of any"
Securily -Incidents and’ Breaches immedialely, al the email addresses provided in

Seclion VI. ;

The Conlractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incidenl Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addilion to, and

" nolwithstanding, Contraclor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,

Conlraclor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:
1. Idenlify Incidents h
Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidenls;

2
3. Report susnecled or conlirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit of P- 37,
4

. Idenlify and convene 8 core response group 1o determine the risk level of Inc‘denls )

and delerming risk-based-responses to [nc:denls and,

.
~
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‘ 5. D_elen'n'ine whether Breach nolification is requifed, and, if so', idenlify appropriate

. Breach nolification methods; timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well.as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Iimplicate Pl r’nust' be addréssed and reported, as '
applicable, in accordance wilh NH RSA 359-C:20. '

V. PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Officer:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS Security Ofticer:
DHHSInformationSecurilyOHice@dhhs.nh.gov

—_
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